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BEFORE THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL
CHENNAI BENCH
C A (CAA) NO. 35 OF 2022

In thematter of Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act,
2013

AND

In the matter of Scheme of Amalgamation of Sri Harini Textiles Limited with The
Ramaraju Surgical Cotton MillsLimited and their respective Shareholders and Creditors.

Sri Harini Textiles Limited

(CIN: U17111TN2005PL C057807)

A Company incorporated under the

provisions of Companies Act, 1956

having its Registered Office at

Sri Bhavanam 102, P SK Nagar Rajapalayam,

Virudhunagar — 626 108,

Tamil Nadu, India. ... Applicant Transferor Company

NOTICE CONVENING MEETING OF THE EQUITY SHAREHOL DERS OF SRI
HARINI TEXTILESLIMITED

To,
The Equity Shareholders of
Sri Harini Textiles Limited

NOTICE is hereby given that vide an Order dated 13" day of July 2022 (‘Order’), Hon’ble
National Company Law Tribunal, Chennai Bench (‘NCLT?) has directed a meeting to be held
of the Equity Shareholders of Sri Harini Textiles Limited to be called and convened on
Thursday, 8" day of September, 2022 at 9.00 A.M. at PAC Ramasamy Raja Salai,
Rajapalayam — 626 117 Tamil Nadu, India for the purpose of considering, and if thought fit,
approving with or without modification(s), Scheme of Arrangement in the nature of
Amalgamation of Sri Harini Textiles Limited with The Ramaraju Surgical Cotton Mills Limited
and their respective Shareholders and Creditors. At the Meeting, the following resolution will
be considered and if thought fit, be passed, with or without modification(s), by requisite
majority as prescribed under Section 230(1) and (6) read with Section 232(1) of the Companies
Act, 2013:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) read with the provisons of the
Companies (Compromise, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016, the National
Company Law Tribunal Rules, 2016 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment
thereof for the time being in force), the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended (“SEBI LODR



Regulations”) read with the SEBI Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017
read with SEBI Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2020/249 dated December 22,
2020, SEBI Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/DILY/CIR/P/2021/0000000665 dated
November 23, 2021, as amended (“SEBI Circular”) and other applicable regulations,
circulars and guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI ), the
applicable provisions of the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company and
subject to the approval of Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal, Chennai Bench (“NCLT ")
and further subject to such other approvals, permissions and sanctions of regulatory and other
authorities, as may be necessary and subject to such conditions and modifications as may be
prescribed or directed by Hon’ble NCLT or by any regulatory or other authorities, while
granting such consents, approvals and permissions which may be agreed to by the Board of
Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred to as the “Board”, which term shall be deemed
to mean and include one or more Committee(s) constituted/to be constituted by the Board or
any other person authorised by it to exercise its powers including the powers conferred by this
Resolution), the scheme of arrangement providing for the amalgamation of Si Harini Textiles
Limited (“SHTL” / “Transferor Company”) with The Ramaraju Surgical Cotton Mills Limited
(TRSCML” / “Transferee Company”) on terms and conditions as contained in the draft
scheme of arrangement, the copy whereof placed before the meeting and initialed by the
chairperson for the purpose of identification, be and is hereby approved.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the board of directors of the Company be and is hereby
authorized (with the power to delegate any or all the powers conferred by this resolution to any
Director, KMP or officers or any committee of the Board) to do all such acts, deeds, matters
and things, as may be considered requisite, desirable, appropriate or necessary to give effect to
this Resolution and effectively implement the arrangements embodied in the Scheme and to
accept such modifications, amendments, limitations and/or conditions, if any, which may be
required and/or imposed by the NCLT and/or any other authority(ies) while sanctioning the
Scheme or by any authority(ies) under law, or as may be required for the purpose of resolving
any doubts or difficulties that may arise in giving effect to the Scheme, as they may deem fit and

proper.”

TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that in pursuance of the aforesaid Order and as directed therein, a
meeting of the Equity Shareholders of the Applicant Transferor Company will be held at PAC
Ramasamy Raja Salai, Rajapalayam — 626 117, Tamil Nadu, India on Thursday, 8" day
of September, 2022 at 9.00 A.M., a which time and place the said Equity Shareholders are
requested to attend.

Copies of the Scheme of Amalgamation and Notice along with Explanatory Statement forming
part thereof under Section 230 read with Section 102 and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 can be obtained free of charge at the Registered Office of the Applicant
Transferor Company and/or from the office of the Advocate Mr. Pawan Jhabakh,
M/s. P.H. Arvind Pandian & Associates, No. 115, 1% Floor, Luz Church Road, Mylapore,
Chennai - 600004, Tamil Nadu, during normal business hours (9:30 am to 6:30 pm) from
Monday to Friday upto and including the date of the meeting.

Persons entitled to attend and vote at the meeting, may vote in person or by proxy provided that
al proxies in the prescribed form are deposited at the Registered Office of the Applicant
Transferor Company not later than 48 hours before the meeting.



Forms of proxy can be obtained from the Registered Office of the Applicant Transferor
Company viz. Sri Harini Textiles Limited.

The Tribunal has appointed Mr. P.J. Ramkumar Rajha, Independent Director of the Applicant
Transferee Company to be the Chairman of the said meeting, including any adjournment or
adjournments thereof.

Copy of the Scheme of Amalgamation, Explanatory Statement under Section 102, Section
230(3) and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules 6 and 7 of
the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amagamations) Rules, 2016, a Form of
Proxy and Attendance Slip is attached herewith and forms part of this Notice.

Above mentioned Scheme of Amalgamation, if approved at the meeting, will be subject to the
subsequent approval of the Tribunal.

Sd/-
P.J. Ramkumar Rajha
Chairman appointed for the Meeting

Dated this 27" day of July, 2022

Registered Office Address:
Sri Bhavanam 102, P SK Nagar Rajapalayam,
Virudhunagar — 626 108, Tamil Nadu, India

Phone: 08654-283933/283988;
Email: apunit@ramcotex.com;
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Notes:

1.

Only Equity Shareholders of the Applicant Transferor Company may attend and vote either
in person or by proxy (a proxy need not be an Equity Shareholder of the Applicant
Transferor Company) or in the case of a body corporate, by a representative authorized
under Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013. The authorized representative of a body
corporate which is a Equity Shareholder of the Applicant Transferor Company may attend
and vote at the meeting of the Equity Shareholders of the Applicant Company provided a
certified true copy of the resolution of the board of directors or other governing body of the
body corporate authorizing such representative to attend and vote at the meeting of the
Equity Shareholders of the Applicant Transferor Company is deposited at the Registered
Office of the Applicant Transferor Company not later than 48 (forty eight) hours before the
scheduled time of the commencement of the meeting of the Equity Shareholders of the
Applicant Transferor Company. The Form of Proxy can be obtained free of charge at the
Registered Office of the Applicant Transferor Company.

The quorum for the meeting of the Equity Shareholders of the Applicant Transferor
Company shall be viz. 8 (Eight) in number viz. present either in person or through proxy or
authorized representative as approved by the NCL T, Chennai Bench vide Order.

Equity Shareholder or his proxy, attending the meeting, is requested to bring the Attendance
Slip duly completed and signed and aso should carry a copy of their valid and legible
identity proof (i.e. PAN Card/Adhaar Card/Passport/Driving License/Voter ID Card).

Asdirected by the Tribunal, Mr. ANS Vijay, Practicing Company Secretary having office at
148/1, Palaniandavar Colony, Sivakasi - 626189 has been appointed as the scrutinizer to
conduct the voting at the venue of the meeting, in afair and transparent manner.

The Notice convening the meeting will be published through an advertisement in English
Daily in “Business Standard” (All India Edition), “Nav Bharat Times” (All India Edition)
and “Makkal Kural” in Tamil (Tamil Nadu Edition).

The Scrutinizer will submit his report to the Chairman of the meeting after completion of
the scrutiny of the votes cast by the Equity Shareholders of the Applicant Transferor
Company. The Scrutinizer’s decision on the validity of the vote shall be final.

Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102, Section 230(3) and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules 6 and 7 of the Companies
(Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 setting out materia
disclosures forms part of this Notice.

Equity Shareholders as per the register of members as on July 22, 2022 will be entitled to
exercise their right to vote on the above meeting.

Electronic Copy of Notice is being sent to al the Equity Shareholders of Applicant
Transferor Company as on July 22, 2022, whose e-mail addresses are registered with the
Company, for communication purpose. Equity Shareholders who have not registered their
email addresses, physical copy is being sent by courier at their registered addresses.



BEFORE THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL
CHENNAI BENCH
C A (CAA) NO. 35 OF 2022

In the matter of the Companies Act, 2013;
AND
In the matter of Sections 230 to 232 and other
applicable provisons of the Companies Act,
2013;
AND
In the matter of Scheme of Amalgamation of
Sri Harini Textiles Limited with The Ramaraju
Surgical Cotton Mills Limited and their
respective Shareholders and Creditors.

Sri Harini TextilesLimited

(CIN: U17111TN2005PL C057807)

A Company incorporated under the

provisions of Companies Act, 1956

having its Registered Office at

Sri Bhavanam 102, P S K Nagar Rajapalayam,

Virudhunagar — 626 108, Tamil Nadu, India. ... Applicant Transferor Company

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 102, SECTION 230(3) AND
OTHER APPLICABLE PROVISIONS OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH
RULES 6 AND 7 OF THE COMPANIES (COMPROMISES, ARRANGEMENTS AND
AMALGAMATIONS) RULES, 2016 FORMING PART OF THE NOTICE

1 Pursuant to an Order dated 13" day of July, 2022 passed by the National Company
Law Tribunal, Chennai Bench in C A (CAA) No. 35 of 2022 jointly filed by Sri Harini
Textiles Limited along with The Ramargju Surgical Cotton Mills Limited, a meeting of
the Equity Shareholders of the Applicant Transferor Company is ordered to be
convened and held on Thursday, 8" day of September, 2022 at PAC Ramasamy
Raja Salai, Rajapalayam — 626 117, Tamil Nadu, India a 9.00 A.M. for the purpose
of considering and, if thought fit, approving with or without modification(s), the
arrangement embodied in the Scheme of Amalgamation of Sri Harini Textiles Limited
(“Transferor Company”) with The Ramargu Surgical Cotton Mills Limited
(“Transferee Company”) and their respective Shareholders and Creditors (hereinafter
referred to as the “Scheme”). This statement explaining the terms of the Scheme of
Amalgamation is being furnished as required under Section 230(3) of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with Rules 6 and 7 of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and
Amalgamations) Rules, 2016.

2. A copy of the Scheme setting out the details of the Companies involved in the proposed
Scheme, appointed date, effective date, share exchange ratio, share entitlement ratio and



other salient features is attached herewith and forms part of the Notice as well as this
Explanatory Statement.

BACKGROUND OF THE TRANSFEROR COMPANY

Sri Harini Textiles Limited, (hereinafter referred to as ‘SHTL’ or ‘the Applicant
Transferor Company’ for the sake of brevity) is a public unlisted company, incorporated
on 13" day of October, 2005 under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 with the
Registrar of Companies, Chennai, Tamil Nadu.

The Corporate Identification  Number (‘CIN’) of the SHTL s
U17111TN2005PLC057807 and Permanent Account Number (‘PAN’) is
AAJCS5819D.

The Registered Office of the SHTL is situated at Sri Bhavanam 102, P S K Nagar
Rajapalayam, Virudhunagar — 626 108, Tamil Nadu, India.

The Applicant Transferor Company is engaged in the business of running an established
Open End Yarn manufacturing unit with capacity of 1440 Rotors at Thirumalagiri
Village, Krishna District, Andhra Pradesh that was commissioned during the year June,
2008.

The Main Objects of the SHTL are fully set out in the Memorandum and Articles of
Assaociation which are as follows:-

a. “To carry on al or any of the business of spinners (Ring Spinning, OE Spinning,
Compact Spinning etc.) and doublers of cotton, flax, hemp, jute, wooal, silk,
synthetic fibre such as Viscose, Polynosic, Polyester, Acrylic and other fibrous
substances, cotton ginners, yarn merchants, bleahers and dyers, makers of bleaching
and dyeing materials and to purchase, comb, prepare, spin, dye and deal in cotton,
flax, hemp, jute, wool, silk, synthetic fibre such as Viscose, Polynosic, Polyester,
Acrylic., and other fibrous substances and to weave or otherwise manufacture, buy,
sell and export and deal in linen, cloth and other goods and fabrics, whether textile,
felted, netted or looped.

b. To carry on dl or any of the business of cloth manufacturers, hosiers, carpet
makers, silk mercers, silk, synthetic fibre such as Viscose, Polynosic, Polyester,
Acrylic and other fibrous substances weavers, importers, exporters and wholesae,
retall dealers and chain of retail outlets of and in Textile fabrics of all kinds,
outfitters, drapers and Furnishers.

c. To wash, clean, purify, scour, bleach, wring, dry, iron, colour, dye, disinfect,
renovate and prepare for use al articles of wearing apparel, household, domestic
and other linen and catton, woolen and silk goods and clothing and fabrics of al
kinds.

d. To cultivate, buy, sell and deal in raw or finished cotton, wooal, jute, silk, synthetic
fibre, such as Viscose, Polynosic, Polyester, Acrylic and other fibrous substances



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

and to prepare, spin, clean, press and pack the same and sell the materias so
manufactured, to build, purchase, sell, dispose of, transfer, mortgage, take on lease,
exchange, hire or othewise acquire or deal with any land, buildings, any estate or
interest therein and any right over or connected with them.

e. To generate power from conventional and lor non conventional sources including
installation of Wind Millsfor capitve use/ Third party sale.”

Email address of the SHTL is apunit@ramcotex.com.

During last five years, there has been no change in the name, main object and in the
Registered Office of the Applicant Transferor Company.

The capital structure of the Applicant Transferor Company as on March 31, 2022 is as
under:

Particulars Amount (Rs))
Authorised Share Capital

50,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 5,00,00,000
TOTAL 5,00,00,000
Issued, Subscribed and paid-up Share Capital

30,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 3,00,00,000
TOTAL 3,00,00,000

Subsequent to March 31, 2022, till date, there has been no change in its authorised,
issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital.

BACKGROUND OF THE TRANSFEREE COMPANY

The Ramaraju Surgical Cotton Mills Limited (hereinafter referred to as “TRSCML” or
“Applicant Transferee Company” for the sake of brevity) is a public listed company
incorporated on the 20" day of February, 1939, under the Indian Companies Act, 1913.

The Corporate Identification Number (‘CIN’) of the TRSCML s
L17111TN1939PLC002302 and Permanent Account Number (‘PAN’) is
AAACT4308D.

The Registered Office of RSCML is stuated at PAC Ramasamy Raa Sala
Rajapalayam — 626 117, Tamil Nadu, India.

TRSCML, the Transferee Company is a Public Limited Company was engaged originally
in the business of production of Surgical Cotton, Gauze, Bandage and Plaster of Parisand
other wound-care products in Southern India. The Applicant/Transferee Company has
further diversified into spinning and weaving, producing some of the world’s finest cotton
yarn and manufacturing premium fabrics for shirting, bed linens and jacquard cloth. The
Equity Shares of the Transferee Company are listed on the M SE.

The Main Objects of TRSCML are fully set out in the Memorandum and Articles of
Association which are asfollows:-
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“to carry on al or any of the business of manufactures of sterilised surgical
wadding, bandages, gauze, lint, rough cloth, sanitary towels, etc., out of cotton,
flax, hemp, jute, wooal, silk or other fibrous materials, used for domestic or hospital
purposes.

to carry on al or any of the businesses of cotton spinners and doublers, flax, hemp
and jute spinners, linen manufacturers, flax, hemp, jute and wool merchants, wool
combers, worsted spinners, woolen spinners, cotton ginners, yarn merchants,
worsted stuff manufacturers, bleachers and dyers and makers of vitriol, bleaching
and dyeing materials, and to purchase, comb, prepare, spin, dye and dea in flax,
hemp, jute, wool, cotton, silk and other fibrous substances and to weave or
otherwise manufacture, buy and sell and deal in linen cloth and other goods and
fabrics whether textiles, felted, netted or looped.

to carry on al or any of the businesses of silk mercers, silk weavers, cloth
manufacturers, hosiers, carpet makers, importers and wholesale and retail dealers of
and in textile fabrics of al kinds, tailors, outfitters, boot and shoe-makers drapers
and furnishers.

to wash, clean, purify, scour, bleach, wring, dry, iron, colour, dye, disinfect,
renovate and prepare for use al articles of weaving apparel household domestic and
other linen, cotton and woollen goods and clothing and fabrics of all kinds.

to carry on in al or any of their branches, al or any one or more of the following
businesses, that is to say the businesses of manufactures, producers, importers,
exporters, merchants, brokers and wholesale dealers of and in all kinds of dyes,
dye-stuffs, chemical drugs, paints, varnishes, colours, industrial pharmaceutical and
other preparations articles, compounds, ingredients and products or other goods of
any description whether anal ogous to any of those above enumerated or not,

to carry on business as manufacturers of essential oils, aromatic chemicals, toilet
preparations, dental cream, tooth brushes, tongue cleaners, etc., and other products
used in perfumery, flavours, dyes, sweetening agents and other products used in
confectionery, aerated waters, liquors and other similar preparations and to
manufacture, buy, sell, improve, treat, refine, aerate, mineralise bottle and
otherwise deal in minera and aerated waters and other liquids of every description.
to cultivate, buy, sell and deal in raw or finished cotton, woal, jute, silk and other
fibrous substances and to prepare, spin, clean, press and pack the same and sell the
materials so manufactured, to build, purchase sell, dispose of transfer, mortgage,
take on lease, exchange, hire or otherwise acquire or deal with any land, buildings
any estate or interest therein and any right over or connected with them that may be
deemed or necessary or convenient for any of the purposes of the Company.

to carry on researches advantageous and beneficial to the Company and to train and
educate employees of the Company to carry on the work of the Company
efficiently.

to purchase take on lease or otherwise acquire land, buildings, plant, machinery,
tools, etc., for the purposes aforesaid and to construct, erect and equip mills,
factories offices dwellings and to work the same.

to sell al products manufactured by the Company or imported from outside and
also to take agencies for such of the materials that are in the line and cannot or
advantageoudly be manufactured here.

10
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to carry on any other business or concern whether manufacturing or otherwise
which in the opinion of the Company is directly or indirectly likely to advance or
promote the interests of the Company.
to enter into contract with the Government and other loca bodies and individuals
for the sale of the Company's products and for the purchase of materials or
properties for the use of the Company.

. to apply for purchase or otherwise acquire patents rights privileges, licences,

concessions and the like which in the opinion of the Company are conducive to the
attainment of its objects or to enhance the value of its undertaking.

to sell, mortgage, exchange, lease or otherwise dispose of absolutely conditionally
or for any limited interest and to grant lease or licence in respect of all or part of the
land, buildings or any property rights or privileges of the Company.

to enter into any agreements with and employ technicians, engineers, eectricians
and other speciaists and staff as may be necessary and expedient for conducting the
business of the company.

to raise and borrow money and secure the payment of the money by such terms and
conditions and in such manner as may be determined, and particularly by the
creation of issue of bonds, mortgages, debentures, debenture-stock or other
securities either perpetual or terminable and charged specially or by way of floating
charge on any part of the undertaking, property and rights of the Company either
present or future or both inclusive of its uncalled capital, or not entitled to any
charge and to redeem, purchase, or pay off any such securities remunerate any
trustees appointed in connection with any such securities at a discount, premium or
otherwise and in such manner as may be thought fit and with or without any special
rights, privileges or conditions as to redemption, surrender, drawings, allotment of
shares, conversion into shares, attending and voting at meetings of the Company,
appointment of directors or otherwise and so that any such securities may be made
assignable, free from any equities between the Company or any person or persons
and so that upon an issue of debenture-stock, debentures may, if thought expedient,
be issued to trustees, as part of the securities, to open current account and time
deposit accounts with bankers, or banks, shroffs or merchants and pay into and
draw money from such accounts, to invest and deal with the moneys of the
Company not immediately required in or upon such securities and in such manner
as may from time to time be determined by the Company.

to draw, make, accept, endorse, sea, execute, negotitate, purchase, lend, money
upon, discount, hold and dispose of cheques, promissory notes, bills of exchange,
hundis, drafts, charter-parties, bills of lading, warrant, debenture and other
negotiable instruments or documents and contracts, deeds and other instruments and
cancel and vary any such instrument.

to sell, exchange, improve, manage, develop, turn to account, lease or sub-lease or
let on rent any royalty or share of profits or otherwise grant licences, easements and
other rights in respect of al or any lands, buildings, properties, rights, and
privileges of the Company and in any other manner deal with or dispose of the
undertaking of all or any of the property for the time being of the Company for such
consideration, as may deem fit.

to amagamate with any other Company whose objects are or which includes
objects similar to those of this Company whether by sale or purchase (for fully or
partly paid-up shares or otherwise) of the undertaking subject to the liabilities of
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this or any such other company as aforesaid with or without winding up or by sale
or purchase (for fully or partly paid-up shares or otherwise) of al the shares or
stock of this or any such other company as aforesaid or by partnership or any
arrangement of the nature of the partnership or any other manner when such is
likely to advance or promote the interests of this Company.

to promote and undertake the formation, establishment, management of such
ingtitutions, business and companies with object or objects similar to those of this
Company as may be considered to be conducive to the profit and interest of the
Company.

to insure with any person or company against losses, damages, risks and liabilities
of any kind which may affect the Company either wholly or partialy, and if thought
fit, to effect any such insurance, protection or indemnity by joining or becoming
members of any mutual insurance, association, federation or society and to accept
any such insurance, or any part thereof for the account of the Company.

upon any issue of shares, debentures or any other securities of the Company, to
employ brokers, commission agents and underwriters to provide for the
remuneration of such persons for their services, by payment in cash or by issue of
shares, debentures or other securities of the Company by granting of options to take
the same or in any manner allowed by law.

. to create any reserve fund sinking fund, insurance fund, or any other specia funds,
whether for depreciation or for repairing, improving, extending or maintaining any
of the property of the Company or for any other purposes conducive to the interests
of the Company.

to support and subscribe to any charitable or public object, and any institution,
society. or club which may be for the benefit of the Company or of its employees,
or may be connected with any town or place where the company carries on
business; to contribute funds to any political party or parties; to give pensions,
gratuties or charitable aid to any person or persons, who may have served the
Company, or to the wives, children or other relatives or dependants of such persons;
to make payments towards insurance and to form and contribute to provident and
benefit funds for the benefit of any persons employed by the Company, or of the
wives, children, or other relatives or dependants of such persons.

to procure the incorporation, registration, or other recognition of the Company in
any country, state or place, and to establish and to regulate agencies for the purpose
of the Company's business, and to apply or join in applying to any Parliament,
Government, Local, Municipa or other authority or body, British, Colonia or
Foreign for any acts of Parliament, laws, decrees, concessions, orders, rights or
privileges that may seem conducive to the Company's objects, or of any of them
and to oppose any proceedings or applications which may seem calculated or
directly prejudice the interests of the Company.

to carry on any other business which may seem to the Company capable of being
conveniently carried on in connection with the above, or calculated directly or
indirectly to enhance the value of or render profitable any of the Company's
properties or rights and generally to all such other acts, matters and things as may
by necessary, incidental or conducive to the attainment of the above objects or any
of them.

to do al or any of the above things in any part of the world and either as principals,
agents, trustees, contractors or otherwise and either aone or in conjunction with
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others and either by or through agents, sub-contractors, trustees or otherwise, and to
do al other things as are incidental or conducive to the above objects or any of
them.”

16. Website and Email

rscm@ramcotex.com respectively.

address of TRSCML

is www.ramaragjusurgical.com and

17. During last five years, there has been no change in the name, main object and in the
Registered Office of the TRSCML.

18. The capital structure of Transferee Company as on March 31, 2022 is as under:

Particulars Amount (Rs))
Authorised Share Capital

50,00,000 Eqity Shares of Rs.10/- each 5,00,00,000
TOTAL 5,00,00,000
I ssued, Subscribed and paid-up Share Capital

39,46,560 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 3,94,65,600
TOTAL 3,94,65,600

Subsequent to March 31, 2022 till date, there has been no change in its authorised,
issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital.

19. The shareholding pattern of the Transferor Company as on June 30, 2022 is as under:

Sr. No. of equity Sharenolding asa
No. Category of Shareholder hares held % of total no. of
shares
A. | Statement showing shareholding
pattern of the Promoter and
Promoter Group
a. | Individuals/Hindu undivided Family
(including Type A and Type B shares) 13,60,000 4533
b. | CentralGovernment/ State
Government(s) i i
¢. | Financid Ingtitutions/ Banks - -
d. | Any Other (specify): - -
Bodies Corporate 15,90,000 53.00
Sub-Total (A) 29,50,000 98.33
Total Shareholding of Promoter and 29.50.000 98.33
Promoter Group (A)
B. | Statement showing shareholding
pattern of the Public shareholder i i
C. | Statement showing shareholding
pattern of the Non Promoter- Non 50,000 1.67
Public shareholder
Total (A+B+C) 30,00,000 100.00
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20.

21.

Details of Promoters and Directors of the Transferor Company

Details of the Promoters of the Transferor Company are as under:

Name Address
142, Santhome High Road, Raja
P.R.Venketrama Raja Annamaaipuram, Chennai — 600028, Tamil

Nadu, India

R. Sudarsanam

1616/642, Thenakas Road, Raapalayam,
Virudhunagar — 626117, Tamil Nadu, India

R. Nalina Ramal akshmi

102, Shri Bhavanam, P.S.K. Nagar, Rajapalayam
— 626108, Tamil Nadu, India

N.R.K. Ramkumar Raja

8/14 1% Cross Street, Karpagam Gardens, 3rd
Floor Adayar, Chennai — 600020, Tamil Nadu,
India

Saradha Deepa

No 39/17 Bishop Garden, R A Puram, Chennai —

600028, Tamil Nadu, India

Mills Limited

The Ramargju Surgical Cotton

PAC Ramasamy Rga Sda Rajapalayam -
626117, Tamil Nadu, India

Y annarkay Servicers Limited

82, Cotton Market, Raapalayam - 626117,
Tamil Nadu, India

Details of the Directors of the Transferor Company as on July 27, 2022 are as under:

Date of
Name Designation Address DIN No. | Appointmen
t
111a, Alagai Nagar,
Nambur P.SK. Nagar, K.R.
Krishnama Rgja . Na_gar Po,
Director Rajapalayam Tk, 00432698 | 13/10/2005
Ramasamy .
Raia Vi rudhunagar -
626108, Tamil Nadu,
India
Nambur 14/39, P.S.K. Nagar,
Krishnama Raja Director Rajapalayam -626108, | 00350693 | 13/10/2005
Shrikantan Rgja Tamil Nadu, India
Poosapadi 90al/1 Psk Nagar,
Jagadeeswara Kumarasamy Ragja
Raja Director Nagar, Rajapalayam - 00487193 | 11/02/2017
Ramkumar 626108, Tamil Nadu,
Raha India
7 Jubilee Road,
Kanthimathinat Kuthukalvalasel
han Director llanji, Tenkasi - 01124581 | 30/07/2013
Subramanian 627805, Tamil Nadu,
India
102, Shri Bhavanam,
Nalina . P'S.'K' Nagar,
Ramal akshmi Director Rajapalayam - 01364161 | 25/10/2008
626108, Tamil Nadu,
India
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23.

24,

Approval of the Scheme by the Board of Directors

The Scheme was approved by the Board of Directors of the Transferor Company in the
Board Meeting held on 27" of September, 2021. Meeting was attended by all the
Directors named above and al of them have voted unanimously in favor of the

resol ution.

Details of Promoters and Directors of the Transfer ee Company

Details of the Promoters of the Transferee Company are as under:

Name

Address

Nalina Ramal akshmi

102, Shri Bhavanam, P.S.K. Nagar, Rajapalayam —
626108, Tamil Nafu, India

N.R.K. Ramkumarragja

8/14 1% Cross Street, Karpagam Gardens, 3rd Floor
Adayar, Chennai - 600020, Tamil Nadu, India

No 39/17 Bishop Garden, R A Puram, Chennai — 600028 —

saracha Deepa Tamil Nadu, India

R Sudarsanam égéi/l ?ﬁ;ﬂ:‘ﬁnskﬁ IT;?;(; Rajapalayam, Virudhunagar -
PR Venketramargja éﬁn iZ”ngqon;'égf'raRrgﬁdN:jjua I:?] z?aamal aipuram,

PV Srisandhya é‘:fen iﬂg?oeo;'éf"}:ﬁﬁd,ﬁ“f ﬁ] r;?aamalal puram,

PV Nirmaa 142, Santhome High Road, Raja Annamalai puram,

Chennai — 600028, Tamil Nadu, India

M/s. Rajapalayam Mills
Limited

Rajapa ayam Mills Premises,Post Box No.1
P.A.C.Ramaswamy Road Rajapalayam — 626117, Tamil
Nadu, India

M/s. Sri Vishnu Shankar
Mills Limited

Sri Vishnu Shankar Mills Permises Post Box No 109, P A
CR Sda Rajapaayam — 626117, Tamil Nadu India.

The shareholding pattern of the Transferee Company as on June 30, 2022 is as under:

Sr. No. of equity SIE GG
No. Category of Shareholder <hares held a % of total no.
of shares
A. | Statement showing shareholding
pattern of the Promoter and
Promoter Group
a. | Individuas/Hindu undivided Family 17,60,140 44.60
b. | Centra Government/ State
Government(s) ) )
c. | Financial Ingtitutions/ Banks - -
d. | Any Other (specify): - -
Bodies Corporate 6,200 0.16
Sub-Total (A) 17,66,340 44.76
Total Shareholding of Promoter and 17.66,340 44.76
Promoter Group (A)
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B. | Statement showing shareholding
pattern of the Public shareholder 21,80,220 55.24
C. | Statement showing shareholding
pattern of the Non Promoter- Non - -
Public shareholder
Total (A+B+C) 39,46,560 100.00

Details of the Directors of the Transferee Company as on July 27, 2022 are as under:

Date of
Name Designation Address DIN No. Appointmen
t
Vaidyanathan Aﬁg‘kk SI{I idevi %%'OW,_
- ok Nagar, Chennai-
Santhanaraman Director 600083, Tamil Nadu, 00212334 25/05/2014
India
Poosapadi 142 Santhome High
Ramasubrahma Road, Rgja
neya Rajha Director Annamal aipuram, 00331406 04/03/1992
Venketrama Chennai — 600028,
Raja Tamil Nadu, India
Nambur
Krishnama 14/39, P.SK. Nagar,
Raa Director Rajapalayam — 626108, 00350693 15/04/2002
Shrikantan Tamil Nadu, India
Raja
Poosapaadi 48, P.S.K. Nagar,
dlagaRaja Director Rajapalayam — 626108, 00446057 14/05/1986
Jaganathargja Tamil Nadu, India
Poosapadli 90a1/1 Psk Nagar,
Jagadeeswara Kumarasamy Raja
Raja Director Nagar, Rajapalayam — 00487193 25/05/2014
Ramkumar 626108, Tamil Nadu,
Rajha India
50/13, P.SK. Nagar,
Poosapadi Kumarasamy Raja
Sankarrgja Director Nagar, Rgjapalayam - 00487312 16/06/2021
alagharrgj 626108, Tamil Nadu,
India
102, Shri Bhavanam,
Nalina Managing P.S.K. Nagar, 01364161
Ramal akshmi Director Rajapal ayam — 626108, 12/08/2010
Tamil Nadu India
Namboor R 102, Shri Bhavanam,
Krishnama . P.SK. Nagar,
Raja VeI | Rejapalayam - 01948373 | 14/02/2016
rector 626108, Tamil Nadu,

Ramkumar
Raja

India
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27.

28.

Posapadi Flat Gb, 7/13, .Ponmari
Towers, Montieth Lane,
Perumal Stbba Near Hotel Ambassador
Raja Director 06702871 25/05/2014
Janarthana Pall ava,. Egmore, .
Réja Chennai-600008, Tamil
Nadu, India
62/19-B-1, Jothi Nagar,
) 4th Street, Kovil Patti,
SS;”;hr'];‘gbbura gﬂgﬁe Thoothukkudi - 07601727 | 20/11/2021
628501, Tamil Nadu,
India

Approval of the Scheme by the Board of Directors

The Scheme was approved by the Board of Directors of the Transferee Company in the
Board Meeting held on 27" day of September, 2021. Meeting was attended by the
Directors named above and al of them have voted unanimously in favor of the
resolution.

Relationship between all the Applicant Companies

a. Transferor Company and Transferee Company belong to the same group of
management.

b. TRSCML, the Transferee Company holds 14,90,000 equity shares of SHTL, the
Transferor Company.

RATIONALE OF THE SCHEME

The Amalgamation pursuant to this Scheme is proposed by the Board of Directors of

the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company with following objectives and

rationale:

The directors of the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company have decided to

amalgamate the Transferor Company with the Transferee Company in order to ensure

better management of the Company as a single unit with focused management

capabilities. The directors of the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company are

of the opinion that the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company are part of the

same group and are having common promoters and accordingly, the amalgamation of

the Transferor Company into the Transferee Company pursuant to the Scheme would

result in streamlining the group corporate structure. The amagamation will further

enable to reduce the number of entities within the group that require to be administered

and also help realize operationa synergies which would aso result in simplification of

structure and operations and would benefit both the Transferor Company and the

Transferee Company in the following manner:

(i)  Reduction in operative and administrative cost;

(i) Economies of scale, improved capital allocation, optimum utilization of resources
and operational efficiency etc;

(iii) Elimination of inter-company holdings and layering of investments and business
operations,
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29.
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1.6

18

112

1.13

114

117

(iv) Simplification of management structure;
(v) Stronger asset base and infrastructure for future growth.

Salient Features of the Scheme

Salient features of the Scheme are, inter-alia, the following:

DEFINITIONS

In this Scheme, unless inconsistent with the subject or context, the following shall have
the meanings as provided herein:

“Act” means the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder and as may be
applicable.

“Accounting Standards” shall mean the Accounting Standards as notified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules,
2015 as amended from time to time, issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and the
other accounting principles generally accepted in India.

“Appointed Date” means the date from which this Scheme shall become operative
viz., opening business hours of 1st April, 2021, or any other date as the National
Company Law Tribunal may direct or approve under the relevant provisions of the Act.

“Effective Date” means the date or last of the dates on which the certified copy of the
order of the Tribunal sanctioning this Scheme is filed with the concerned Registrar of
Companies by the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company. Any referencesin
this Scheme to “upon the Scheme becoming effective” or “upon the Scheme coming
into effect” shall mean the “Effective Date”.

“Record Date” shall mean the date to be fixed by the Board of Directors of the
Transferee Company for the purpose of determining the shareholders of the Transferor
Companies to whom shares shall be allotted under the Scheme of Amalgamation.

“Stock Exchange(s)” shall mean stock exchange(s) on which the shares of the
Transferee Company are listed on the Effective Date.

“Transferee Company” means THE RAMARAJU SURGICAL COTTON MILLS
LIMITED, a company incorporated under the Indian Companies Act, 1913, and having
its registered office at PAC Ramasamy Raja Sala Ragjapalayam - 626 117, Tamil Nadu,
India

“Transferor Company” means SRI HARINI TEXTILES LIMITED, a company
incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956 and having its registered office at Sri
Bhavanam 102, P S K Nagar Rajapalayam, Virudhunagar — 626 108, Tamil Nadu,
India.

“Undertakings” shal mean and include the whole of the undertakings of the
Transferor Company, as a going concern, including their businesses, all secured and
unsecured debts, liabilities, duties and obligations together with all present and future
liabilities (including contingent liabilities) relatable to the Transferor Company and all
the assets, properties, rights, titles and benefits, whether movable or immovable, rea or
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personal, in possession or reversion, corporeal or incorporeal, tangible or intangible,
present or contingent and including but without being limited to land and building
(whether owned, leased, licensed), dl fixed and movable plant and machinery, vehicles,
fixed assets, work in progress, current assets, investments, reserves, provisions, funds,
licenses, permits, quotas, approvals, registrations, accreditations to trade and industrial
bodies, incentives, municipal permissions, regulatory permissions, consents or power of
every kind, nature and description whatsoever in connection with the operating or
relatable to the Transferor Company, copyrights, patents, trade names, trademarks and
other rights (including rights under any contracts, government contracts, memoranda of
understanding etc.) and licenses in respect thereof, applications for copyrights, patents,
trade names, trademarks, domain names, industrial designs, trade secrets, technical
know-how or intellectual property rights of any nature and any other intangibles, leases,
licenses, tenancy rights, premises, ownership flats, hire purchase and lease
arrangements, lending arrangements, benefits of security arrangements, computers,
office equipment, telephones, telexes, facsimile connections, communication facilities,
equipment and installations and utilities, electricity, water and other service
connections, benefits of agreements, contracts and arrangements, powers, authorities,
permits, alotments, approvals, consents, privileges, liberties, advantages, easements
and al the right, title, interest, goodwill, benefit and advantage, deposits, reserves,
provisions, advances, receivables, deposits, funds, cash, bank balances, accounts and all
other rights, benefits of all agreements, subsidies, grants, tax credits (including but not
limited to credits in respect of income tax, minimum aternate tax, fringe benefit tax,
taxes withheld at source by or on behaf of the Transferor Company, wealth tax, sales
tax, value added tax, turnover tax, GST/CENVAT credit, service tax, etc.), Software
Licences, Domain / Websites etc., in connection with or relating to the Transferor
Company, all staff, workmen and employees of the Transferor Company engaged in or
in relation to the business at respective offices and all provisions and benefits made in
relation to such employees including employee benefit funds but not limited to
provident funds, registrations and reserves etc. and other claims and powers, of
whatsoever nature and wheresoever situated belonging to or in the possession of or
granted in favour of or enjoyed by the Transferor Company, as on the Appointed Date.

TRANSFER OF UNDERTAKINGS
The Undertakings shall be transferred to and vested in or be deemed to be transferred to
and vested in the Transferee Company in the following manner:

Upon the Scheme becoming effective and with effect from the Appointed Date, the
Transferor Company shall stand amalgamated with the Transferee Company and whole
of the Undertakings of the Transferor Company comprising their entire business, all
assets and liabilities of whatsoever nature and wheresoever situated, including the
immovable properties, if any, shall, under the provisions of Section 230 to 232 and all
other applicable provisions, if any, of the Act, without any further act or deed (save as
provided in Sub-clauses (b), (c) and (d) below), be transferred to and vested in and/ or
be deemed to be transferred to and vested in the Transferee Company as a going
concern so as to become, as from the Appointed Date subject to the changes affecting
the same as on the Effective Date, the Undertakings of the Transferee Company and to
vest in the Transferee Company al the rights, title, interest or obligations of the
Transferor Company therein.
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(©)

(i)

(d)

Provided that for the purpose of giving effect to the vesting order passed under Section
230 to 232 and dl other applicable provisions, if any, of the Act, in respect of this
Scheme, the Transferee Company shall at any time pursuant to the orders on this
Scheme be entitled to get the recordal of the change in the title and the appurtenant
legal right(s) upon the vesting of such assets of the Transferor Company in accordance
with the provisions of Section 230 to 232 of the Act, at the office of the respective
Registrar of Assurances or any other concerned authority, where any such property is
situated.

All movable assets including cash in hand, if any, of the Transferor Company, capable
of passing by manual delivery or by endorsement and delivery, shall be so delivered or
endorsed and delivered, as the case may be, to the Transferee Company. Such delivery
shall be made on a date mutually agreed upon between the Boards of Directors of the
Transferor Company and the Transferee Company.

In respect of movables other than those specified in sub-clause (b) above, including
sundry debtors, outstanding loans and advances, if any, recoverablein cash or in kind or
for value to be received, bank balances and deposits, if any, with Government, Semi-
Government, local and other authorities and bodies, customers and other persons, the
following modus operandi for intimating third parties shall, to the extent possible, be
followed:

The Transferee Company shall give notice in such form as it may deem fit and proper,
to each person, debtor, loanee or depositee as the case may be, that pursuant to the
Tribunal having sanctioned the Scheme, the said debts, |oans, advances, bank balances
or deposits be paid or made good or held on account of the Transferee Company as the
person entitled thereto to the end and intent that the right of the Transferor Company to
recover or realise the same stands extinguished and that appropriate entry should be
passed in its books to record the aforesaid change;

The Transferor Company shall aso give notice in such form as it may deem fit and
proper to each person, debtor, loanee or depositee that pursuant to the Tribunal having
sanctioned the Scheme the said debt, |oan, advance or deposit be paid or made good or
held on account of the Transferee Company and that the right of the Transferor
Company to recover or realise the same stands extinguished.

With effect from the Appointed Date, al debts, liabilities, contingent liabilities, duties
and abligations of every kind, nature, description, whether or not provided for in the
books of accounts and whether disclosed or undisclosed in the balance sheet of the
Transferor Company shall also, under the provisions of Section 230 to 232 of the Act,
without any further act or deed, be transferred to or be deemed to be transferred to the
Transferee Company so as to become as from the Appointed Date the debts, liabilities,
contingent liabilities, duties and obligations of the Transferee Company and it shall not
be necessary to abtain the consent of any third party or other person who is a party to
any contract or arrangement by virtue of which such debts, liabilities, contingent
liabilities, duties and obligations have arisen, in order to give effect to the provisions of
this sub-clause. However, the Transferee Company may, at any time, after the coming
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into effect of this Scheme in accordance hereof, if so required, under any law or
otherwise, execute deeds of confirmation in favour of the secured creditors of the
Transferor Company or in favour of any other party to the contract or arrangement to
which the Transferor Company are a party or any writing, as may be necessary, in order
to give formal effect to the above provisions. The Transferee Company shall under the
provisions of the Scheme be deemed to be authorized to execute any such writings on
behalf of the Transferor Company as well as to implement and carry out al such
formalities and compliances referred to above.

The transfer and vesting of the Undertakings of the Transferor Company as aforesaid
shall be subject to the existing securities, charges and mortgages, if any subsisting, over
or in respect of the property and assets or any part thereof of the Transferor Company.

Provided however that any reference in any security documents or arrangements (to
which any Transferor Company is a party) pertaining to the assets of the Transferor
Company offered, or agreed to be offered, as security for any financial assistance or
obligations, shall be construed as reference only to the assets pertaining to the
Undertaking of the said Transferor Company as are vested in the Transferee Company
by virtue of the aforesaid Clauses, to the end and intent that, such security, charge and
mortgage shall not extend or be deemed to extend, to any of the other assets of the said
Transferor Company or any of the assets of the Transferee Company.\

Provided further that the securities, charges and mortgages (if any subsisting) over and
in respect of the assets or any part thereof of the Transferee Company shall continue
with respect to such assets or part thereof and this Scheme shall not operate to enlarge
such securities, charges or mortgages to the end and intent that such securities, charges
and mortgages shall not extend or be deemed to extend, to any of the assets of the
Transferor Company vested in the Transferee Company.

Provided always that this Scheme shall not operate to enlarge the security for any loan,
deposit or facility created by the Transferor Company which shall vest in the Transferee
Company by virtue of the amalgamation of the Transferor Company with the
Transferee Company and the Transferee Company shall not be obliged to create any
further or additional security therefore, after the amalgamation has become operative.

With effect from the Appointed Date and upon the Scheme becoming effective, all
consents, permissions, certificates, permits, quotas, rights, entitlements, licences
(including software licences), accreditations to trade and industrial bodies, privileges,
powers, facilities, authorities (including for operation of bank accounts), powers of
attorneys given by, issued to or executed in favour of the Transferor Company, quality
certifications and approvals, trademarks, patents, industrial designs and trade secrets,
product registrations, and other intellectual property and any other intangibles,
subsidies, rehabilitation schemes, specia status and other benefits or privileges (granted
by any Government body, local authority or by any other person) of every kind and
description of whatsoever nature in relation to the Transferor Company, or to the
benefit of which the Transferor Company may be eligible, or having effect immediately
before the Effective Date, shall be, and remain in, full force and effect in favour of the
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(h)

(i)
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(k)

Transferee Company, and may be enforced fully and effectually as if, instead of the
Transferor Company, the Transferee Company had been a beneficiary thereto.

In so far as the various incentives, subsidies, special status and other benefits or
privileges enjoyed, granted by any Government body, local authority or by any other
person and availed of by the Transferor Company are concerned, the same shall vest
with, and be available to, the Transferee Company on the same terms and conditions.

Loans or other obligations, if any, due between or amongst the Transferor Company
and the Transferee Company shall stand discharged and there shall be no liability in that
behalf. In so far as any shares, securities, debentures or notes issued by the Transferor
Company, and held by the Transferee Company and vice versa, the same shall, unless
sold or transferred by the said Transferor Company or the Transferee Company, as the
case may be, at any time prior to the Effective Date, stand cancelled as on the Effective
Date, and shall have no effect and the Transferor Company or the Transferee Company,
as the case may be, shall have no further obligation outstanding in that behalf.

The Transferor Company shall have taken all steps as may be necessary to ensure that
vacant, lawful, peaceful and unencumbered possession, right, title, interest of
immovable property, if any, is given to the Transferee Company.

Where any of the liabilities and obligations/assets attributed to the Transferor Company
on the Appointed Date has been discharged / sold by the Transferor Company after the
Appointed Date and prior to the Effective Date, such discharge/sale shall be deemed to
have been for and on behalf of the Transferee Company. All loans raised and used and
all liabilities and obligations incurred by the Transferor Company for operations of the
Undertaking after the Appointed Date and prior to the Effective Date shall be deemed to
have been raised, used or incurred for and on behalf of the Transferee Company, and to
that extent they are outstanding on the Effective Date, shall also without any further act
or deed be and stand transferred to the Transferee Company and shall become the
liabilities and obligations of the Transferee Company, which shall be liable to meet,
discharge and satisfy the same.

The entitlement to various benefits under incentive schemes and policies in relation to
the Undertaking of the Transferor Company shall stand transferred to, and be vested in,
and/or be deemed to have been transferred to, and vested in, the Transferee Company
together with all benefits, entitlements and incentives of any nature whatsoever. Such
entitlements shall include (but shall not be limited to) income-tax, unexpired credit for
minimum alternate tax, minimum alternate tax, fringe benefit tax, sales tax, value added
tax, turnover tax, excise duty, service tax, customs, goods and service tax and other
incentives under the relevant indirect tax laws in relation to the Undertaking of the
Transferor Company to be claimed by the Transferee Company with effect from the
Appointed Date as if the Transferee Company was originadly entitled to al such
benefits under such incentive scheme and/or policies, subject to continued compliance
by the Transferee Company of al the terms and conditions subject to which the benefits
under such incentive schemes were made available to the Transferor Company.

22



()

(m)

4.2

43

4.4

Since each of the permissions, approvas, consents, sanctions, remissions (including
remittance under income-tax, minimum alternate tax, fringe benefit tax, salestax, value
added tax, turnover tax, excise duty, service tax, goods and service tax, customs),
specia reservations, sales tax remissions, holidays, incentives, grants, subsidies,
concessions and other authorizations relating to the Undertaking of the Transferor
Company, shall stand transferred under this scheme to the Transferee Company, the
Transferee Company shall file the relevant intimations, if any, for the record of the
statutory authorities who shall take them on file, pursuant to the Scheme coming into
effect.

From the Effective Date and till such time that the names of the bank accounts of the
Transferor Company are replaced with that of the Transferee Company, the Transferee
Company shall be entitled to operate the bank accounts of the Transferor Company, in
its name, in so far as may be necessary.

CONTRACTS, DEEDS, BONDS AND OTHER INSTRUMENTS

Subject to the other provisions contained in the Scheme, all contracts, deeds, bonds,
agreements, insurance policies and other instruments of whatsoever nature to which the
Transferor Company is a party, subsisting or having effect immediately before this
arrangement under this Scheme, shall be, in full force and effect, against or in favour of
the Transferee Company, and may be enforced as fully and as effectively as if instead
of the Transferor Company, the Transferee Company had been a party thereto. The
Transferee Company shall enter into and / or issue and / or execute deeds, writings or
confirmations or enter into any tripartite arrangement, confirmations or novations to
which the Transferor Company will, if necessary, aso be party in order to give formal
effect to the provisions of this clause, if so required or become necessary.

As a conseguence of the amalgamation of the Transferor Company with the Transferee
Company in accordance with this Scheme, the recording of change in name from the
Transferor Company to the Transferee Company, whether for the purposes of any
licence, permit, approval or any other reason, or whether for the purposes of any
transfer, registration, mutation or any other reason, shall be carried out by the concerned
statutory or regulatory or any other authority without the requirement of payment of any
transfer or registration fee or any other charge or imposition whatsoever.

The Transferee Company may, at any time, after the coming into the effect of this
Scheme in accordance with the provisions hereof, if so required, under any law or
otherwise, execute deeds of confirmation in favour of any party to any contract or
arrangement to which the Transferor Company is a party or any writings, as may be
necessary, to be executed in order to give formal effect to the above provisions. The
Transferee Company shall under the provisions of the Scheme be deemed to be
authorized to execute any such writings on behaf of the Transferor Company,
implement or carry out all such formalities or compliances referred to above on the part
of the Transferor Company, as the case may be, to be carried out or performed.

For the removal of doubts, it is expressly made clear that the dissolution of the

Transferor Company without the process of winding up as contemplated hereinafter,
shall not, except to the extent set out in the Scheme, affect the previous operation of any
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b)

d)

contract, agreement, deed or any instrument or beneficial interest to which the
Transferor Company is a party thereto and shall not affect any right, privilege,
obligations or liability, acquired, or deemed to be acquired prior to Appointed Date and
al such references in such agreements, contracts and instruments to the Transferor
Company shall be construed as reference only to the Transferee Company with effect
from the Appointed Date.

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

All suits, actions and proceedings of whatsoever nature by or against the Transferor
Company on the Appointed Date shall be transferred to the name of the Transferee
Company and the same shall be continued and enforced by or against the Transferee
Company, to the exclusion of the Transferor Company, as the case may be.

If proceedings are taken againgt the Transferor Company, in respect of matters referred
to above, it shall defend the same in accordance with the advice of, and at the cost of,
the Transferee Company, as the case may be from Appointed Date till Effective Date,
and the latter shall reimburse and indemnify such Transferor Company, against al
liabilities and obligationsincurred by the said Transferor Company in respect thereof.

STAFF, WORKMEN AND EMPLOYEES

All the executives, staff, workmen, and other employees in the service of the Transferor
Company, immediately preceding the Effective Date, under this Scheme shall become
the executives, staff, workmen, and other employees of the Transferee Company, on the
basis that:

Their services shall have been continuous and shall not have been interrupted by reason
of such transfer as if such transfer is effected under Section 25FF of the Industrial
Disputes Act, 1947;

The terms and conditions of service applicable to the said staff, workmen, and other
employees after such transfer shall not in any way be less favourable to them than those
applicable to them immediately before the transfer;

In the event of retrenchment or termination of such staff, workmen, or other employees,
the Transferee Company shall be liable to pay compensation in accordance with law on
the basis that the services of the staff, workmen, or other employees shall have been
continuous and shall not have been interrupted by reason of such transfer; and

It is provided that as far as the Provident Fund, Gratuity, Pension, Superannuation Fund
or any other special funds that are applicable to the employees of the Transferee
Company and existing in the Transferee Company for the benefit of the staff, workmen
and other employees of the Transferee Company shall also be extended to the
employees of the Transferor Company upon the Scheme becoming finally effective.
The said benefits shall be extended to the employees of the Transferor Company even if
such benefits were not available to the employees during their tenure in the Transferor
Company, by virtue of non-applicability of the relevant provisions to the Transferor
Company. Notwithstanding what is stated herein above in respect of applicability of
Employees Provident Fund to the employees of Transferor Company with retrospective

24



8.1
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8.5

8.6

effect from a date to be determined by the Board of Directors of Transferee company
the extension of benefit to the employees of Transferor Company shall be subject to the
provisions of The Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952
and the approvals of the authorities concerned for giving effect to the implementation
date. It is the aim and the intent of the Scheme that all the rights, duties, powers and
obligations, in whatsoever nature, that are available to the employees of the Transferee
Company shall also be available to all the employees of the Transferor Company in
relation to Provident Fund, Gratuity and Pension and/ or Superannuation Fund or any
other special fund, however subject to the provisions of the relevant and applicable
statutes.

CONDUCT OF BUSINESS OF THE TRANSFEROR COMPANY TILL
EFFECTIVE DATE

With effect from the Appointed Date and up to and including the Effective Date:

The Transferor Company shall carry on, and be deemed to have been carrying on, all
business activities and shall be deemed to have been held for and on account of, and in
trust for, the Transferee Company.

All profits or income or taxes, including but not limited to income tax, minimum
alternate tax (including unexpired credit for minimum alternate tax), fringe benefit tax,
advance taxes, tax deducted at source by or on behalf of the Transferor Company,
wealth tax, sales tax, vaue added tax, excise duty, service tax, goods and service tax,
customs duty, refund, reliefs, etc, accruing or arising to the Transferor Company, or
losses arising or expenditure incurred by them, on and from Appointed Date upto the
Effective Date, shall for all purposes be treated as, and be deemed to be treated as, the
profits or income or losses or expenditure or the said taxes of the Transferee Company.

The Transferor Company shall carry on their business activities with proper prudence
and diligence and shall not, without prior written consent of the Transferee Company,
dienate, charge or otherwise deal with or dispose off any of their business
undertaking(s) or any part thereof (except in the ordinary course of business or pursuant
to any pre-existing obligations undertaken by the Transferor Company prior to the
Appointed Date).

The Transferee Company shall also be entitled, pending the sanction of the Scheme, to
apply to the Central Government, State Government, and all other agencies,
departments and statutory authorities concerned, wherever necessary, for such consents,
approvals and sanctions which the Transferee Company may require including the
registration, approvals, exemptions, reliefs, etc., as may be required / granted under any
law for time being in force for carrying on business by the Transferee Company.

The Transferor Company shall not declare any dividend, between the Appointed Date
and the Effective Date, without the prior written consent of the Transferee Company.

The Transferor Company, after filing the Scheme with the Tribunal, shall not make any
modification to their capital structure, either by an increase (by issue of rights shares,
bonus shares, convertible debentures or otherwise), decrease, reclassification, sub-
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8.7

8.8

10.
10.1.1.

10.1.2.

10.1.3.

division or reorganisation or in any other manner, whatsoever, except by mutua
consent of the Boards of Directors of the Transferor Company and the Transferee
Company.

The Transferor Company shall not vary, except in the ordinary course of business, the
terms and conditions of the employment of their employees without the consent of the
Board of Directors of the Transferee Company.

Upon the Scheme coming into effect, any taxes paid under the indirect tax laws such as
under the Central Goods and Services Tax Act or under any previous or applicable law
prevalent arising out of the transactions entered into amongst the Transferor Company
and / or with the Transferee Company post the Appointed date shall on and from the
Effective Date be refunded to the Transferee Company, or in cases where in respect of
the inter-company transactions, the Transferor Company/ Transferee Company has
availed GST/CENVAT Credit / VAT credit of the taxes charged, the Transferee
Company at its option may not seek for refund and can choose to retain the same as a
GST/CENVAT Credit/ VAT credit, subject to the rules and regulations under the
respective indirect tax law.

CONSIDERATION:

Upon the Scheme becoming effective, in consideration of the transfer and vesting of the
Undertaking of the Transferor Company in the Transferee Company in terms of the
Scheme, the consideration shall be discharged by the Transferee Company in the
following manner:

“The equity shareholders of Transferor Company as on the Record Date shall be
allotted 34 (Thirty Four) Equity Shares of Rs.10- each at a price of Rs. 1,459/- (Rupees
One Thousand Four Hundred and Fifty-Nine Only) per Equity Share (including share
premium of Rs. 1,449/- per Equity Share) credited as fully paid up shares of the
Transferee Company in respect of every 1,000 (One Thousand) Equity Shares of Rs.10/-
each fully paid up held by them in the Transferor Company.”

The Transferee Company holds 14,90,000 equity shares of Rs.10/- each in the
Transferor Company. Upon the Scheme of Amalgamation coming into effect, the equity
shares held by the Transferee Company in the Transferor Company shall stand
cancelled without further act or deed. It is further clarified that in consequence of this
cancellation which isincidenta to the Scheme of Amalgamation, no Equity Shares shall
be issued by the Transferee Company in respect of equity shares of the Transferor
Company held by the Transferee Company.

Upon the Equity Shares being issued and alotted, as aforesaid by the Transferee
Company, the Equity Shares issued by the Transferor Company and held by its
shareholders, whether in demateriaized or physical form, shall be deemed to have been
automatically cancelled and of no effect.

The Equity Shares to be issued and allotted by the Transferee Company as aforesaid in
terms of this Scheme shall be subject to the provisions of the Memorandum and Articles
of Association of the Transferee Company and shall rank pari-passu in all respects with
the existing Equity Shares of the Transferee Company after the Effective Date including
in respect of dividend, if any, that may be declared by the Transferee Company on or
after the Effective Date.
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10.1.5.

10.1.6.

10.1.7.

10.1.8.

10.1.9.

Any fractional share entitlement arising out such allotment which is greater than or
equal to 0.5 shall be rounded off to the next integer, and any fractiona share entitlement
arising out such alotment which is lesser that 0.5 shall be rounded off to the previous
integer.

The Equity Shares shall be issued in dematerialised form to those shareholders who
hold shares of the Transferor Company in dematerialised form, in to the account in
which the shares of the Transferor Company are held or such other account as is
intimated by the shareholders to the Transferor Company before the Record Date. All
those shareholders of the Transferor Company who hold the shares in physical form
shall receive the Equity Sharesin dematerialised form, provided that the details of their
accounts with the depository participant are intimated in writing to the Transferor
Company before the Record Date. In the Event the Transferor Company or the
Transferee Company does not receive details of the accounts with the depository
participant from such shareholders before the Record Date, the Transferee Company
shall credit its Equity Shares to the extent of entitlement of such shareholders into a
separate demat escrow account till the time such shareholders furnish valid details of
their demat account(s) or the Board of Directors of the Transferee Company shall deal
with the entitlement of such shareholders in such other manner as they may deem to be
in the best interests of such shareholders in accordance with the applicable laws.

The Equity Shares to be issued by the Transferee Company to the members of the
Transferor Company pursuant to clause 10.1 of this Scheme, in respect of any shares
held in Transferor Company which are held in abeyance under the provisions of Section
126 of the Act or otherwise, pending allotment or settlement of dispute, by the order of
this Tribunal or otherwise, be held in abeyance by Transferee Company.

The Board of the Transferee Company shall, if and to the extent required apply for and
obtain any approvas from the concerned government/regulatory authorities and
undertake necessary compliance for the issue and alotment of Equity Shares to the
shareholders of Transferor Company pursuant to Clause 10.1 of this Scheme.

The equity Shares to be issued to the members of the Transferor Company pursuant to
Clause 10.1.1 of this Scheme, will be listed and/or admitted to trading on al the Stock
Exchange(s) on which the equity shares of the Transferee Company are listed on the
Effective Date. Further it is intended that the Transferee Company, at its sole discretion
may also evaluate and endeavour to list the said Equity Shares on other stock
exchanges, subject to satisfaction of all applicable laws and regulations. The Transferee
Company shall enter into such arrangements and provide such confirmations and/or
undertaking as maybe required in accordance with applicable laws and regulations for
complying with the formalities of the Stock Exchange(s). The Equity Shares of the
Transferee Company allotted pursuant to the Scheme shall remain frozen in the
depository’s system till listing and trading permissions are given by the Stock
Exchange(s).

In the event of there being any pending share transfer, whether lodged or outstanding, of
any shareholder of the Transferor Company, the Board of the Transferor Company shall
be empowered, even subsequent to the Effective Date, to effectuate such transfer, as if
such changes in the register holder were operative from the Effective Date, in order to
remove any difficulties arising on account of the transfer of shares after the Scheme
becomes effective.

10.1.10.Upon the issue and allotment of the Equity Shares, the members of the Transferor

Company shall be classified as the Promoter, Promoter Group or public, as the case may
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be, of the Transferee Company in accordance with Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018.

10.1.11.The approval of this Scheme by the shareholders of the Transferee Company shall be

deemed to be the due compliance of the provisions of sections 42 and 62 of the Act and
the other relevant and applicable provisions of the Act for the issuance and allotment of
Equity Shares by the Transferee Company to the shareholders of Transferor Company,
as provided in the Scheme.

10.1.12.The approva of this Scheme by the shareholders of the Transferor Company and the

Transferee Company under sections 230 to 232 of the Act, shall be deemed to have the
approval under sections 13, 14, 180 and 186 and other applicable provisions of the Act
and any other consent and approvals required in this regard.

10.1.13.In the event that the Transferor Company (with the express consent of the Board of

11.

11.1.

11.2.

11.3.

11.4.

11.5.

Directors of the Transferee Company) and/or the Transferee Company restructure its
share capital by way of share split/consolidation/ issue of bonus shares during the
pendency of this Scheme, the share exchange ratio shall be adjusted accordingly to take
into account effect of such corporate action.

CLUBBING OF AUTHORIZED CAPITAL AND THE ALTERATION TO THE
OBJECTS CLAUSE OF THE MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION OF THE
TRANSFEREE COMPANY:

Upon the Scheme becoming fully effective, the authorised share capital of the
Transferor Company shall stand combined with the authorised share capital of the
Transferee Company. Filing fees and stamp duty, if any, paid by the Transferor
Company on their respective authorised share capital, shall be deemed to have been so
paid by the Transferee Company on the combined authorised share capital and
accordingly, the Transferee Company shall not be required to pay any fee/ stamp duty
for itsincreased authorised share capital.

Clause V of the Memorandum of Association of the Transferee Company shall, without
any further act, instrument or deed, be and stand altered, modified and amended
pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Act by deleting the existing Clause and
replacing it by the following:

V. The Authorized Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 10,00,00,000/- (Rupees Ten
Crores Only) divided into 1,00,00,000 (One Crore) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees
Ten Only) each.

The approva of this Scheme under Sections 230 to 232 of the Act shall be deemed to
have the approval under sections 13, 14, 61 and 64 of the Act, and other applicable
provisions of the Act and any other consents and approvals required in this regard.

Upon the Scheme becoming fully effective, the Object Clause of the Memorandum of
Association of the Transferee Company shall, without any further act, instrument or
deed, be atered, modified and amended pursuant to the Applicable provisions of the
Act by inserting new sub-clauses, as mentioned in Schedule B to this Scheme,
immediately after the existing sub-clauses under Clause Il of the Memorandum of
Association of the Transferee Company.

It shall be deemed that the shareholders of the Transferee Company have resolved and
accorded all relevant consents under Section 13 of the Act. It is clarified that there will
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12.1.

12.2.

12.3.

12.4.

12.5.

12.6.

12.7.

12.8.

be no need to pass a separate shareholder’s resolution as required under section 13 of
the Act. The amendments to the memorandum of Association of the Transferee
Company shall be effected without any further act or deed and shall be treated as an
integral part of the Scheme.

ACCOUNTING TREATMENT

Upon this Scheme becoming effective and with effect from the Appointed Date, the
Transferee Company shall account for the Amalgamation in its books as under:

The Amalgamation of the Transferor Company with the Transferee Company shall be
accounted for in accordance with the Acquisition method prescribed under the Indian
Accounting Standard (Ind AS) — 103 - “Business Combination” and other applicable
Indian Accounting Standard(s) issued under Section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (India Account Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended from time to time. For
this purpose, the Appointed Date shall be treated as the Acquisition Date as referred in
Ind AS - 103.

All the assets, including but not limited to fixed assets, intangibles and any other assets,
recorded in the books or otherwise, of the Transferor Company and transferred to and
vested in the Transferee Company pursuant to the Scheme, subject to Clause 12.4, shall
be recorded by the Transferee Company at their acquisition-date fair values, as may be
determined by the Board of Directors of the Transferee Company.

All liabilities of the Transferor Company transferred to and vested in the Transferee
Company, subject to Clause 12.4, whether recorded in the books or not, shall be
recorded by the Transferee Company at their acquisition-date fair values, as may be
determined by the Board of Directors of the Transferee Company.

The amount of inter-company balances, amounts or investments, if any, between the
Transferor Company and the Transferee Company, appearing in the books of accounts
of the Transferee Company and Transferor Company, if any, shall stand cancelled
without any further act or deed upon the Scheme coming into effect and with effect
from the Appointed Date and the obligation in respect thereof shall come to an end.

The face value of the Equity Shares of the Transferee Company issued to the members
of Transferor Company shall be credited to the Equity Share Capital account and the
amount of share premium of the Equity Shares shall be credited to the securities
premium account in the books of the Transferee Company.

Costs, expenses and duties incurred in connection with the Scheme and to put it into
operation/implementation of the Scheme shall be dealt by the Transferee Company, as
per Relevant Accounting Standards & provisions of the Income Tax Act.

The net difference between the acquisition date fair value of net assets of the Transferor
Company acquired by the Transferee Company and the consideration transferred by the
Transferee  Company shall be recongnised as Goodwill or gain on bargan
purchase/capital reserves, as the case may be, in the books of the Transferee Company.

To comply with the relevant laws, the Income Tax Act, 1961 and applicable Accounting
Standards, the Transferee Company (by its Board of Directors) may alter or modify the
provisions of the Clauses 12.1 to 12.7, as they may deem fit and consider necessary, to
settle any question arising out of the Scheme.
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13.2.

13.3.

13.4.

CONSEQUENTIAL MATTERSRELATING TO TAX

Upon the Scheme coming into effect, all taxes cess duties, direct and/or indirect,
payable by or on behalf of the Transferor Company from the Appointed Date onwards
including all or any refunds and claims, credits, pertaining to any income tax , advance
tax, service tax, goods and service tax including refunds or claims pending with the
Revenue Authorities and including the right to claim credit for minimum aternate tax
and carry forward of accumulated losses and unabsorbed depreciation including in
respect of income-tax subject to the provisions of Section 72A of the Income Tax Act,
1961, shdll, for al purposes, be treated as the tax/ cess/ duty, liabilities or refunds,
clams and accumulated losses and unabsorbed depreciation of the Transferee
Company. Accordingly, upon the Scheme becoming effective, the Transferee Company
is expressly permitted to revise, if it becomes necessary, its Income tax returns, Sales
tax returns, Excise & Cenvat returns, service tax returns, GST returns, other tax returns,
and to claim refundg/ credits, pursuant to the provisions of this Scheme. Also, the loss
brought forward and unabsorbed depreciation as per books of accounts of the Transferor
Company as on the Appointed Date would be deemed to be loss brought forward and
unabsorbed depreciation as per books of accounts of the Transferee Company. The
Transferee Company is also expressly permitted to claim refunds / credits in respect of
any transaction between the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company.

Provided further that upon the Scheme becoming effective, the Transferee Company is
also expressly permitted to revise, if it becomes necessary, its income tax returns and
related TDS Certificates, including TDS Certificates relating to transactions between
the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company and to claim refunds, advance tax
and withholding tax credits, benefit of credit for minimum aternate tax and carry
forward of accumulated losses etc., pursuant to the provisions of this Scheme.

In accordance with the CENVAT Credit Rules framed under the Centra Excise Act,
1944, as are prevalent on the Effective Date, the unutilized credits relating to excise
duties / service tax / VAT/ goods and service tax paid on inputs/capital goods input
services lying in the accounts of the undertakings of the Transferor Company shall be
permitted to be transferred to the credit of the Transferee Company, as if al such
unutilized credits were lying to the account of the Transferee Company. The Transferee
Company shall accordingly be entitled to set off al such unutilized credits against the
excise duty/ servicetax payable by it.

In accordance with the State Value Added Tax/ sales tax laws and Central and State
Goods and Service Tax laws, as are prevaent on the Effective Date, the unutilized
credits, if any, rdating to VAT/GST paid on inputs/capital goods lying in the accounts
of the Undertakings of the Transferor Company shall be permitted to be transferred to
the credit of the Transferee Company, asif al such unutilized credits were lying to the
account of the Transferee Company. The Transferee Company shall accordingly be
entitled to set off all such unutilized credits against the VAT/ CST/GST payable by it.

Upon the Scheme coming into effect, any taxes paid under the indirect tax laws such as
Service tax Law, Vaue Added Tax Act, Goods and Services Tax laws (prevalent in
respective state) etc. arising out of the transactions entered into between the Transferor
Company and the Transferee Company post the Appointed date shall on and from the
Effective Date be refunded to the Transferee Company, or in cases where in respect of
the inter-company transactions, the Transferor Company / Transferee Company has
availed CENVAT Credit / VAT credit / GST Credit of the taxes charged, the
Transferee Company at its option may not seek for refund and can choose to retain the
same as a CENVAT Credit / VAT credit / GST Credit, subject to the rules and
regulations under the respective indirect tax law.
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15.1.

30.

31.

32.

The Scheme has been drawn up to comply with the conditions relating to
“Amalgamation” as specified under Section 2(1B) of the Income-Tax Act, 1961. If any
terms or provisions of the Scheme are found or interpreted to be inconsistent with the
provisions of the said Section of the Income-Tax Act, 1961, at a later date including
resulting from an amendment of law or for any other reasons whatsoever, the provisions
of the said Section of the Income-Tax Act, 1961, shall prevail and the Scheme shall
stand modified to the extent determined necessary to comply with Section 2(1B) of the
Income-Tax Act, 1961. Such modification will however not affect the other parts of the
Scheme.

Upon the Scheme coming into effect, the Transferee Company shall make and file dl
necessary applications, documents and adhere to all statutory compliances as may be
applicable and necessary laid down under the relevant Central or State laws,
regulations, rules in order to facilitate the implementation of the Scheme of
Amalgamation.

DISSOLUTION OF TRANSFEROR COMPANY

Subject to an order being made by the Tribunal under Section 232 of the Act, the
Transferor Company shall be dissolved without the process of winding up on the
Scheme becoming effective in accordance with the provisions of the Act and the Rules
made thereunder.

The material provisions set out above being only the salient features of the Scheme
of Amalgamation at Annexure — 1, the Equity Shareholders are requested to read
the entire text of the Scheme as attached hereto to get fully acquainted with the
provisionsther eof.

SUMMARY OF SHARE EXCHANGE RATIO AND FAIRNESS OPINION
REPORT SUMMARY OF SHARE EXCHANGE RATIO AND FAIRNESS
OPINION REPORT

The Valuation Report dated September 27, 2021 provided by Den Valuation (OPC)
Private Limited, Registered Valuer attached herwith as Annexure — 2. The Fairness
Opinion Report dated September 27, 2021 attached as Annexure — 3 by Vivro Financia
Services Private Limited, Merchant Banker confirms that Share Exchange Ratio under
the present Schemeto be fair.

GENERAL

MSE was appointed as the designated stock exchange by the Transferee Company for
the purpose of coordinating with the SEBI, pursuant to the SEBI Circular. The
Transferee Company has received observation letter regarding the Scheme from MSE,
on January 28, 2022. In terms of the observation letter dated January 28, 2022, MSE,
inter aia, conveyed their no adverse observation for filing the Scheme with NCLT.
Copy of the observation letter, dated January 28, 2022 received from M SE, is enclosed
asAnnexure - 4.

The Audited standalone financial statements of the Transferor Company for the
financial year ended on March 31, 2022 (Annexure 5A) of the Applicant Transferor
Company and audited standalone financial results and audited consolidated financia

31



33.

35.

36.

37.

38.

results of the Transferee Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2022
(Annexure 5B) of the Applicant Transferee Company indicates that it is in a solvent
position and would be able to meet liabilities as they arise in the course of business.

There are no proceedings/investigation pending against any of the Applicant Transferor
Company under Sections 210 — 217, 219, 220, 223, 224, 225, 226 & 227 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) and/or Sections 235 to 251 of the Companies Act, 1956
and the like. There are no winding up proceedings pending against the Applicant
Transferor Company as of date.

As far as the equity shareholders of the Applicant Company are concerned (promoter
shareholders, there will be no dilution in their shareholding in company and their rights
and interests would not be prejudicially affected by the Scheme. The Scheme is not
expected to have any adverse effect on the KMPs, Directors, Promoters, Creditors and
Employees of the Applicant Company, wherever relevant.

Report adopted by the Board of Directors of the Transferor Company, at their meetings
held on September 27, 2021 and meeting of the Transferee Company held on
September 27, 2021 pursuant to the provisions of Section 232(2)(c) of the Companies
Act, 2013 explaining the effect of Scheme on each class of Shareholders, Key
Managerial Personnel and Promotersis annexed herewith as Annexure - 6.

None of the Directors, KMPs (as defined under the Act and rules framed thereunder) of
the Transferor Company and their relatives (as defined under the Act and rules framed
thereunder) has any interest in the Scheme except to the extent of their shareholding in
the Transferee Company if any. Save as aforesaid, none of the said Directors or the
KMPs or their respective relatives has any material interest in the Scheme. Transferor
Company has not issued any debentures and accordingly, do not have Debenture
Trustee.

None of the Directors, KMPs (as defined under the Act and rules framed thereunder) of
the Transferee Company and their respective relatives (as defined under the Act and
rules framed thereunder) has any interest in the Scheme except to the extent of their
shareholding in the Transferee Company, if any. Save as aforesaid, none of the said
Directors or the KMPs or their respective relatives has any materia interest in the
Scheme. The Transferee Company has not issued any debentures and accordingly, does
not have Debenture Trustee.

The Applicant Transferor Company has sent copy of the Scheme to the Jurisdictional
Registrar of Companies.

Amount dueto unsecured creditors

The amount due to unsecured creditors as on July 20, 2022 is as under:

ﬁd. Particulars AmOL(JlgtsldiLr':)a
1. | Rajapalayam Mills Limited 9,50,00,000
2. | The Ramargju Surgica Cotton Mills Limited 30,86,70,176
3. | Parekh Textiles Pvt Ltd 65,86,797
4, | N.R.G.Tex 37,70,772
5. | Sri Ramco Spinners 12,79,833
6. | Manga Singh Bros Pvt.Ltd. 5,21,489
7. | Sree Shreshta Packaging Industries 2,96,264
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39.

40.

41.

8. | Rajapalayam Mills Limited 2,29,392
9. | General Hardwaste Co 2,00,000
10. | Groz Beckert Carding India Private Limited 1,80,321
11. | Veeranjaneya Polymers 1,73,106
12. | Balaji Packaging Products 1,68,504
13. | M/S Tata Power Trading Company Ltd 1,30,419
14. | Sri Hanuman Agencies 66,331
15.| T.S.R. Cotton Ginning Mill 25,000
16. | Sai Nagarjuna Cotton Mill 25,000
17. | Vabavsri Solutions(l) Pvt Ltd 24,254
18. | Vinod Marketing 23,625
19. | Hari Santosh Electricals 22,538
20. | M.S.Jagannathan & N.Krishnaswami 22,500
21. | Andavar Engineering Works 22,420
22. | TEK Process Engineers 19,364
23. | Matrix Edge Computers 19,126
24. | Coimbatore Air Control Systems Pvt. Ltd. 19,116
25. | M.M.Aqua Systems 17,217
26. | Sudhakar Offset Printers& Xerox 16,080
27. | Star Battery Works 14,000
28. | Tarang Electric Co 9,204
29. | Universal Powertech Engineering 8,974
30. | N.Venu Babu (Venu Computers) 8,750
31. | Reka Tex Traders. 7,679
32. | Shree Ramachandra Traders 7,281
33.| Sri Bagji Electricals 6,278
34. | Accounts Officer (Cash) Bsnl Gmtd 5,911
35. | Sri Tirumala Enterprises 4720
36. | The Professional Couriers, 4,472
37. | Jyoti Bearings Mill Stores 3,929
38. | Navata Road Transport 2,630
39. | Sumanlal J. Shah & Co 2,289
40. | Krish Tex Engineering Corporation 1,628
41. | Sri Subramanyeswara Traders 1,300
42. | Sri Ramadas Motor Transport Ltd 1,100
43.| VRL Logisticdltd. 930
44. | Hanuman Enterprises 550

Total 41,76,21,269

The statutory auditors of the Transferee Company and the Transferor Companies have
confirmed that the accounting treatment as proposed in the Scheme is in conformity
with the accounting standard prescribed under Section 133 of the Act. The certificates
issued by the respective Statutory Auditors of the Companies are open for inspection.

In the event that the Scheme is withdrawn in accordance with its terms, the Scheme
shall stand revoked, cancelled and be of no effect and become null and void.

DOCUMENTSAVAILABLE FOR INSPECTION

Following documents are also available for inspection by the Equity Shareholders of the
Applicant Company at the Registered Office of the Company and/or from the office of
its Advocate Mr. Pawan Jhabakh having its office situated at No.115, 1% Floor, Luz
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Church Road, Mylapore, Chennai — 600 004, Tamil Nadu, India up to one day prior to
the date of the Meeting between 11.00 am. to 5.00 p.m. on al working days (except
Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays):

Copy of Memorandum and Articles of Association of al the Applicant Company;

Copy of Annua Report for the last three financial years ending on March 31, 2019,
March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2021 of the Transferor Company and Transferee
Company;

Audited standalone financial statements of the Transferor Company for the financia
year ended on March 31, 2022.

Audited standalone financial results and audited consolidated financial results of the
Transferee Company for the financia year ended on March 31, 2022.

Copy of the Scheme of Amalgamation;

Copy of Board Resolution dated September 27, 2021 passed by the Board of Directors
of the Transferor Company and Board Resolution dated September 27, 2021 passed by
the Board of Directors of the Transferee Company;

Copy of the report dated September 27, 2021 issued by the M/s. Den Valuation (OPC)
Private Limited, Registered Vauer confirming share exchange ratio of the shares to be
alotted by the Transferee Company to the shareholders of the Transferor Companies;
Copy of the Fairness Opinion Report dated September 27, 2021 issued by the Vivro
Financial Services Private Limited, Merchant Banker confirming share exchange ratio
derived by M/s. Den Valuation (OPC) Private Limited;

Certificate issued by the Statutory Auditors under Section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013 of the Applicant Company in respect of the accounting treatment proposed in the
Scheme;

Copy of the Order of the Tribunal dated July 13, 2022 passed in C A (CAA) No. 35 oF
2022 directing, inter-alia, to convene a meeting of the Equity Shareholders of the
Applicant Transferor Company;

Observation letter dated January 28, 2022 issued by M SE to Transferee Company; and
Other documents relating to the matters incidental to and arising out of the proposed

Scheme of Amalgamation.

Considering the rationale and benefits, the Applicant Transferor Company recommends
the Scheme for approva of Equity Shareholders as it is in the best interest of the
Company and its stakeholders.

OTHERS

For the purpose of amagamation, Share Exchange Report dated September 27, 2021
has been obtained from M/s. Den Vauation (OPC) Private Limited, Registered Valuer,
describing the basis adopted by them for giving fairness opinion on recommended share
exchange ratio and Fairness Opinion Report has been obtained from Vivro Financial
Services Private Limited, Merchant Banker confirming the share exchange ratio
determined by M/s. Den Vauation (OPC) Private Limited, Registered Vauer to befair.

In compliance with the provisions of Section 232(2)(c) of the Act, the Board of
Directors of Transferor Company and the Transferee Company, in their separate
meetings held on September 27, 2021 and September 27, 2021 respectively, have
adopted a report, inter aia, explaining effect of the Scheme on each class of
shareholders, KMP, promoters and among others. The Transferor Company and the
Transferee Company does not have any depositors, deposit trustee and debenture
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trustee. There will be no adverse effect on account of the Scheme as far as the
employees and creditors of the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company are
concerned.

45, In view of the information provided hereinabove and the documents attached along with
this Notice and Explanatory Statement, the requirement of Section 232(2) of the
Companies Act, 2013 have been complied with. Further the Applicant Transferor
Company the Notices of this meeting is also going to be advertised in English Daily
“Business Standard” (All India Edition), “Nav Bharat Times” (All India Edition) and
“Makkal Kural” in Tamil (Tamil Nadu Edition) following the directions given in the
NCLT Order.

Sd/-
P.J. Ramkumar Rajha
Chairman appointed for the meeting

Dated this 27" day of July, 2022

Registered Office Address:
Sri Bhavanam 102, P SK Nagar Rajapalayam,
Virudhunagar — 626 108, Tamil Nadu, India

Phone: 08654-283933/283988;
Email: apunit@ramcotex.com;
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Annexure 1

SCHEME OF AMALGAMATION
OF
SRI HARINI TEXTILES LIMITED
WITH
THE RAMARAJU SURGICAL COTTON MILLS LIMITED
AND
THEIR RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDERS AND CREDITORS

(Under Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the relevant Rules made thereunder)

PREAMDLE
This Scheme of Amalgamation (the “Scheme” as more particulary defined heremafter)
i presented under Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies
Act, 213 read with the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalmamations)
Rules, 2016, The Scheme provides for amalpamation of % Harini Textiles Limited
("SHTL” / "Transferor Company™) with The Ramarsju Surgical Cotton Mills Limired
("TR3CML" / "“Transferee Company™). This Scheme also provides for various other
matters consequential 1o or otherwise integrally connected herewith.

D OF TH ES

(A)  SR1 HARINI TEXTILES LIMITED (CIN - U17111TN2005PLC0S7807)
(hereinafter referred to as the “Transferor Company”) is a Public Unlisted
Company mcorporated on the 13* day of Octeber, 2005 under the Companics
Act, 1956 and having = registered office sitvated ar Mo 102, So Bhavanam,
P.5.K.Nagar, Rappalayam, Tamil Nadu, 626108, The Transferor Campany s
engaged, futer ade, in the business of running an established Open End Yam
manufactuning unit with capacity of 1440 Rotors st Thinsmalagid Village,
Krishna District, Andhra Pradesh that was commissioned during the vear June,
2008 (hereinafter referred to as the *“Business of the Transferor Company’).

(B) THE RAMARAJU SURGICAL COTTON MILLS LIMITED (TN -
LITINTNI939PLCO02H2)  (hercimfier meferred to as  the “Transferee
Company’) is a Public Listed Company incorpomated on the 20% day of February,
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1939 under the Indian Companies Act, 1913 and having its registered office
sibusted at PAC Ramasamy Raja Salai Rajapalayam Tamil Nadu - 626117, The
Lransferee Company was engaged ongnally in the bisiness of produetion of
Surgical Cotton, Gauze, Bandage and Plaster of Paris and other wound-care
products in Southern India, The Transferee Company has further diversified into
spinning and weaving, producing some of the world's finest cotton yarn and
manufactaring premium fabrcs for shirting, bed linens and Jeequard coth

{heteinafter referred to as the “Business of the Transferce Company™).
FITS 1 8C

The directors of the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company have decided to
amalgamate the Transferor Company with the Transferee Company in order to ensure
better management of the Company as o single unit with focused management
capabilities. The directors of the Teansferor Company and the Transferes Company ase
of the opinion that the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company are part of the
same group and are having common promotess and accordingly, the atnalgamation of
the Transferor Company o the Trasferee Company pursuant to the Scheme wwould
vesule in screamlining the group corpotate structure, The amalgamation will further
enabls 1o reduce the number of entities within the proup that reaquire 1o be administered
and also help realize opetanonal synergies which would also resalt in simplification of
swnerns and opssating and wenld henefir horh the Transferor Company and the

Transferee Company in the following mannes:
] Reduction in operative and administratve cost;

(i} ~ Eecnomies of seale, improved cpital allocation, optimum utilizadon of

resources and operational efficiency etc.;

(i)  Elsnination of mter-company holdings and layering of investments and business

operations,
(v Simplification of mandgement sroucmre;

v} Stronger asser base and infrastructure for futore growth,
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PART 1- GENERAL
DEFINITIONS

In this Scheme, unless inconsistent with the subjeet or contexe, the fallowing shall have

the meanings as provided herein:

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

Lo

®Act” means the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder and as
may be applicalile,

“Accounting Standards” shall mean the Accounting Standards as notfied
under Section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standard) Ruoles, 2015 a5 amended from time to tme, issued by the Minisery of
Corporare Affairs and the other accounting principles generally aceeptid in India.

“Amalgamation™ shall have the meaning as defined under Section 2/15) of the
Income Tax Ack, 1961,

“Appointed Datc™ means the date from which this Scheme shall becoime
operative viz., opening business hours of 1% Apnl, 2021, or any other date as the
Mational Company Law Tobunal may divect or approve under the relevant

provisions of the Act.

“Board uf Direceors™ or “Board™ or “Management™ shall imenn the sespective
Board of Directors of the Teansferor Company and/or the Transferce Compariy
ar any Committee of Directors constiruted or appointed and authorized to take

any decision for the implementation of this Scheme on behalf of such Board of

Drecines,

“Effective Date™ means the date or last of the dates on which the certified copy
of the order of the Trabunal sanctionng this Scheme is filed with the concesned
Registrar of Companies by the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company,
Any references m this Scheme to “upon the Scheme becoming effective™ or

“upon the Scheme coming into effect” shall mean the “Effective Date”,

“Proceedings” shall have the meaning ascribed to it in Clause 5 hereof.

“Record Date™ shall mean the date to be fixed by the Board of Directors of the




1.9

1.10

1.11

112

113

1.1+

1,15

1.16

Transfernr Companies to whon shases shall be allotred under the Scheme of
Amalgamation.

“Scheme of Amalgamation™ cr “Scheme™ or “The Scheme” or "This
Scheme” means this Scheme of Amslpamation in ity peesent form or with any

modification(s) approved, imposed, or directed by the Tribunal under Clagse 15
of this Scheme.

4SEBI™ shall mean Securities 4o Exchuge Duatd of India-

“QERI Scheme Circular® or “SEBI Circular? shall mean the SEBI Circolar
Mo, CFD/ DMLY/ CIR/ 2017721 dated March 10, 2017 and SEBL Master Carculas
Mok EEBI,I"HD;"CFD.-"E'H,'I.-"(:IR,-'rP,-I’EﬂE{h-"E*i-‘;‘ dated December 22, 2020, s

amended, modified or replaced feom tdme m Hitme,

“Stock Exchange(s)” shall mesn stock exchange(s) on which the shates of the

Transferee Company are listed on the Effecove Date

“Transferee Company™ means THE RAMARAJU SURGICAL COTTON

MILLS LIMITED, 3 company incorporated under the Indman Companies Act,
1913, and having its registered office at PAC Ramasamy Raja Salai Rajapalayam
Tamil Nadu - 626 117,

“Transferor Company™ means SRI HARINI TEXTILES LIMITED,
company incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956 and having its registered
office at No.102, Sn Bhavanam, P 8 K. MNagar, Kajapalayam, Tamil Nadu
L6108,

“Trbunal® or “NCLT” shall mean the National Company Law Tribunal,
Chennai as constimred and suthorized as per the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 for approving any scheme of arrangement, compromise o
reconstruction of companies undet seetions 230 to 240 of the Companies Act,
2013,

“Tribunal Order” or “NCLT Onder” shall mean the order of the Navonal
Company Law Tribunal approving and sanctoning the scheme for the
Amalgamation of the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company.
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“Undertakings™ shull mean and mchude the whole of the undertakings of the
Transferor Company, as a going concern, including their businesses, all secured
and unsecured debts, lishilines, duties and obligations together with all present
and future Labiliries (including contingent labilities) relatable to the Transferor
Company and all the asscts, properties, nghts, titles and benefim, whether
movable or immovable, real or personal, in possession or reversion, corporeal or
meorporeal, mngible or intangible, present or contingent and including but
without being limited to land and buillding (whether cvmned, leased, licensed), all
fixied and movable plant and machinery, vehicles, fixed assets, work i progress,
FITEENT #85688, Ny estineeiis, reserees, pooseisions, Tunds, Licenses, permis, quote,
approvals, registeations, accreditations 1o trade and mdosedal bodies, incentives,
municipal peemessions, regulatory permissions, consents or power of every kind,
natare and descapticn whatsoever o conuection with the uperatng or relagalie
W the Tesusleoor Comnpuny, copyephins, puenes, made names, tademaks and
other dghts (including nghts under any contracts, government contracis,
memaranda of understanding etc) and licenses m respect thereof, applications
for copyrights, patents, trade names, tademarks, domain names, induserial
designs, rrade secrerd, technieal know-bow or intellectual property nghts of any
nature and any other intangibles, leases, licenses, tenancy dghts, premises,
awnership flats, hire purchase and lease arangements, lending arangements,
benefits of securty armngements, compuaters, office equipment, telephones,
telexes, facsimile connections, communication  Facilities, equipment  and
mstallations and unlioes, clecencity, water and other service connections, benefirs
of agreements, contracts and armngements, powers, authorities, petits,
allctments, approvals, consents, privileges, liberties, achvantages, casements and
all the rght, title, interest, goodwill, benefit and advantape, deposits, reserves,
provisions, advances, receivables, dc]ami[.u, fumds, cash, bank balanees, accounts
artd all other rghrs, benelite of all agreements, subsidies, grants, tax credits
(inchuding but not mited to credits in respect of income tax, minimum altemate
tax, fringe benefit tax, taxes withheld ar source by or on behalf of the Transferor
Company, wealth tax, sales tax, value sdded tax, mamover tax, GST/CENVAT
credit, service tan, cic), Software Licences, Domain / Websires erc, in

conpecton with or reladng to the Transferor Company, all seaff, workmen and
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2.2,

employees of the Transferot Company engaged mn or in relation to the business
at respective offices and all provisions and benefits made in relaton ro such
employees including employee benefit funda bur not limited o provident funds,
repistrations and reserves etc. and other claims and powers, of whatsoever nature
and whesesoever situated belonging to or in the possession of or granted n

favour of or enjoved by the Transferor Company, as on the Appomted Date.

All terms and worls not defined in this Scheme shall, waless repugnant or
contrary to the context or meaning thereof, have the same meaning as ascribed
to them under the Act and other applicable laws, rules, regulations and byelaws
as the case may be, including any smtutory modification or re-caactment thereaf

from tume to bime.
SHARE CAPITAL

The Authorized, Issved, Subscibed and Paid-Up Capital of the Transferor
Company as on 31" March, 2021 15 a3 below:

Authorized Capital:

50,00.000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 5,00, 00,000
Issucd, Subscribed and Paid-up Capial:

30,00,000 El;ltu‘i.l ¥ Shares ol Re ﬂ_.-"- ey .q-,m.m,m I

Subsequent fo 31 March, 2021, there has been no change in the issued,
subscribed and pasd-up capital of the Transferor Company.

The Authorized, lssued, Subscribed and Paid-Up Capital of the Transferee
Company a5 on 31" March, 2021 is as below:

Authorized Capital:
50,00,000 Equty Shares of Rs.10/-cach




2.5

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-Up capital:
3,94, 65,600

39,46,560 Equiry Shares of Rs.10/- each

Subsequent o 31" March, 2021, there has been no change in the issued,
subscribed and paid-up capital of the Transferec Company. The Equlty Shares of
the Transferee Company are cutrently listed on Metropolitan Stoek Fxchange of
India Limited.

The Transferor and Transferee Company are not subject to any investigation or
preceedings under the Companices Acr 1956 or the Companies Act 2013, Further,

there exist oo adverse eomments or qualificatons mn the auditor's report for the
tecent Anancial years for the Transferor and Teansferee Companr,
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RTII-T
TRANSFER OF UNDERTAKINGS

The Undertakings shall be transferted to and vested in or be deemed 1o be

teanzferred to and vested in the Transferee Company in the following manner:

Upen the Scheme becoming effective and with cffect from the Appoinred Date,
the Transfetor Company shall stand smalgarared with the Transferee Company
and whole of the Undertakings of the Transferor Company comprsing their
entire business, all assets and liabilies of whatsoever nature and wheresoever
situated, including the immovable properties, iF any, shall, under the provisions
of Section 230 to 232 and ull uther applicable provisions, if any, of the Act,
without any further act or decd (save as provided in Sub-clavses (b), (¢} and (d)
below), be transferred o and vested in and/ or be deemed to be transferred 1o
andl vested Lo the Ltansferce Company as a guing concen 50 as 10 become, as
from the Appointed Date subject to the changes affectng the same as on the
Effactive Date, the Undertakings of the Transferee Company and ro vese in the
Iranstetee Company all the oghts, tide, intetest or obligations of the Truausfewo

Company therem.

Provided that for the purpose of giving effect to the vesting order passed undes
Section 230 to 232 and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the Act, In respect
of this Scheme, the Transteree Company shall ar any time pursnant o the orders
on this Scheme be entitled to pet the recordal of the change i the title and the
appurtenant legal right/s) upon the vesting of such assers of the Transferor
Company in accordanee with the provisions of Section 230 to 232 of the Act, at
the office of the respective Registiar of Assurnces or any other concemed

sutharity, where any such property is situated.

All movable assets inclading cash n hand, if any, of the Transteror Company,
capable of passing by manuzl delivery ot by endorsement and delivery, shall be
s delivered or endorsed and delivered, as the case may be, to the Traneferee
Company. Such delivery shall be made on a date mutually spreed upon between
the Boards of Directors of the Tmnsferor Company and the Transferee

Company.




=)

(d)

-I_ul" .- - 1

In respect of movables other than those specified in sub-clanze (b) abowve,
incloding sundry debrors, outstanding loans and advances, if any, recoverable in
cash or in knd or for value to be meceived, bank balances and deposits, if any,
with Government, Semi-Government, local and arher surthorities and haodies,
customers and other persons, the following meodus upetandi for intimaning third
parties shall, to the extent possible, be followed;

i The Transferee Company shall give notice in such form as it may decm
fit and proper, to each person, debitor, loanes or deposites as the case
may be, that pursuant to the Tribunal having sancicned the bcheme, the
said debrs, loans, advances, bank balances or deposits be paid or made
good of held on account of the Transferee Company as the person
enutled theteto to the end and meent thar rhe rnphe of the Transferor
Company o recover or realise the same stands extinguished and thae
approprite entry should be passed in its books to record the aforesaid
change;

(@}  The Transferor Company shall also give notce in such form as it may
deem fir and proper to each pemon, debtor, loanee or deposites thar
pusszant to the Tribunal having sancrioned the Scheme the said debr,
loan, advance or deposit be paid or made goad or held on account of the
Transferee Company and that the tight of the Transferor Company to

tecover or reallse the same stands extinguished.

With effect from the Appointed Date, sll debrts, liahilities, confingent Gabilides,
duties and chligations of every kind, mature, descriptinn, whether or not prowided
for in the books of accounts and whether disclosed or undisclosed in the balance
sheet of the Transferor Company shall also, under the provisions of Section 230
tor 232 of the Act, withoue any further act oz deed, be transferred o or be decmed
te be transferred o the Transferce Company 5o as to become as from the
Appanted Date the debis, liabilities, contingent liahilities, duties and obligmtions
of the Transferee Company and it shall pot be necessary to-obtain the consent of
any third party or other person whe isa PAFLY 10 any contrscl or arrangement by
vietue of which such debis, labilities, contingent liahilities, duties and obligations
have atisen, m order to give effect to the provisions of this sub-clause. However,




(e)

the Transferce Company may, at ary time, after the coming into effect of this
Schetne in accordance hereof, if so required, under any law or otherwise, execute
deeds of confirmaton m Fvour of the secured creditors of the Transferos
Company ot in favour of any other party to the contract ot arsangement to which
the Transferor Company are a parly or any wiiting, as may be necessary, in order
to give formal effect to the above provisions. The Transferee Company shall
under the provisions of the Scheme be deemed o be authonzed to execote any
such writings on behalf of the Transferor Company as well as o implement and

carry out all such formalities and complisnces teferred o above.

The transfer and vestng of the Undertakings of the Transferor Company as
aforesaid ghall be subject to the existing secunties, charges and mortgages, if any
subsisting, over or in respect of the property and assets or any part thereof of the

Transferor Company.

Provided however that any reference in any security documents or arfangements
{to which any Transferor Company is a party) pestaining o the assets of the
Transferor Company offercd, or agreed to be affered, as seourity for any fimancial
assistance or obligations, shall be construed as reference only to the assets
pertaining to the Undertaking of the ssid Transferor Company us are vested in
the Transferee Compaay by virtue of the aforesaid Clauses, to the end and intent
that, such security, charge and mortgzge shall not extend or be deemed o extend,
tor anty of the other assets of the said Transteror Company or any of the assets of
the Transferee Company.

Provided further that the securities, charges and mortgages {if any subsisting)
aver and in respect of the assets or sny part thereof of the Transferee Company
shall continue with respect o such assets or part thereof and this Scherne shall
not operate to enlaege such securities, charpes or mortgages to the end and intent
that such securities, charges and mortpages shall not extend or be deemed to
extend, to any of the assets of the Transferor Company vested in the Transfesec
Company.

Provided abways that this Scheme shall not operate o enlarge the securiry for any
lnan, depaosit or facility created by the Transferor Cotrpany which shall vestm




(b}

the Transferee Company by virtue of the amalgamation of the Transferor
Company with the Teansferee Company and the Transferes Company shall net
be obliged o creare any further or addidonal secutity therefore, after the
amalgamation has become operarive,

With effeet from the Appointed Date and upon the Scheme becoming cifectve,
all consents, permussions, ceptificates, peemits, guotas, rights, entitfements,
licences (including softwnre lcences), accreditadons to tade and industrial
budas, privileges, powers. facilities, suthorities {inclading for opesation of bank
accounts), powers of atorneys given by, issued Lo or executed in favour of the
Transferor Company, quality cortifications and approvals, trademarks, patents,
mdustrial designs and trade sccrems, product repistrations, and other fatellectyal
property and any other nmogibles, subsidies, rehabilitation schemes, special
status and other benefits or privileges (pranted by any Government body, Incal
suthorty or by any other person) of every kind and descriprion of whatsoever
sature in relation to the Transferor Company, of o the benefit of whick the
Transteror Company may be cligible, or having effect immediartely before the
Effecave Date, shall be, and remain in, full foree and effect in Favoue of the
Transferee Company, and may be enforced fully and effectually as if, mstead of
the Transfercr Company, the Trarsferee Company had been a beneficiary

theteto.

In so far as the various incentives, subsidies, special stanus and other benefits or
privileges enjoyed, pranted by any Government body, local authority or by any
othet person and availed of by the Transferor Company are concerned, the same
shall vest wirth, and be available to, the Trnsferee Company on the same terms
and conditons.

Loans or other obligatons, if any, due between or smongst the Transferor
Company and the Transferee Company shall stand discharged and there shall be
no liabidity in that behalf In =0 fir as any shares, securities, debentures or notes
Issued by the Transferor Company, and held br the Transferee Company and
vice versa, the same shall, unless sold or transferred by the smd Transferor
Company ot the Transferee Company, as the case may be, at any dme prior w

the Effective Date, stand cancelled as an the Effective Dhate, and shall have ne

e
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(k)

effect and the Teansfesor Company or the Transferee Company, as the casc may
be, shall have ne further obligation cutstanding in that behalf.

The Transferor Company shall have taken all steps as may be necessary to ensure
that vacant, lawful, peaceful and unencumbered possession, right, ttle, intecest
of immovable property, if any, is givea to the Transferee Company.

Whete any of the liabilities and obligations / asscts attributed o the Transferor
Company on the Appointed Date has been discharged { sold by the Transfero:
Company after the Appointed Date snd prioe to the Effective Date, such
discharpe/sale shall be deemed to have been for and on behalf of the Transkeree
Company, All loans raised and used and all labilities and chligations incurred by
the Transferor Company for operations of the Undereaking afrer the Appomted
Date and prior m the Effective Date shall be deemed @ have been rased, used
ot incutred for and on behalf of the Transferee Company, and to that extent they
are outstanding on the Effective Diate, shall alsa without any further ser or deed
he and stand transferred to the Transferee Company 2nd shall become the
Labilities and obligatons of the Transferee Compauy, which shall ke liable o

meet, discharge and satisfy the same.

The cutitletsent to vadous benelits under incentive schemes and policies in
relation to the Undertaking of the lransteror Company shill sud wiusleded
b, aned be vested in, and/or b deemed to have been transfrrre 1, and veseesd
in, the Tmosferce Company together with all benefis, enntlements and
incentives of any nafuee whatsoever. Such enttlements shall include {but shall
aot be himited to) eome-tax, unexpired credit for minimum alternate tx,
minimum slternate tax, Finge benefit mst, sales tax, valoe added tax, roenover o,
excise duty, service tax, customs, poods and service tax and other incentves
under the relevant inditect wx laws in relation to the Undertaling of the
Transferar Company to be claimed by the Transferee Company with effect from
the Appointed Date as if the Transferee Company wag onginally entitled to all
quch benefits under such ncentive scheme and/or policics, subject to continued
eompliance by the Transferee Company of all the terms and condinons subject
tor which the bencfits under such incentive schemes were made available w the




(3}

4.1

4.2

Since each of the permissions, approvals, consents, sanctons, remissions
{including rermittance undet income-tax, minimum alternate tax, funge benefir
tax, sales max, value added tax, mmover tax, excise duty, scevice tax, guods and
service faX, customs), special reservations, sales tax remissions, holidays,
mcentives, prants, subsidies, concessions and other authorizations relating to the
Undermaking of the Transferor Company, shall stand ransferred under this
scheme to the Transferee Company, the Transferee Company shall fle the
rebevant inamations, iF any, for the record of the stamory authodties who shall

take them on file, pursuant to the Scheme coming into effect,

Fromm the Effecttve Date and dll such ttme that the names of the bank acconts
of the Transferor Company are repliced with that of the Transferee Company,
the Transferee Company shall be emited 1o operate the bank accounts of the

Transferor Company, in its name, in w0 far a3 may be necessary.
CONTRACTS, DEEDS, BOMNDS AND OTHER INSTRUMENTS

Subject to the other provisions conmined in the Scheme, all contracts, deeds,
honds, agreements, msurance policies and other nstruments of whatsoever
nature to which the T'ransteror Company is a party, subsisting or having effect
immediarely before this arrangement under this Scheme, shall be, in fall force
aiid elleed, apmiisd v nn Gavour of the Transferee Company, and tmay be e fomesd
as fally and as effectively as if instead of the Teansferor Company, the Transferee
Compuny bad beessa parey thereto, The Transferee Campany shall cater it and
{ or sssue and / or execute deeds, writings or confirmations or enter into any
ipartitc artangement, confirmators or novatons to which the Transferor
Company will, if necessary, also be party in onder to give formal effect to the

provisions of this clavse, if so required or become necessary.

As a consequence of the amalgamation of the Transferor Company with the

Transferee Company in accordance with this Scheme, the recording of change in

mame from the Transferor Company (o the Transferee Company, whether for
the purposes of any licence, permit, approval or any other teason, or whether for
the purposes of any transfer, registraton, mutaton or any other reason, shall be

carnied put by the concemed statuory or sepulitory or any other authoriry
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without the requirement of payment of any transfer or registranon fee or any

other charge or imposition whatsoever.

The Transferee Company may, at any time, after the coming into the effect of
this Scheme in accordance with the provisions hereof, if so reguired, wnder any
law or otherwise, execute deeds of confirmaton m favewr of any party to any
contmct ot arangement to which the Transferor Company 5 2 party or any
writings, 4% may be necessary, to he evernted in onder ro pive formal effect to the
above provisiens. The Transferee Company ghall under the provisons of the
Scheme be deptned to be suthorized to execute any such writings on behalf of
the Trapsferor Company, implement or carry out all such formalities or
compliances referred to above on the pate of the Teansferor Company, as the

case may be, to be carried out or performed.

For the removal of doubts, it is expressly made clear that the dissolution of the
Transferor Company without the process of winding up as contemplated
hereinafrer, shall not, except to the extent set out in the Scheme, affect the
previous operation of any contract, sgreement, deed or any mstrument or
beneficial interest to which the Transferor Company is a party thereto and shall
not sffect any right, privilege, obligations or lability, acquired, or deemed to be
acquired prios to Appointed Diate and all sueh references n such agreements,
contracts and instuments to the Transferor Company shall be construed as

teference ooly to the Transferce Company with cffect from the Appointed Date.,
LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

All suits, actions and proceedings of whatscever nature by or against the
Transferor Company on the Appointed Date shall be transferred to the name of
the Teansferee Company and the same shall be continued and enforced by or
against the Transferee Company, to the exchasion of the Transferor Company, as
the case may be

If proceadings are taken against the Transferor Company, in respect of matters
referred 1o above, it shall defend the same in sccordance with the advice of, and
at the cost of, the T ansferce Cu:nmpuny. as the case may be from :'"-[!I-]&Clinttd Date:




6.1

Company, against all liahiliies and wbligations incurred by the said Transferar
Company in tespect thereof,

STAFF, WORKMEN AND EMPLOYEES

All the executives, staff, workmen, and othes emplayecs in the secvice of the
Traasferor Company, immediarely preceding the Effective Date, under this
Scheme shall become the executives. st ff, workmen, and othes emplovers of the

Transteree Company, on the basis thar:

1)

k)

Their services shall have heen continuous and shal uest have heen interrupred
by reason of such tunsfer us il sach reansfer is etectad under Section 25FF
of the Industrial Disputes Act, 1947;

The terms and conditions of Eervice applicable to the said staff, workmen,
and other employees after such transfer shall not i any wiy be less favounable
10 them than those applicable 10 them immediataly before the transfer;

In the event of retrenchment or termination of such staff, workmen, oe other
employees, the Trmnsferee Company shall be able to pay compensation in
accordance with lawr on the basis that the scevices of the staft, wodimen, or
other employvees shall have been continuous and shall not have heen

interrupted by reason of such trarsfer; and

It s provided thar as far a5 fhe Provident Fund, Gratuity, Pension,
Superannuation Fund or any other special funds that are applicable o the
employees. of the Transferce Company and existing in the Trnsferes
Cotmpany for the benefit of the stff, workmen and othes emplovees of the
Transferee Company shall also be extended o the employees of the
Tmnsferne Company upon the Scheme becoming finally effective. ‘The said
bencfirs shall be extended to the emplovees of the Transferor Company even
if such benefits were not availible o the emplovees dusing their tenure in the
Inmnsteror Company, by virtae of non-apphicability of the relevant provisions
to the Transferor Company. Norwithstanding whar is stared hereia above in
respect of applicability of Employess Provident Fund to the employees of
Teansferor Company with retrospectrve effect from a date to be determined

by the Buard of Directots of Transferee company the extension of benefit o

L g e L U e
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B.1

8.2

the employees of Transteror Company shall be subject 1o the provisions of
The Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 and
the approvals of rthe authorities concerned  for piving effect to the
implementation date. It 15 the aitn and the mtent of the Scheme that all the
Aghts, dutics, powers and obligations, in whatscever narure, that are availahle
to the employees of the Transferer Company shall also be available to all the
employees of the Transferor Company in relation o Provident Fund,
Gratuity and Pension and/ or Superannuation Fund or any other special
fund, however subject to the provisions of the relevant and applicable

stabiles,
SAVING OF CONCLUDED TRANSACTIONS

The transfer of Undertakings under Clause 3 above, the continuance of the
effectiveness of contmcts and decds under Cluse 4 above and legal proceedings
by or against the Transferee Company under Clinse 5 above shall net affect any
eransaction or procesdings or contmces or deeds already concluded by the
Transferar Company on or betore the Appointed Date and after the Appuointed
Date till the Effective Date, 1o the end and intent that the Transferce Company
accepts and adopes all acts, deeds and things done snd exccuted by the Transferor

Company in respect thereto as done and executed on behalf of itself,

CONDUCT OF BUSINESS OF THE TRANSFEROR COMPANY TILL
EFFECTIVE DATE

With effect from the Appointed Date and up 1o and including the Effective Dare:

The Transferor Company shall carey on, and be deemed to have been carrying
on, all business activities and shall be deemed to have been held for and on

account of, and in trust for, the Transferee Company.

All profits or income or taxes, mcluding bt not limited to income Bx, MinEmwm
alternate mx (mcluding unexpired credit for mimmam alternate tasd, fringe
benefit tax, advance txes, @ deducred at source by or on behalf of the
Transferor Company, wealth tax, ssles max, value added tax, excise duty, scrvice

tax, goods and service tax, customs duty, refund, reliefs, etc, accruing Or Amismg

ty the Transferor Company, o losses adsing or expenditure incurred huthe



8.3

g4

8.5

B.6

8.7

8.8

on and from Appointed Date upto the Effective Diare, shall for all parposes he
treated as, and be deemed ro be reated as, the profits or ncome or losses ar

expenditare or the said taxes of the Trunsferee Company,

The Transfeeoe Company shall carry om their business acdvites with proper
prudence and diligenice and shall not, without prior written consent of the
Transferse Company, alienate, charge or otherwise deal with or dispose off any
of their business undertabingls) or any part thereaf (exceptin the ordinary course
of business or pursuant to any pee-existing obligations undertaken by the

Transferor Company prior to the Appointed Date).

The Transferse Comparty shall also be endrled, pending the sanction of the
Scheme, to apply to the Central Government, Sture Government, and all other
ggencies, departments and statutory authontes concerned, wherever necessary,
tor such consents, approvals and sancdons which the Transferee Company may
require including the registeation, appeovals, exemptions, reliefs, etc., a5 may be
required / gpranted under any law for dme being in foree for cartying on business

by the Trmnsferce Company.

The Transferor Company shall not declare any dividend, between the Appointed
Date and the Effecove Date, without the pnor wanten consent of the Transferee
Company.

The Transferor Company. after filing the Scheme with the Tabunal, shall not
make any modification to theie capital structure, ¢ither by an increase (by issue of
rghes shares, bonos shares, convesible debentures or otherwise), decrease,
rechissificanion, sub-diwision or  reorpanisation or in any other manner,
whatsoever, except by mmmual consent of the Boards of Directors of the
Transfersr Company and the Transferce Company,

The Transferor Company shall not vary, excepr in the ordinary course of
business, the terms and condidons of the emplovment of their emplovees withour

the consent of the Board of Directors of the Transferee Company.

Upoa the Scheme coming into effect, any tases paid under the indirect rax laws
such as under the Centeal Goeods and Serviees Tax Act or under ALY PLevicus o
applicable law prevalent ansing out of the transactions carered into amwongst the

52



1.

101

Teansfercr Company and / or with the Teansferee Company post the Appointed
date shall on and from the Effective Date be refunded to the Transferee
Company, or in cases where in respect of the intercompany tansactions, the
Teansferor Company/ Transferee Company has availed GST/CENVAT Credit
{ VAT credit of the taxes charped, the Transferce Company at its opoon may not
seek for refund and cen choose 1o remin the same asa GST/CENVAT Credic/
VAT credit, subject to the rules and segulations ender the respective indirect rax
L.

VALIDI F ME C
The resolutions, if any, of Transferor Company, which are valid and subsisting
on the Effecave Date, shall be contnued 1o be valid and subsisting and be
consdered s resolations of the Transferee Company and if any such resolutions
have upper menetary of other limits being imposed under the provisions of the
Ace, ue uny Other applicalile provisioos, e e sl Boeds shiall T added and

shall constmte the aggregate of the said limits in the Transteree Company.

CONSIDERATIOMN:

Upuss s Sl bevuings effective, in consideragon of the seanfir sl vesting,
of the Undertaking of the Trans(eror Company in the Transferee Company in terms
nf the Seheme, the consideration shall be discharged by the Transferee Company in
the following manner:

Tl aquity iherebolders of Trangévor Company as o the Recors! Dage shall be alistted 3+
(T hirty Fons) Equity Shares of Bt 10- each at a prive of B 1,459/ - (Raghees Owe Thowsand
Four Hunidred and Fifty-Nine Only) per Bguily Share (ncheding share presmium of s,
{449] - per Equity Shavs) crelited ar_fadly peil wpy shares of the Trangeree Comparty o
suspect of erery 1,000 (Owe Thoasand) Fauily Thaves of Re 10/ - sach fully padd np beld by
them dir the Tranglrar Company, "

The Transferse Company holds 14,90,000 equity shares of Re.10/- cach in the
Transfernr Company. Uipon the Scheme of Amalgamaton coming into effect,

the equity shares held by the Transferee Company in the Transferor Company




10.1.2

10,13

1014

LYY

consequence of this cancellation which 5 incidental o the Scheme of
Amalgamation, no Equity Shares shall be issued by the Transferee Company in
tespect of equity shares of the Transferor Company held by the Transferee
r,.-c:-m]:muy.

Upon the Equity Shares being issued and allotred, as aforesaid by the Transferee
Company, the Equity Shares issued by the Transferor Company and held by its
shareholders, whether in dermatesialized or physical form, shall be deemed o have

been automatcally cancelled and of no effect.

The Equicy Shares to be issued and allotted by the Transferee Company as
afocesaitd m terms of this Scheme shall be subject w0 the provisions of the
Memorandom and Arneles of Assoeation of the Transferee Company and shall
mnk pa-passe in all respects with the existing Equity Shares of the Transferee
Company after the Effecuve Lgre including in respect of dividend, if any, char
may be declared by the Transferee Company on or after the Effecove Date.

Any fracnonal share enntlement arsing out such allotment which 35 greater than
or equal to 0.5 shall be rounded off o the next inreger. and any fractional share
entitlernent rising our such allotment which is lesser that 0.5 shall be rounded

off to the Pl:ew'-nus integer.

It Haty Shares shall e sed 10 demarermalised b o thowe sharcholdees
who bl shates of the Transferor Company in dematesialised form, i to the
goconnt in which the shares of the Tivnsleror Company are held or such other
account as 13 intimated by the shareholdees to the Teansferor Company before
the Record Date. All those shareholders of the Transferor Company who hold
the shares in physical form shall receive the Equity Snares in dematedalsed form,
provided that the details of their accounts with the depository parcticipant are
memated in writing o the Transferor Company before the Record Date. In the
Event the Transteror Company or the Transferee Company does not receive
detalls of the accounts with the depostory participant from sach sharcholders
before the Reeord Dhate, the Transferee Company shall credit irs Equity Shares
to the extent of enntlement of such shareholdets into a separate demat cscrow
sccount il the time such shareholders furnish walid detadls of their demat
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10.1.7

1018

10:1.9

aceount(s) or the Board of Divectors of the Transferee Company shall deal with
the entitfement of such sharcholders m such other inanner as they may deem to
be i the best interosts of such sharcholders in accordance with the applicable

Taarss.

The Equity Shares to be issued by the Transferse Company to the members of
the Trnsferor Company putsuant o clause 1001 of s Scheme, in respect of
any shares held in Transferor Company which are held in abeyance under the
provisions of Section 126 of the Act or otherwise, pendmg allownent or
setflement of dispute, by the order of this Tobumal «r alherwse, be held in
abevance by Transferee Company.

The Board of the Transferce Company shall, if and to the extent required apply
for and obtin any approvals Fom the concesned povernment/ regulatory
authorities and wnderrake necessary compliance for the jssue and allotment of
Equity Shares to the shareholders of Transferor Company pursuant to Clause
10.1 of this Scheme.

The equity Shares 1o be issued o the members of the Trmsferor Company
putsmant to Clavse 1001.1 of this Scheme, will be listed and /or adimirted to rrading
ont 4l the Stock Exchanpe(s) on which the equiry shares of the Transferee
Company are listed on the Effectve Date, Fusther it is intended thae the
Transferee Company, at its sole discretion may alsa evaluate and endeavour to
list the said Equity Shares on other stock exchanges, subject to satisfaction of all
applicable laws and regulations, The Transferee Company shall enter inio such
arrangements and provide such confirmations snd/or undertaking as mayhe
required in accordance with applicable laws and sepulations for complying with
the formalities of the Stock Exchange(s). The Equity Shares of the Transferee
Company allotted putsuant to the Scheme shall remain frozen in the depository’s
system till hsung and trading permissions are given by the Stock Exchange(s).

In the event of th-re bemp any pending share transfer, wherher lodged or
purstanding, of any sharcholdet of the Transferor Company, the Board of the
Transferor Company shall be empowered, even subsequent to the Effectve

Drate, to effectuate such transfer, as if such changes in the register holder wete




operative from the Effective Date, ln ordes 1o remove any difficulties arising on
account of the transfer of shares afier the Scheme hecomes effective,

10110 Upon the issue and allotment of the Equity Shares, the members of the
Lraasferor Company shall be classfied as the Promater, Promoter Group or
public, as the case may be, of the Transferee Company in accordance with
Secunties and Exchange Beard of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulitions, 2018,

10,111 The appeoval of this Scheme by the sharcholders of the Ttansferee Company
shall be deemed to be the due compliance of the provisions of seetions 42 2ad
62 of the Act and the other relevant and applicable rrovisions of the Act for the
wevnnce and allowuweut of Equity Shurey by the Transferee Company to die
shareholders nf Transfeeoe Compsny, as puovided I the Scheme.

10,192 The approval of thic Scheme by the sluetooldect of the 1 ranalo Cirupmaty and
the Transferee Company under sections 230 ra 232 of the Ace, shall be deemed
to have the approval under sections 13, 14, 180 and 186 and other applicable
provisions of the Act and any sther consent and approvals required 1 this repard,

10.1.13 In the event thar the Tranaferor Cotnpany {with the express consent of the Board
of Dirccrors of the Transferes Company) and/or the Transferce Company
restructure its share capital by way of share split/ consclidition/ issue nf honus
shares during the pendency of this Scheme, the share exchange mato shall he
adnsred accordingly to take into account effect af such coporate action.

1. CLUBBING OF AUTHORIZED CAPITAL AND THE ALTERATION
TO THE OBJECTS CLAUSE OF THE MEMORANDUM OF
ASSOCIATION OF THE TRANSFEREE COMPANY:

11.1 Upon the Scheme hﬂu_mning fully effective, the authosed share capital of the
Transferar Company shall stand combined with the suthorised share capital of
the Transferee Company. Filing fees and stamp duty, if any, paid by the
Teansferor Company on their respective authorised share capital, shall be deemed
to have been o paid by the Transferee Company on the combined authorised
share capiral and accordingly, the Transferee Company shall not be tequired 1o

pay any fee/ stamp duty for its increased authorised shae capital,
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113

114

121

Clause V of the Memorandum of Assockition of the Trunsferee Company shall,
without any Further act, instrument or deed, be and stand aleered, modified and
amended pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Act by delenng the existng
Clause and replacing it by the following:

1. The Autbarized Share Capiral of the Congpenny i Ko, 1O,00,00,000/ - (Raupwes Ten
Crores Omly) divided dnea §1,00,00,000 (One Crove) Equity Shares of R, 10/ - (Raspeer Tew
Ondb) each

The approval of this Scheme under Sections 230 w 232 af the Act shall be
deemed to have the approval under sections 13, 14, 01 and 64 of the Act, and
other applicable provisions of the Act and any other conscnts and approvals
required w this pegard.

Upon the Scheme becoming fully effecave, the Object Clavse of the
Memotandum of Assoeiation of the Transferee Company shall, without any
Farther act, instrament or deed, be altered, modified and amended pursuant o
the Applicable provisions of the Act by insetting new sub-clauses, a5 mentioned
in Schedule B ro this Scheme, immediately afrer the existing sub-cliases under

Clause 11T of the Memorandum of Associadon of the Transferee Company.

[t shall be deemed that the sharebolders of the Transferce Company have
resolved and accorded all relevant consents under Section 13 of the Act. It is
Clarified thit there will be no need to pass a sepamate sharcholder's resolution as
requited under section 13 of the Act. The amendments to the memomndum of
Association of the Transferee Company shall be effected without any farther act
or deed and shall be treated as an inwgral part of the Scheme.

ACCOUNTING TREATMENT

LUpon this Scheme becoming effective and with effect from the Appotnted Date,

the Transferee Company shall account for the Amalgamaton n iz books as
under:

The Amalgamation of the Transferor Company with the Lmnsferee Company
shall be accounted for in accordance with the Acquisiion method prescribed
under the Indisn Accounting Standard (Tnd AS) — 1035 - "Business Combination™




12.2

12.3

12.6

the Act read with the Companies {India Account Standaeds) Rules, 2015, as
amended from time to fme. For this purpose, the Appointed Dare shall be
treated as the Acquisidon Date ae seferred in Tnd AS - 103

All the assers, including but not imited to fixed assets, intangibles and any other
assets, recorded 1 the books or otheraise, of the Transferor Company and
ransferred o and vested in the Transferce Company pursuant to the Scheme,
subject to Cliuse 124, shall be recorded by the Transferes Company a1 their
acquisioon-date fair values, 25 may be derermined by the Board of Directors of

the Transferes Cumpanlr;.

All lisbilities of the Transferor Company transferred to and vested in the
Transferee Company, subject to Clause 12.4, whether recorded in the books or
siot, shall be recorded by the Transferee Company at their acquisition-daze fai
values, as may be determined by the Board of Directors of the Teansferee
Company.

The amount of inter-company balances, amounts or investments, if any, berween
the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company, appearing in the baoks
of aceounts of the Tmnsferee Company and Transferor Company, if uny, shall
stand cancelled without any further act or deed upon the Scheme Coming into
effect and with effect from the Appointed Date and the obligation in respect

therenf shall come toan end.

The fice value of the Equity Shares of the Transferee Company issued to the
members of Transferor Cotapany shall be credited to the Equity Share Capital
account and the amount of share premium of the Equity Shares shall be credised
tir the securities premiwm account in the books of the Transferee Company.

Costs, expenses and duties incurred in connection with the Scheme and to put it
intey operstion/implementation of the Scheme shall be dealt by the Transferee

Lempany, as per Helevant Accounting Stndards & provisions of the Tncome
Tax Act.
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The net difference between the acquisition date fair value of net assets of the
Transferor Company acquired by the Transferee Company and the considezanon
transferred by the Transferee Company shall be recongnised as Goodwill or gain
on harpain purchas~/capital seserves. as the case may be, in the books of the

Transferee Company,

To comply with the relevant laws, the Income Tax Act, 1961 and applicable
Aceoutiting Standards, the Transferee Company (by its Board of Diteciors) may
alter or modify the provisions of the Clauses 12.1 to 12.7, as they may deem fit

and consider necessary, to settle any question atsing out of the Scheme.

CONSEQUENTIAL MATTERS RELATING TO TAX

Upon the Scheme coming into ettect, all taxes/ cess/ duties, direct and/or
indirect, payable by ot on behalf of the Transferor Company from the Appointed
Dhate onwards including all oz any refumds and claims, credits, pestaining to any
income x , advanc « kax, service tax, poods and service tax nchuding refunds or
chimiis preenidiog wiili e Mevein Anthonriea and ineluding thy right (v wluim
credit for minimum alermate tax and carry forweed of sceunmlated losses and
unabsorbed depreciation including in respect of ineome-tax subject to the
provisions of Section T2A of the Income Tax Act, 1961, shall, for all purposes,
be treated as the tax/ coss/ dury, lisbiltes or refunds, claims and accomulated
loases and unabsotbed deprecistion of the Transferee Company, Accordingly,
upon the Scheme becoming effectwve, the Transferee Company s expressly
permitted to revise, if it becomes necessary, its Income tax returns, Sales tax
returns, Excise & Cenvat returns, service x retums, GST rernms, other tix
retusns, and 1w dawn refunds/ credits, pursuant to the provisions of this Scheme.
Alse, the Inss brought forward and unabsorbed depreciation as per books of
accounts of the Transferor Company as on the Appointed Date would be deemed
t be loss brought forwerd and unabsorbed depreciation as per books of accounts
of the Transferee Company. The Transferee Company is also expressly permitted

59



13.2

12.3

13.4

o]

to claim refunds [/ esedits in respect of any transaction between the Transferor
Company and the Transferee Company.

Provided farther that upon the Scheme becoming effectve, the Transferee
Company 15 also expressly permitted to revise, if it becomes necessary, irs income
mx retumns and related TDS Cernficates, inchuding TDS Certificates relating ro
cansacrions between the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company and
b claim refunds, advance tax and withholding tax credits, benefit of credir for
minimum alrernate tax and carry forward of accumulated losses etc., pursuant 1o

I‘J.'IE ‘Fltl‘n-".'“iu:i::ll‘!l.'ﬁ nF this Schm‘m.

In sccordance with the CEMNVAT Credit Rules framed under the Ceniral Bacise
Act, 1944, as are prevalent on the Effective Date, the unutilized credis relating
to excise duties / service tax / VAT, poods and service tax paid on inpurs/capital
goods/ input services hyang in the sccount: of the undertakings of the Transferor
Company shall be permitted to be transferred to the credit of the Transferee
Cnmpﬂn:,'. g i all such vnnnlived credia were lving to the account of the
Transferee Company, The Teansfesce Company shall accordingly be entitled o
set off all such unutilized credits apainst the excise duty/ service tax payable by
it

In accordance with the Seate Value Added Tax/ sales tax laws and Central and
smate Goods and Service Tax laws, as are prevalent on the Effective Dare, the
unutilized credits, if any, relating to VAT/GST paid on inputs/ capital poods lying
in the accounts of the Undemakings of the Transfeeor Company shall be
permitted to be transferred to the credit of the Transferce Comparny, as if all such
urutilized credits were lying to the sccount of the Transferee Company. The
Transferee Company shall accordingly be entitled to ser off all such unutilized
credits againse the VAT, CST/GST payable by it

Upon the Scheme coming inw effect, any taxes paid under the indisect tix lows
such as Service tax Law, Value Added Tax Ao, Goods and Services Tax bws
(prevalent in respective stte) erc. amsing out of the ansactions entered into
between the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company post the
Appointed date shall on and from the Effective Date be refunded o the
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13.6

26

Transferce Company, or in cases where in respect of the inter-company
transictions, the Transferor Compeny / Trnsferee Company has availed
CENVAT Credit [/ VAT credit / GST Credit of the taxes charged, the
Transferee Company at its option may not seck for refund and can choose to
retain the same as 1 CENVAT Credit / VAT ceedit / GST Credit, subject to the

rules nnd regulations under the respective indirect tax law.

The Scheme has been drawm up o comphe wich the eondionns welanng
“Arnalgamarion” as speafied wder Section 2{18) of the Income-Tazx Aet, 1901
If any terms or provisions of the Scheme are found or interpreted to be
inconsistent with the provisions of the szid Secdon of the Ineome-Tax Act, 1961,
at a later date including resulting from an amendment of law or for any other
reasons whatsoever, the provisiens of the said Section of the Income-Tax Act,
1961, shall prevail and the Scheme shall stand modified to the extent determined
necessary to comply with Section 1B} of the [ncome-Tax Act, 1961, Such

modificadon will however not affect the other parts of the Scheme.

Lipon the Scheme conung into effect, the Transferee Company shall make and

file gl necessary applications, documents and adhere to all smmtory compliances

as may be applicable and necessary lad down under the relevant Cenreal or State
baws, regulations, rules in order to faclitate the implementation of the Scheme af
Amalgamaton.
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14.1.

15,

15:1

16.1

16.2

PART 111 -

APPLICATION TO THE TRIBUNAL

The Teansferos and Transferee Company shall, with reasonable despatch, apply
tor the Trbunal for necessary oeders or directions for holding meetings of the
members of the Transferor and Transferee Company for sanctoning this Scheme
of Amalgamanon under Sections 230 1o 232 and ather applicable prowisions of
the Act or for dispensing the holding of such meetings and orders under Secdon

232 ul e Act, Tor caerying tus Scheme inw effect and for dissolutdon of the

Transferor Comprany without winding up.
IMSSOLUTION OF TRANSFEROR COMPANY

E-Llhjer.‘:l 1o ann arder |:|=i:r|E: mnade |rl|' the Trbunal under Section 232 of the _-||.13|=1 the
Transferor Company shall be dissobved without the process of winding up on the
Scheme becoming effective in accordance with the provisions of the Act and the

Tules made themunder,

MODIFICATIONS / AMENDMENTS TO THE SCHEME

The Tragsferor Comnpany wid the Trnsferee Company through their respective
Boards of Directars inchading Committees of Directors of ather persons, duly
authorzed by the respecove Boards in this regard, may make, or assent to, any
alteration or modification to this Scheme or 1w any conditions ot limitations,
which the Trbunal or any other Competent Aathority may deem fir to direct,
approve or impose and may grve such directions inchiding an order of dissoluton
of the Transferor Company without process of winding up &5 they may consider
necessary, o settle any doubt, question or difficulty, arsing under the scheme or
in regard to its implementation o in any manner connected therewith and o do
and to cxecure all such acts, deeds, matters and things necessary for putting this
Scheme into effect, or 1o review the porton relading o the satisfaction of the
comchpons oo this scheme and if necessary, m waive any of those (o the extent

permitted under law) for bringing this scheme into effect.

If any part or provision of this Scheme if found to be unworkable for any reason
whatzoever, the same shall nor, subject to the decision of the Transferor

Company and the Transferee Company, affect the validity of implementation of




17.

171

18.1

18.2

18.3

the other parts and,/or provisions of the Scheme. TF any Part or provision of this
Scheme hereof is ivalid, ruled illegal by any Tobunal of competent junsdicnon,
or unenforceable under present or fature laws, then o iz the nenten of the
Parties that such Part or provision, a8 the ease may be, shall be severable from
the remainder of the Scheme, and the Scheme shall not be affected thereby,
unless the deletion of such Part or provision, as the case may be, shall cause this
Scheme to become matenially advesse to any Party, in which case the Parnes shall
artempt to bong about a modificarion in the Scheme, as will best preserve for the
Partes the benefirs and obliganons of the Scheme, incheding but not liited to
such Part or provision

DATE OF TAKING EFFECT

The Srheme ser onr herein in s present form or with soy modification(s) or
amendment(s) approved, imposed of direcred by the Trbunal shall be effecrive
frevm the Appninred rare bur shall he operagve from the Effective Date.

SCHEME CONDITIONAL ON APPROVALS / SANCTIONS
This Schetne & conditnonal on and sobjece to the following -

The Scheme receiving no-objecton letter/comment letrer/ approval of the Stock

Lxchange(z) and the SEBI in aceurdance with Regulation 37 the SEBI Lasting
R eguibatinns and rhe SERT Cirenlarg

The Scheme being agreed 1o by the respecove requisite majonties of the members
and creditors of the Tmnsferor and Transferee Company, if meetings of
members and creditars of the said companies are convened by the Trbunal or
dispensation being granted by the Tobunal.

The scheme being approved by the public shareholders through e-voting in terms
of SEBI Circalar. The Scheme shall be acted upon only if the vores cast by the

public sharcholders in favour of the proposal are more than the number of votes
cast by the public sharcholders against it. The term ‘pubbc’ shall carry the same
meaning as defined vnder Rule 2 of the Secunities Contracts (Regulations] Rules,
1957,
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18.4

18.6

191

20.

20.1

The sanction or spproval under any law of the Cenoal Governmenr, State
Government, or any other agency, deparment or authorities concemied if so
required being obtained and granted in cespect of any of the matrers in respect
of which such sancoon or approval & required under any law,

The sancton by the Tabunal under Sections 23) o 232 and other applicable

provisions of the Act being obtained by the Tmnsferor Company and the
Transferse Company {as may be applicable),

The fling with the Registrar of Companies, Chenmal, of certified copies of all
necessary orders, sanctions and appeovals mentoned above by the respective

Company.
EFFECT OF NON-RECEIPT OF APPROVALS / SANCTIONS

In the event of the Scheme not being sanctdoned by the Tribunal and/or the
nrder nr nrdets nor being passed a3 aforesaid, the Scheme shall become fully mull
and void and in that event ne mghts and liabilides shall acere o ar be mer-se
by the partes in teems of the Scheme, save and excepr in respect of any act or
deed done prior theeeto as 18 contemplated hereunder or as to any rights and/ or
habilines which might have ardsen or acerued pursuant thereto snd which shall be
governed and be preserved or worked our as 15 specifically provided in the
Scheme ot as may otherwise arise in law. In such event, each party shall hear and
pay its respectve costs, charpges and expenses for and / of in connection with the

Scheme.

EXPENSES CONNECTED WITH THE SCHEME
All costs, chasges, levies, fees, duties and expenses of the Transferor Lompany
and the Transferee Company respectvely in relation to or in conncction with

negotations leading up to the Scheme and of cartying out and complenng the

teenys and provisions of this Scheme and in wlation to or i connection with the

Scheme shall be bome and paid by the Transferee Company.
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T

To carry on all or any of the hu::r!’r:ss nf.qpmmn (Ring Spinning, OF Spinning,
Compact Spinning cte.} and doublers of cotton, ﬂ:n-'. hemp, jute, wool, silk, synthetic
fibre such as Viscose, Polynosic, Polvester, .-"._l:r_r'hc and other fibrous substances,
cotion ginners, yam merchants, bleahers and dyess, makers of bleaching and dyeing
materials and to purchase, comb, prepare, spin, dyc and deal in cotton, flax, hemp,
jute, wool, sille, syathetic Bhre such as Viscose, Polvnosic, Polyester, Acrylic., and
nther fibrous substmnces and o weave or otherwise manufacture, buy, sell and exporn
and deal in linen, cloth and other goods and fabrics, whether texole, felted, netted ot
looped.

To carry on all or any of the business of cloth manufacurers, hosiers, carpet makers,
sile metcers, silk, synthetie fibre such as Viscose, 'olynosic, Polyester, Acrylic and
other fibrous substances, weavers, imporers, exporters and wholesale, retail dealers
and ehain of retail puders of and in Textile fabdes of all kinds, avrfittess, drapes and

Furnishers.

To wash, clean, purify, scous, bleach, waong, dry, iron, eolowr, dye, disinfect, renovare
and prepare for use all articles of wearing apparel, household, domestc and other

linen and cotton, wonlen and silk gonds snd clothing and fabrics of all kinds.

T enbiware, by, sell and deal in gow or fimshed comwon, wool, jute, silk, synthetic
fibre, such as Viscose, Polynosic, Palyester, Acrylic and other fibrous substances and
to prepare, spin, clean, press and peck the same and sell the maremls so
rranufactured, ro butld, purchase, sell, dispase of, transfer, morigage, take on lease,
exchange, hire or othetwise acquire or deal with any land, buildings, soy estare or

interest theeein and any oght over or connected with thiermn,

Tao generate power from conventional and for non convendonal sources including

wstalladon of Wind Mills for capove use / Third party sale.
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Date: 27" September 2021

a1 B
under i |-'d|;, FEiel valls anid valetic .

To

The Board of Directors

The Ramaraju Surical Cotton Mills Limited
PO Box Na, 2,

113 P A © Ramaswamy Raja Salal,
Rajapalayam - 626 117

Tarmilnadu

To

The Board of Directors
5ri Harini Textiles Limited
= Bhavanam 102,

P 5 K Nagar,

Rajapalavam - 626 108

TamilfAgsdu

Subject - Recommendation of the share exchange ratio for the proposad merger of Sri
Harini Textiles Limited into The Ramaraju Surgical Cotton Mills Limited.

Cear Sir/Madam

We reter to the ongoing discussions and engagement letter whereby, The Ramaraju Surgical
Cotion Mills Limited ("TRSCM" or "Transferee Company”) has requested Den Valuation (OPC)
Private Limited ("Den” or "us” or "we”} to recommend an exchange ratios of equity shares as

on 30 Jure 2021 in connection with the proposed

* Merger of Sn Haoni Textiles Limited (referred to as "SHTL' or “transferor company’) into
The Ramaraju Surgical Cotton Mills Limited [*TRSCM" or "transferee company™).

The Ramaraju Surgical Cotton Mills Limited and Sri Harini Textiles Limited are together referred
to as the ‘companies

We have been hereafter referred to as "Valugr or 'we' or ‘us' and ndividually referred to as
Valuer in this joint Report {'Valuaton Report’ or ‘Report’)

Waluaton Report an Swap Ratio on mesger of SHTL into TRSCM

Mr. Shirsmani Complex, Mehrunogor, Ahmedatad - 380 O i3

Paloce, |
Bieot, Gopal Sparidenvaluation.com | Website : wunrelg

(M) BE625 42466 | 9T730 20454 PH. : 079 4898 2466 | E-Mali;

#
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SCOPE AND PURPOSE OF THIS REPORT

“The Management of TRSCM and SHTL are planning to merge Sri Harini Textiles Limited into
The Remaraju Surgical Cotton Mills Limited for further growth and expansion in the interest of

shareholders'

We understand that the management of the companies ("Management’) is contemplating a
consolidation of busness through a composite scheme of arrangement {"Scheme) to be
mplemented under the provision of saction 230 to 232 of the companies Act, 2013 and other

applicable provissons of the Companies Act, 2013

¢ Merger of 5r Hanni Textiles Limited [("SHTL") inte The Ramarapu Surgecal Cotton Mitls Lirmited
FTRSCM®)

Aboie arrangement iz rafarrad to a5 'the Transaction’

43 a consideration for above transaction, eguity shareboiders of Srl Harini Textiles Limited

("SHTL") would be izsued equity shares of The Ramaraju Surgical Cotton Mills Limited ("TRSCM™)
Share Exchange Ratio for this Report refers to number of eguity shares of face value of 10/-
each of The Ramaraju Surgical Cotton Mills Limited, which would be [ssued to shareholders of

S Hannl Textiles Limited of face value of B10/- each, as consideration for the transaction

For the atoresaid purpose. The Ramaraju Surgical Cotton Mills Limited have appolnted Den

Valuation (OPC) Private Limited *Den’®) 1o submit 3 regort on

¢« Recommendation of Share Exchange Rato on Merger of 5n Hanni Textiles Limited into The
Ramaraju Surgical Cotton Mills Limited.

The Scope of cur services is

# To recommend Shares Exchange Ratio far igssue af TRSCM's eguity sharets 1o the Bguity

shareholders of the 54TL in accordance with generally accepted professional standards

The valuer appointed has worked ingdependently in their analysis, The Valuer has recened

information and carification from the companies. For recommending share Exchange Ratio, the

Valuation Report on Swap Rato on rerger of SHTL b TESCK

Complex, Mehrumagor, Ahmedobad - 380 015

Gopal Polacae, Nr. Shiromani
it jigor@denyvoluation.com | Welnite | wny, de

(M) B6E25 42466 | 97730 20484 PH. : 079 4894 2466 | E-Mall ;
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Afrive at the consensus on the share exchange Rato, appropriate rounding off In the values
armved at by the valuer has been done.

We have been provided with historical finandal information for the companies” upto 30™ June
2027, We have considered the same In our Report, Our analysis does not factor impact of any
event which is unusial or not in normal course of business, We have relied on the above while
armving at the share Exchange Ratio for the transaction

This Report is our dellvered for the above engagement

This Report is subject to the scope, assumption, exclustons, Limitations and disclaimers detalled
hereinatter. As such, the Report Is to be read in 1oality, and not in parts, in conjunction with the
relevan! documents referred to therein,

SOURCES OF INFORMATION

In connecnon with exercise, we have used the following Information received from the
management and/or gathered from public domain:

* Audited financial statements of the companies for the 3 vears ended 31st March 2018, 31st
March 2019, 31st March 2020 and 31 March 2027;

» Provisional Financial Statement for the year ended an 30™ June, 2021

* Management certified future projections of the companies for next 7 years till 31™ March,
U2

= Number of equity shares/ shareholding pattem of the companies as at 30" Jure 2021:

* Interviews and correspondence with the Management;

* Secondary research and market data on comparable comganies and information on recent
transactions, to the extent readily avallable; and

= Such other analysis, reviews and enquiries, as we considered relevant

-

The companies have been provided with the opportunity to review the draft report (excuding

the recommended share exchange ratio) as part of our standard practice to make sure that

factual inaccuracies/omissions are avaided in our final report

valuatad Kepsrt on Swap Ratio on fTharger F SHTL brvis TR

Biaol. Gopal Paloce, Me, Shiromoni Camplex, Mehrenogar, Ahmedabad = 380 015 e
Gia - i £ | Websike ¢ waw cenvaluatkan.com
(M} 96625 424668 | 97730 2DAG4 DH. : 070 4808 2466 | E-Mail : jigar@Pdenvaluation.com

i ——————————
ammae S USSR S iR




de

SCOPE LIMITATIONS, ASSUMPTIONS, QUALIFICATION, EXCLUSIONS AND
DISCLAIMERS

Provisions of valuations opmions and considerations of ssues described herein are areas of our
regular practice; The services do not regresent accounting, assurance, accounting/ftax due
diligence, cansulting or tax related services thal may otherwise be provided by us or our
affiliates

lhis Heport, s contents and the resulls herein are specific to (i) the purpose of valuation agreed
a3 per the terms of our engagement; (i) the date of this Report and (i) the financial staternants
of the companies as at 307" June 2021 and other information provided by the management on

key events after 30" June 2021 till the date of the Report

Other than as stated above, the management has represented that the business activities of the
carmpanies, including their subsidiaries and associates, a= applicable, have been carried out in
the normal and ordinary course between 30™ June 2021 and the Report date and that no
tatesial adverse change has pccurred in their respective operations and financial pesitions

Detween 30" June 2021 and the Report date

An analyss of this nature is necessarily based on the prevailing stock market, finandal, ecanamic
and other conditions in general and industry trends in particular as in effect on, and ths
information macde avallable to us as of, the date hereof. Events and transactions occurring after
tha date hereof may affect this Report and the assumptions used in prepanng it and we do not
assumme any obhigation to update. revise or reaffirm this repon,

The ultimate analysis will have 1o be tempered by the exercise of judicious discretion by the
valuer and judgment taking into accounts ail the refevant factors. There will always be several
factors. eg. management capability, present and prospective competition, yield on comparable
securnties, market sentiment, &te, which are nat ewident from the Face of the balance shests but
which will strangly influence the worth of a share This concept is also recognifed in judicial

GBCISIONS

e recommendations rendered in this Report only represent our recormmendations based upon
intormation furnished by the companies [or its executives/representative) and other sources and
the said recommendations shall be considered to be in mature of non-binding advice, tour

recommendations will however not be wsed for adwising anybody to take buy or sell decison,

updaie this Repoit
Valuation Report on Swap Rate on merger of SHTL into TRECH :

ex, Nehrunagar, Ahmedobod - 380013 S50 v

1. Copol Palace, Nr. Shiromani Compl 3
i # |iﬂﬂr~?‘d~wrrm1uu:llt-h.c-:-ml Webisite  wwadeny

(M) 96625 424886 | GT730 20484 PH, : 072 4898 2456 | E-Mail:

o
g —————




de

The determination of this exchange ratio is not precise science and the conclusions arrived at in
mary cases will, of necessity, be subjective and dependent on the exercise of individual
judgment. There |s, therefore no single share exchange ratio, While we have provided our
apinion on the share exchange ratio based on the share information available to us and our
recommendations of the share Exchange ratio within the scope of our engagement, others may
have a different opimon The final responsibility for the determination of the shars
exchange/entitement ratio at which the proposed transaction shall take place will be with the
board of directors who should take into account other factors such as their own assessment of
the proposed transaction and input of other advisors

in the course of the valuation, we werg provided with both written and verbsl information,
including market, Technical, Financial and operating data,

in accordance with the terms of our engagements, We have assumed and relied upon; without
independent wverification,(1] the accuracy of the information that was publicly available and
formed a substantial basis for this report and (2) the accuracy of information made available to
us by the companies, in accordance with our Engagement Letter and in accordance with the
custormary approach adopted in valuation exercises, we have not audited, reviewed or otherwise
imeestigated the historical financial information provided to us. We have not independently
investigated or otherwise verified the data provided by the companies Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on offer any form of assurance regarding the truth and fairness of the
hinancial pasition as indicated in the firancial statements. Also, with respect to sxplanations and
infermatian sought from the companies, we have been given to understand by the managemeant
of the companies that they have not omitted any relevant and material factors about the
companies, Our conclusions are based on tha assumptions and information given by/fon behalf
ot the compames and reliance on public information. The Management of the companies has
mdicated 1o us that they have understood that any omissions inaccuracies or misstatements
may matertally affect our valuation analysis/results. Accordingly, we assume no responsibility for
ary errars in the information furnished by the companies and their impact on the report nothing
has come to gur attention 1o indicate that the information provided was materially mis-stated/
incorrect or would afford reasonable grounds upon which 1o base the report.

The report assumes that the companies comply fully with relevant faws and regulation
applicable in all its areas of operations unless otherwese stated, and that the companies will be
managed in a competent and responsible manner. Further, except as specifically stated to the
contrary, this valuation report has given no consideration 10 matiers af a |'|.'I=|d| Malure, Iﬂcluuin{J
issues of legal tite and compliance with local laws, and Litigation and other contingent liabile

Valuat:on Repart on Swap fatio on mesger of SHTL into TRSCM Fa
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af value assumes that the assets and liabilites of the companies and their subsidiaries, reflected

i therr respective latest balance sheets remain Intact as of the report date

We are not advisors with respect 1o legal, tax and regulatory matters for the transaction. This
report does not look Into the business/ commerdial reasons behind the transaction or the Likely
benefits ansing out of the same Similarly, it does not address the relative merits of the
transaction as compared with any other alternative business transaction, Or other alternatives, o

whether or mot such allermatives could be achisved or are available.

Mo investigation of the companies’ claim to title of assets has been made lor the purpose of this
report and the companmies claim to such rights has been assumed to be valid. Mo consideration
nas been given to Liens or encumbrances against the assets, beyond the loans disclosed in the

accounts. Theretore, no responsibility s assumed for matters of a legal nature,
The fee for the engagement is not contingent upon the results reported

We owe responsibility 1o only the boards of directors of the companies that has appointed us
under the terms of our engagement letters and nobody elze. We will not be Liable for any
losses, claims, damages or liabilities arising out of the actlons taken, omissions of or advice
given by any aother advisor to the companies. In no event shall we be liable for any lpss,
damages, cost or expenses anising In any way from fraudulent acts, misrepresentations or willful
default on part of the Companies, their Directors employees ar agents. Unless specfically
agreed, in no circurnstances shall the lability of 2 Valuer, its pariners, its directors or employess,
relating to the services provided in connection with the engagement set out in this report shall

exceed the amount paid 1o such Yaluer in respect of the fees charged by it for these services

We do not accept any Liability to amy third party in relation to the issue of this report |t is
understood that this analysis does not represent & faimess opinion on the share Exchange Ratio,
This Report 15 not & substitute for the third party’s own due diligence) appraisal! enguines/
imdependent advice that the thirg party should undertake for his purpose. This valuation report
IS subject to the laws of india.

Meither the valuation report not its contents may be referred to or quoted in‘any registration
statement, prospectus offering memorandum, annual report, loan agreernent or other
agresrment or document given to third partias, other than in connection with the proposad

Scheme of amalgamation, without our prior written consent except for disclosures to be made
1o shareholders of the Companies, Registrar of Companies, NCLT of the State(s)

registered oftfices of the Companies are present and other relevant judicial, reqgul

Yakiation Repoi an ';.l.-.'.:lp Ratio on merger of SHTL e TRECK L
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government authorities as may be mandatorily reguired by the applicable faws, In connection
with the Transaction outlined here. You may disclose the Report to vour lawyers, statutory
augitors, and aovisors a6 long as you inform them, in advance, that we accept no liability to
them and that no onward disclosure may be made. To the extent required by law/ regulatary
authority's/ stock exchanges, we will provide workings supporting our recommended share
exchange rmatio. To extent required by any law or authority, We will co-operate with the
Companies to address the queries fcomments of reguistory, governmental or judical
authonties. In addition this repart dogs not in any manner address the prices at which equity
shares of the Companie: will trade following announcement of either company should vote at

any sharehoiders’ meeting(s) to be held in connaction with the transaction.

BRIEF BACKGROUND OF THE COMPANIES FORMING THE PART OF THE SCHEME
OF ARRANGEMENT

The Ramaraju Surgical Cotton Mills Limited (hereinafter referred 1o as ‘the Transteree
Company” or “TRSCM") was incorporated on 20-02-1939 under the provisians af the Companies
Act, 1856 under the flagship of Rameco Group. The Ramaraju Surgical Cottan Mills Limited, CIN:
LIFTTTTNTI32PLCDOZ30L 1s hawving its registered office at PO Box Mo, 2, 119 P A C Ramaswamy
Raja Salal Rajapalayam-626 117, Tamilnadu. India.

Ihe Transteree Company is engaged In the business of manufacturing and selfing of sbsorbent
cotton, gauze, bandages snd other wound-care products in Southern India It is also engaged in
the business of spinning ang weawing, producing some af the world’s finest cotton yarn and

marufacturing premium fabrics for shirting, bed linens and Jecquard cloth

Equity Shares of TRSCM are listed on Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India. Its equity shares are
infrequently traded shares within the meaning of requiation 164 of SEB| ICDR Regulations

The issued and subscribed equity share capital of TRSCM as at 30" June 2021 is 73,94,65.600
consisting of 39,46 560 equity shares of face value of 10 Each. The Shareholding' Pattem is as

frallesiars

| Particulars B MNo. of Shares | % of Holding
Fromoter & Promoter Group 1700680 | ﬂi-ﬂ?';
Public - 22,45 BED 5691 %
Tatal 39,46,560 100.00 %

Source: HHIE.QEF'IEIH
¥ Face Value af T 10 sach

Wesiration Kepart on Swap Fatia on marer of SHTL mio TRECM B
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Sri Harini Textiles Limited [hereinafter referred 1o as ‘the Transferor Company’ or 'SHTLY) was
incarporated on 13th Gctober 2005 SHTL is an unlisted Public Limited Company having [ts
registered office at S5 Bhavanam 102, P S K Nagar, Rajapalayam, Virudhunagar Dist - 626108
SHTL is part of the textile division of the Ramco group. SHTL has a capacity of 1,440 rotors
SHTL speciglises in the manufacture of open-end (QE) varm with a count size ranging between &

and 22 counts

e Ramaraju Surgical Cotton Milis Limited (Transferee Company) holds 49.67% of the aquity
share capital of the Sr Harini Textiles Limited {Transferar Company).
The issued and subscribed equity share caplital of SHTL as at 30" June 2021 is 73,00,00,000

congisting of 30,00,000 equity shares of face value of £10 each. The Sharehcolding pattern is as

tollawws

| Particulars [ No. of Shares | % of Holding

| Pramaoter & Promoter & Promoter Group 29,649,500 98,98 %
F".|||| 1 30,500 .02 %
Tutal 30.00,000 100.00 %% |

Source; Manpgement
# Face Value of T10 2ach

The Ramaraju Surgical Cotton Mills Limited and Sri Hanni Textiles Limited are part of RAMCO
Group

APPROACH & METHODOLOGY

The tollowing are valuation approaches and cammonly wsed and accepted methods for
detarmining the value of the equity shares of @ company/business:

1. Market Approach &
# Market Price Method
 Camparable Cormpanies Quoted Multiples method

2. Income Approach
#  Dicoaunted Cash Flews method

3. Cost Approach
s Mot Asiel Value method

Valuation Reporl on Swap Rato on mearger of SHEL o FRSCK
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It should be understood that the valuztion of any company or its assets s inherently imprecise
and 1s subject to certain uncertainties and contingencies, all of which are difficult to predict and
are beyvond our contral. In performing our analysis, we made numerous assumptions with
respect to industry performance and Gereral business and economic conditions, many of which
are beyond the control of the companies. Further, this valuation will fluctuate with lapze of time,
changes in prevailing market conditons, the conditions and prospects financial and otherwise,
of the Companies, and other factors which generally influence the valuation of companies and

their assets

The Application of any particular methed of valuation depends on the purpose for which the
valuation is done. Although different values may exist for different purpose, it cannot be too
ttrongly emphasizad that a Valuer can anly arrive at one valde for one purpose. Our choice ot
methodology of valuation has been arrived at using usual and conventional methodologies
adepted for transactions of a similar nature and our reasonable judgment, in an independent

and bona fide manner based on our previous expenence of assignments of a similar nature.

Both are Operating companies and have significant business activites while TRSCM holds
significant investment In SHTL In view of group companies-cum operating nature of both
Companies, the above approaches/methods was considered relevant for valuing TRSCM and
S5HTL

The tallowing paragraphs discuss different valustion methods and their applicaton for valuing

the companies, thelr businessas) myvestmeants
Market Price (MP) Method

The Market price of an equity share a5 quoted on a stock exchange is normally considered as
the value of the equity shares of that company where such quotations are arsing from the
shares being regularty and freely traded in, subject to the element of speculative support that
may be inbuilt in the value of the shares But there could be situatians where the value of the
share as guoted on the stock market would not be regarded 55 a proper index of the fair value
of the share especially where the market values are fluctuating in a valatile capital market
Further, in the case of @ merger, where there 5 & question of evaluating the shares of one
company. against those of another the volume of tramsactions and the number of shares
avalable for trading on the stock exchange over a reasonabde penod would have o be of

comparable standard

Yaluation Heaod on Swap Hatioon menger of SHTL into THSCKM
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In the present case, equity shares of TRSCM are listed on Metropolitan Stock exchange. Its
shares are infrequently traded in the market. Hence, the Market price does nat reflect the fair
value. Hewever, other company (e SHTL |5 not listed on any exchanges. Hence, we have not

cansiderec this method Into consideration
Comparable Companies’ Quoted Multiple (CCM) Method

Under this method, Value of the equlty shares of a company is arrived at by using multiples
derived from valuations of camparable companies, as manifest through stock market valuation
of listed companies. This valuation is based on the principle that market valuations, taking place
between informed buyers and imfarmed sellers, incorporate all factors refevant to valuation

Lomparatle company analysis (also calied “wrading maultiples™ or "peer group analysis™ or "aquity
comps” or “public market multiples”] Is a refative valuation methiod In which you compare the
current value of a businass to other similar businesses by leoking at trading multiples like B/E
EV/EBITDA, or other ratios, Multipies of EBITDA are the most common valuation method
Relevant multiples need 10 be chosen carefully and adjusted for differences between the

CIMCUMSTances

There was significant Hustuations in the turnover, Proft after Tax, EBIDTA of TRSCM and SHTL
aver the past few years. No similar size company with having similar revenues and profit found
in the marker hence we have nat considered this methed for valuation of both companies using
CCM method

Comparable Companies” Transaction Multiple (CTM) Method

Linder this method, value of the equity shares of a company / business s arrived at by using
multipla derved from valuation in comparable companies, as manifest through transaction
Valuations. Relevant multiples need to be chosen carefully and adjusted differences between the
Circumstances. g

The CTM valustion methed provides an obsenable value for the business, based on what
coimipanies are currently worth. Comps are the most widely wsed approach, as they are easy to

calculate and always current

For valuing business/investments of these companies, we have considered the comparaoie
transactions, with subject company/business specific adjustment, far the purpose of m
L1 R
; ¥
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valuation analysis, Wherever and if deemsd agpropriate, industry specific benchmark have been

in e analysis

In the present case, we have not faund any similar transaction oocurred in the same industny
durng the recert time. Hence, we have nat considered this method to determing its value

Discounted Cash Flows (DCF) Method

Jnder the DCF method the project free cash flows 1o the equity shareholders are discourted at
the cost of equity, The sum of the discountad value of such frea cash flow is the value of the
TIFFTY

Using the DCF analysis invalves determining the fallowi 1.

Estimating future free cash flows:

Free cash fiows are the cash flows expected to be generated by the company that are available
to the providers of the company's equity capital,

A Horgprnate discount rate ta be ﬂF‘I:'riE'Ij to cash ﬂﬂ"."-'S i.2. the cost ,:._l' eguity:

Thes discount rate, which is applied to the fres cash flows, should reflects the OppOfunily cost to
e equity capital providers {namely shareholders), The apportunity cost to the equity capital
provider equals the rate of return the equity capital provider expects to earn on other

Investments of equivalant risk

We have used DCF Method of valuation for valuing beth the company.

valeition Repo on Swap Ratio on merger of SHTL into TRSCKM
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Met Asset Value (NAV) Methodology

The cost based valuation technique is based on the value of the underlying net assets of the
ausiness, sither on a book value basis or realizable value basis or replacement cost basis. This
valuation approach Is mainly used in case where the firm is to be liguidated .2 it does not meet
the "going concern” criterla or In case where the assete base dominate earnings capability,

Muareaver this method may be used to provide the base value for the share

TRSCM was formed in the year 1938, It iz profit making company and having significant
nvestment in other group companies as well, 1t's valuation under this meathicd will not reflect its
fair vaiue of equity shares. Hence, we have not considered this method for valuation of TRSCM

sHTL is loss making company but IS profit margin are improving and it is expacted to deliver
profit in future years. Hence, we have not considerad this method of valuation for valuation of

SHTL a5 well
Share Exchange Ratio

The share exchange ratio has been arived at an the basis of an equity valuation of the
companes. The share exchange ratio is based on the varicus methodology explained herain
earlier and varigus qualitative factors relevant to each company and the business dynamics and
growth potentials of the businesses of the companies, having regard to information base, kKey

ungderlying assumptions and limitations.

Valuer, as considered appropriate, have Independently applied methodolagies discussed above
2nd armved at their assessment of value per shaie of the companies. To arrive at the corsensus
on the share exchange ratio, suitable averaging and rounding off in the values arrived at by the
valuer have been done

valuaisin Repodt on Swap Rt an merger of SHTL into TRSCM
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COMCLUSION

I lignt ot the above, and on a consideration of all the relevant factors and circurnstances as

ditcussed and oullined hereinabiowve

share Exchange Ratio for Merger of Sri Harini Textiles Limited into The Ramaraju Surgical
Cotten Mills Limited.

n view ol appicabion of retevant approach and methodology and amiving fair value of both
Companies vz TRSCM and SHTL we recommend the sHare exchange ratio of 34 {Thirty Four)
equity snare of 210/ each fully paid up in the share capital of TRSCM to issue for every 1,000
One Thousand) equity shares of ¥10/- each hield to the shareholder of SHTL

The Computation of fair Bxchange Ratio is attached a5 per Annexure |

For, Den Valuation [(OPC) Private Limited

Jigar P Shah
Managing Director

RVE: |BBI/RV-E/06,/2021/146
Place: Ahmedabad

Date: 27th September 2021
UDiM: 211159 16AAAAKNES3D
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ANMEXURE |
Computation of Fair Share Exchange Ratio
Merger of SHTL into TRSCM

Valuation Approach i SHTL (Note 1) | TRSCM {Note 2)
. _.'u.l'_alun» -PI:II' . 'il";l'-;g_l'tl | Value Per | Weight i
Share [ sShare
i_';_l:-ﬁt Approach | 2800 | oo 79600 | 000% |
| Income Approach | 4300 | 10000 145900 100.00%
|MarketApproach | NA | 000% | NA “ 0.00%
Total | 4500 | 100.00% | 145900 | 100.00%

Note 1 - We have only used Discounted Cash Flaw Method under Income Approach 1o
getermine the Fair Value of share. DCF Method truly represents the economic value as
compared to the CCM Method and Cost Approach. Since the Company 15 loss making since last
lew years, no simidar companies found as comparative to this company. Hence, we have not
used COM method for SHTL

MNote £ - We have used only Discourted Cash Flow Method under Income Approach a5 cost
approach don't reflect fair value of the company, hence, we have not considered such method
1o arrive fair value of TRSCM and there is no similar listed companies compared 1o size, profit of
TRECM, hence we have also not considered market approach while arriving fair valuation of
TRSCKL.

RATIO:
>4 (Thirty Fours equity share of TRSCM of 210 each fully paid up for every 1,000 (One Thousand)
equity shares of SHTL of 210 each fully paid up

lUALinn Report on SwWep Katio on metges of SHTL into TRSCM
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Annexure 3

Provate & Canbiclential

FAIRNESS OPINION REPORT

AMALGAMTION OF SRI HARINI TEXTILES LIMITED

WITH

THE RAMARAJU SURGICAL COTTON MILLS LIMITED

VIVRO

YVivro Financelal Seoees Private Limiced

Yhis Eoinees Joinien Bepasn s Doy sobendTied by Voo Srdieea! Spoecos Privarp Leorpd foy [he Purna s a<
crRniane Aersnn, Fod a0 S0l e uEed D0 Ay OXRER Rord e welars e e
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Yivra Financial S5ervices Pnvats Limited
Regd, Gifice - -

Yivro Hause, T, Shashs Colony, Typ. Suvdha Shoppifg Senter,
Paldi, abmedabacl, Gujarat, hwdla - 380 D07

Tl :+ 944 79 ) 4040 41 2

WAL YT ek

Septeamber 27, 2021 Private 2l Cnnfidenzl
Tll, To,

The Board of Directors The Baard of Divectors

5ri Harimi Textiles Limited The Ramaraju Surgicel Cotton Mills Limited
&r Bhawvanam 102, P& Pamasamy Raja Salai,

P 5 K Hagar Fajapalayam, Hajapa awam,

Vi-udbunagar Tamilnadu - R25117

Tamilmrdu - 625104

Subject Fairness Opinion Rapoart on the recommendation &f Share Exchange Ratio issued by
Den Valuation (QOPC} Private Limiled dated September 27, 2021, for the proposed
amalgamation of Sri Hanni Textlles Limed inte The Ramaraju Surgical Cotton Mills
Limnited

Sri Harini Textiles Limited (CIH WIT1VITHH0SPLCOSTERT) [SHTL or Transieror Compary'h.
incarporated on Ocluber 13, 2005, undar the Companies AC1 1936 is #ngaged in the manufacturing
of cpen-end yarn. The Rarma-igju Surgpcsl Cotlan Bills Lirsited 0CIW L171TITMASIOPLCOGZ 20
STRECML or Transleres Compsny'), incorponated on Febreary 20, 193%. urder the Companies A,
19EE is engaged in production of surgical drecsing including absorbent cottan. gauze, bandages, “and
wher wound-care oroducts ir Southern Ingdia, The equity snares of TRSCML are listed or. the
Metropalitar S1ock Exchange OF Inde (PAET SHTL and TRECML are 1agether be raterrad to as “the
Compisnits,

The management of The Companies propese 1o poter into a dcheme of Amalgamation { Lhe Scherne’)
whiere SHTL shall ke amalgamated o TRECML uncer Section 230 to Section 232 of the Companics
Aecn 2003 as el a5 terms af and ather applicanle provisions of lzes 'the 5cheme’].

accorchngly, a5 cenquired nncer SEEN Master Circular SEBLHOSCFOVDIL ACIRZPETR2O 24 dat=d
Oocombier 22 2020, av amemdad [SERI Cieculary ssued under regulstions 11, 37 and 94 of the
Sern - ties and Exchanine Board af ndia (L sting Chligations and Disclosure Reguiremcns Regu latizng,
21N % &t amended (REBI LODOR Requlat.ons’), TRSCRML has appointed Vierd Finandal Seddices Private
Lirnited, Caegony 1 Merchant Banker registered with SEBI hawnu oty Reg stration Mumber
[HROANOIO122 [ivro', ‘Werchant Banksr, 'we', "us', 'ourl, vide an Eqyayement Letter dated August
1%, 2021 -0 issu€ a Fairness Opinicn Report oo the vawaten repar ecommending share exchanga
ratic dated September 27, 2021 issued by 4 Registered Vale o, being Ben Valyatwn (2PC Private
Limited "the Yaluaticn Repert’], registercd w Lh W [nsaleeney angd Bankruptey Board of India (IBEI
Reqgistratiar Nurnber, 1BBRY -EADG 20210 126T} 4 The Registeed Yaluer, the Valuer').

TN - IMNZeq ASETEGFTNE, Mechent Barker 5ot Seg Mo, W00 22, Al Beg ko AB 86



Private and Confidential

v coanection with the same, we hereby attach aur Fairness Opinion Repert in tonns o he SEEB
Cirrular

Far, ¥iuro Financial Services Private Limited

Fiyesh Vithlan
5r. Yice Prad|dént
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Prieate and Coaldantizl

BACKEZROUND
SEI HARIMI TEXTILES LIMITED

SHTI i apnbic invitad company inconporated or Cotaber 1302000, ander the Carmoanes o,
1456, having SR L1711 THN2005MLC0STEOT and its registerec office at 5 Bhavonarn 102, F 5
¥ Magar Rajapalayam, Vinadhunagar, Tamilnadu - E20708. SHTL w engogel] e The
manufartoring of oper-2nd yarn having a capacity of 1440 Rotors at Theromolagn Vi lage,
Krishna Distnct, Andhrz Pradash. The sharetulding pattarn of SHTL (Faca walae: s, 100 a5 an
June 30, 2321, i= a5 fellows:

Hara Equity Shares *Sharehoiding
Proomober & Promater Groops 1940500 ] 9a%8EM,
Pulali 10500 L2

Total A0.00.004 10 00%

THE RAMARAIU SURGICAL COTTON MILLS LIMITED

TRSCML is a public fimted company nconpoared on kebraary 200 1939 bearing Tl
LT7111TE929PLII02 202, and its résgistored ofTice s siluated ab PAC Ramasany, Raja Salai.
Rapaplavam, Tarulngdy - 628117 TRECMI is angaged in production of surgical dressing
nchading slesarteal cotten, gawge, ardages ang atber wound-care praducts in Southenn
Irdia, IH3CML is alsa diversified nto spinmng and waaving, preduong cotton yare and
manu’acturing prernium abncs for shirting, bed lirens and Jacquard cath. The equity shares
iof the TRECMI are listed on the MSE, The sharshploing pattern of TRECML (Fare value: Bs 100
&% June 3t 2021, s as follows:

Category ] Equity Shares = | %Shareholding

F"n:-r_n-:ute -Ec Provoter Group 17 GO GHEG 45,000,

Bl © zzASaan 56.51%
Total 156,45,560 100.00%

< < This space s mzentinnally Igft Blank = =
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Private and Canf dantia

SCOPE AND FURPOSE OF THIS FAIRNESS OFIMICMN REPORT

Tre Board of Dwectors of TRSCML and SHTL are planning to enter nio a 5cheme of
Amalgamation in accardance waith Seclien 23 o 232 and alher zpplicabla provisiens of the
Companiay Arl #0131 a5 amended and riles framed theraunder and in covspliarie willl Ue
pravizions of the mearme Tax Act, 1961, This Scherma prow des for Amalgamation of SHTL with
andd inty TRSCKAL wath effact from the Apnointrd Date. The Appainted Cale m dpnl 1. 2021,

For e aforesan aurpose of amdlpamation of SHTL with and oo TRECKL TRSCRL has
appenmiee] Dhen valyation (QPC) Privase Limited, Registared Yalaer, 0 soo¥in & Valudhon
Fepoit recommending she edquity share exchange ratio, w be placed kefore the Board of
Qirpetors of TRECAL and SHTL.

The seope of our servicas is o issue a Faimess Opinitn Repart an the Yaluation Repert iszued
oy the Registerad Valoer recommending tie edquily Shale edchange ranc, for the
amalgamation as proposed in Part I of the Scheme, in aocardance with generaily acceptabla
prefessional standards.

The scope of cur serwces incwdes Tarrming an adinion o0 the fairness on the recommendatian
of the Registered Valuer aral does not invalve ooining an the Fairness or ecoromic ralionale
of the Schame pear e,

1nig Fa rness Dpinion Repnm s our deliverable or this engagement and may b gsed {or the
aurpese of campying with the requirements of the requlationg 11, 37 and $ of the SE&I LODR
Resqulaziens and the SEBI Creular ard for submivsion to regulalo-y snd statutary authorities in
connection with the Echemea.

Cur Fairness Opinicn Report is prepared sololy for 1he puipose gotlined hereinabove. Tha
distribution of this Fairness Opirion Eepot shal' heree be eestricted to the Companies,
Sharaholders. SEBI, Stock Excharge ang such gther requlatony bodies required to give effact
ta the Scherre, incoding but nat hmited (o Regisirar of Companies and Nalicnal Compsany
Law Tribunal. This Fairness Cpiticn feport shall nol be relied upan by any othar person for
anry ather pur pose whalsocver and she Comsa nies agrae ta this fact.

This Fanrsess Opinion Kot § subjec; o 1he scope assumptions, exclusions, limitations ard
chsclgimers detailed herginafter. &g such, the Fairness Opinion Repart is ta ke readt in totality,
and nat ir pars. n gonjunclion with the relevant documents refierrad Lo “weren.
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Mrvata and Comiidential
A0URCES OF INFORMATION

Wie have relied on the following information made avalabla tooos by U eanaoement of tha
Carnpanies for the purpose ot 1his Fairness Opinion Repart:;

Drrall Schewe of Amalgematcn betwesn TRSCML goal SITL under Sertens 23010 232 and
other applicable prossions of the Comparmes &gt 20013 a5 may be subritted o the Sk
Exthiing g,

Yaluation Reprarl of Den Valuabion (SPC) Private Limited, Reqistered Ya'wes dated September
2T, U2

Agditen Fingngial Stataments of TRSCML & 5HTL tor the year erded on March 27, 2021, March
31, 200, March 31, 2004, and March 31, 24118;

ranagrment cerited provisicnal financial statement of TRSCKML & SHIL for the 3=month
peridd endad on June 30, 2027

Projectad profitabi‘ity and balanca skeet of TRECAML & SHTL for the poric] droem July 1, 2021,
10 karch 31, 2028;

Wrillen repiesantatons received frorr coopanes dated hephembes 3T, 30271,

Such other information and explanations as required and which have been providad by 1he
manragement of the Comgpanies, which were considered relevant far the purpose of Fairness
CIpinion Reprdt.

The Campanies have been provided with the oppartunity to review the draft Fairmess Opiron

Report as part of our standard practice to make sure Lat {actual naccwracy § oimistions ane
avrriderd.

< <Th:g space is infenlionally 1eft blanks s
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4, RATIONALE OF THE 5CHEME

A5 stated in the Draft Zcheme nf Amalgamation mads avai.able to us the rationale of the Scheme s
as nndar

“The direc furs of e Transferor Compeny derd $he Mronsferge Cormpary Aove decidad fo amalpaioaie He
Transfaroe Company with the Thrasferes Company o arder fo ensure better monogement of the
Corngmany oy d sengle wan with focused rdspgerness copebdiiées, Te direchors &f e Trams feror
Lompsny amd e Transferee Camyany are of the gimian that the Tronsfercr Cormpany omd the
Tresisfersg COMPRAT ke amt af M same groug dad gre euing conman prewarers @ accordingly,
tha ameslgmmaiion of the Tronsferor Compony Ato the Transferen Compeny poarsuiant to the Scheme
woedd rescdd 1 sireamifining Fhe grout corpende strbchere. The grealqanration will further ersable fo
raduce the pumber of entites withi? the mroup That require [0 De gomumsiersd ord oo fhelp rogfese
cperofional e which woodd alio reselt @ senplifcalion of firecture and ogeronons arid swacid

Lenefit both the Tronsferor Compeny ard the Transferea Compony in the followeng manrer:

[0 Fedeclion (m aperafve onod oomisiroli e Cose

) Econemies of somle, improved camtal otlocation. aptimum ukleralice of resoorces oo dper il
T o

) Eliminafion of inder-company hgdaings and Japening of iwesingats ond business operations,
iir Sireptificanion of Moragement shucire;

il Stronger greer hgse and infrasielckong for futirg growth

« « This space is intent cnally left olank: =
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SALIEMT FEATURES OF THE 5CHEME

With ettec: lronttne Apponed e th whaole aT1he Undetakings of the TransFeror Cam pany
camprising theinentre omsiness, dll assels and g bolities of whatsoever nature ard wheresoever
situated, welychnrg the immcvable propertees, f any shall. under the prowsions of Section 220
Lex 232 anisl all plher applicabe pravis ons, if any, of The Act, withauot 2ny farther act or deed be
traniforred 4o and weasted noandy ar he cermead o be ransterred to and wvested 10 the
Transfeee Lompaty a5 & crng Soncera $a as to became, as fram e Appoirted Date, the
Lhaddercaking & of the Trarsferas Cornpany and ko wast in the Transferae Compary all he rghts,
ulle, iaterest o qbligalwons of the Transferor Company therein.

pan 1ne amalgamation af SHTL ing and with TRSCKL gursaant 1o the Scheme becoming
effective an the Efective Date, TRSCKL will issue its aquety sharex 1 the sharghdaldes of ZHTL
an the record date, in accordance with Lhe equity share excharkge raue sppaoved oy e Baard
ol Directors of each of SHTL and TRECML and purswant to 3echons 230 1o 232 and othes
relevant provisions of the At ir tha waneer provided Tor i Ues 3cheme ard 1 compliange
with the provsicns of the lncame Tax AcL 1967,

TRSCML bring & sharehalder of SHTL. the Transfaree Company shall nat be isswed 2ny equity
shares under vie 3cheme in considecation, The equity shares af SHTL held by TRSCKL skall be

cancedled and extinguished upen the scherme coming into effect.

all unter company balarces betwaean tha Companies shall stand cancelled upen th Bcheme
coming irto effert and applicable from the Appointed Date.

Upan the Scheme coming into effect, 1the Transterer Cornpary shall, seitkaut any Fother actk,
instrurnent, or dead. stand dissolved withou! fellowing the process of winding vz

« «This space & intenuonally lefl blanks >
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VALUER'S RECOMMENDATION

b5 inlarmed to a5 by the mamagemenl of the Cormpares, the soope of sevices nf the
Registerec Waluer fa- the proposed womposite Subeme of aramgement i te cary aul a
valuation of eguily shiaes of TRECML zndd SHTL ardd deteimn ne a share exchangs ratio for the
proposed Scheee,

The share exclange ratio has besn arived 26 an the basis of relative valoation ot 1Re equity
shares of TRRCRL angd SHTL based an medmndalogy as sxplained in tha Yaluation Repart,
dated Septembe: 27 2081, issued by Den Valuation [OPFS Private L'mited and varicus
(kb Faciors relevant to TREZML and SHTL respectively. and the busingcs dynamics as
well 3% geowath potential of the businesses, and aso naving regard 10 inforralion Lass,
managernent representations and parcaptions, key underlying azsurmptions and b tatw ne,

Mceard naly. on the basie ot al the relevent factors and circomylanced as dirlssee and
atlingd in 1he Waluation Reporl, dated Seplember 27, 2027, issued by Den Yaboglien SOPC)
Frivate Limited, it has been recommaended thal the egquity share archange ratia “or the
amalgamaticn of SHTL with and inlo TRIC ML, uhder Lhe proposed Scherwe shall be as follows;

34 oty sirones of foce wdioe TG each il poad en of TESOME for every 1000 equdty sfires
afl Fowe value ol INE 16 eaoh fudly paid of SHTL far the amelgamation of SHTL into TRECML

« & This. spra ce 5 intenionalky left b ank - =
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Priware and Canfidertial

LIMITATIONS, ASSUMBPTIONS, QUALIFICATIONS, EXCLUSIONS & DISCLAIMERS

This Fainess Doinion Report has been prepared for the purposas stated hargin and should not
b ralied upar bor any ol er porpode, This Fairness Opmoes Repoet v reclngtad far the purxode
imdicated in the Engogement Laiter but does net oreglude the mandgermaeny ol e Conrypsnes
t0 preneide 3 Copy of Uis Farnass Spapdr Repon] 10 thicd - party advisars whose resigw vl
b conuistent with the intenced wse, Wi da ol ke arsy respensi bolily for any wnqutharized
use of 1ms Farness Opnaion Repo,

e cane respRngib iy arly under the tere s af the Engagem ent Letrer. wie will not be lialle for
any [osses, clamms, damages ar liakilities arising out of the actians taken, prissions o advice
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METROPOLITAN STOCK EXCHANGE

MSEI/LIST/2022/126 January 28, 2022

The Company Secretary and Compliance Officer,
The Ramaraju Surgical Cotton Mills Limited
P.0.Box 2,119, P.A.C. Ramasamy,

Raja Salai, Rajapalayam,

Tamil Nadu — 626117.

Dear Sir/ Madam,

Sub.: Observation letter regarding the Draft Scheme of Amalgamation of Sri Harini Textiles Limited
with The Ramaraju Surgical Cotton Mills Limited.

This is in reference to the draft scheme of amalgamation filed by The Ramaraju Surgical Cotton Mills
Limited in terms of SEBI Circular No. CFD/DIL/3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017, as amended and
SEBI Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2020/249 dated December 22, 2020 as amended;
SEBI vide its letter dated January 27, 2022 has inter alia given the following comment(s) on the draft
scheme of arrangement:

e The Company shall ensure that additional information, if any, submitted by the Company,
dfter filing the scheme with the stock exchange, and from the date of receipt of this letter is
displayed on the website of the listed company and the stock exchange.

e No changes to the draft scheme except those mandated by the regulators/authorities/
tribunals shall be made without specific written consent of SEBI.

e The Company shall duly comply with various provisions of the said circular.

e The Company is advised that the observations of SEBI/ Stock Exchange shall be incorporated in
the petition to be filed before National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) and the company is
obliged to bring the observations to the notice of NCLT.

e The Company shall ensure that the scheme submitted with NCLT for sanction, provides for
voting by shareholders through e-voting, after disclosure of all material facts in the
explanatory statement sent to the shareholders in relation to such resolution.

e |tis to be noted that the petitions are filed by the Company before NCLT after processing and
communication of comments/ observations on draft scheme by SEBI/ Stock Exchange. Hence,
the Company is not required to send notice for representation as mandated under Section
230(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, to SEBI again for its comments/ observations/

representations.
Page 1 of 2
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According, based on aforesaid comment offered by SEBI, the company is hereby advised:

e To provide additional information, if any, (as stated above) along with various documents to the
Exchange for further dissemination on Exchange website.

e To ensure that additional information, if any, (as stated aforesaid) along with various documents
are disseminated on their (company) website.

e To comply with various provisions of the said SEBI circulars.

Further, it is to be noted that the petitions are filed by the Company before NCLT after processing and
communication of comments/ observations on draft scheme by SEBI/ Stock Exchange. Hence, the
Company is not required to send notice for representation as mandated under Section 230(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the Exchange for its comments/ observation’s/ representation’s.

In the light of the above, we hereby advise that we have no adverse observations with limited reference
to those matters having a bearing on listing/ de-listing/ continuous listing requirements within the
provisions of Listing Agreement, so as to enable the company to file the scheme with NCLT.

Further, wherever applicable in the explanatory statement of the notice to be sent by the company to
the shareholders, while seeking approval of the scheme, it shall disclose information about unlisted
company involved in the format prescribed for abridged prospectus as specified in the master circular
dated December 22, 2020.

Kindly note that as required under Regulation 37(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 the validity of this Observation Letter shall be six months from the
date of this Letter, within which the scheme shall be submitted to NCLT.

The Exchange reserves its rights to raise objections at any stage if the information submitted to the
Exchange is found to be incomplete/ incorrect/ misleading/ false or for any contravention of Rules, Bye-
laws and regulations of the Exchange, Listing Regulations, Guidelines / Regulations issued by statutory
authorities.

Yours faithfully,
For Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India Limited

P K Ramesh
Chief Regulatory Officer
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Chartered Accountants Srinivasan Krishnaswami
Managing Partner

|Annexure 5A|

Independent Auditor’s Report To the Members of Sri Harini Textiles Limited
Report on the Audit of Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of Sri Harini Textiles Limited (“the
Company”), drawn in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards, which comprise the
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year then ended on 31 March 2022 and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the State of Affairs (“Financial
Position”) of the Company as at 31 March 2022, its Profit (“Financial Performance including
Other Comprehensive Income”), its Cash Flows and Changes in Equity for the year ended on
31 March 2022.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (“SAs”) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
SAs are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Financial Statements
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl’s Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Financial Statements.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation of
the Other Information. The Other Information comprises the information included in the
Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s
Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s
Information, but does not include the Financial Statements and our audit report thereon.

Our opinion on the Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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Chartered Accountants Srinivasan Krishnaswami
Managing Partner
In connection with our audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the

other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the Financial Statements, or our knowledge obtained during the course of
our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this Other Information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated
in Section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation and presentation of these
Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the Financial Position, Financial
Performance (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flows and
the Statement of Changes in Equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate Internal Financial
Controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Financial
Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Financial Statements, Management and Board of Directors are responsible
for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
Management and Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements

as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue

an audit report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance

but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a

material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
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considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected

to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financial
Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We, also:

o |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

e Obtain an understanding of Internal Financial Controls relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether
the Company has adequate Internal Financial Controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our audit report to the
related disclosures in the Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our audit report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Financial Statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a
reasonably knowledgeable user of the Financial Statements may be influenced. We
consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in:

i.  Planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and
ii.  To evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the Financial Statements
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the Financial Statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
audit report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected
to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of Sub-Section (11) of Section 143 of the Act,
we give in the “Annexure A”, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and
4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report to the extent
applicable that:
a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best

of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company, as far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Cash Flow and
Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this report are in agreement with the
books of account.

d) Inour opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the Directors as on 31
March 2022 and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the Directors is
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disqualified as on 31 March 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of

Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f) We have enclosed our report in “Annexure B” with respect to the adequacy of the
Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting of the Company and the operating
effectiveness of such controls. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the
adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s Internal Financial Controls
over financial reporting.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us:

i.  The Company does not have any pending litigations as at 31 March 2022

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii.  There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred,
to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv.  (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kinds of funds) by
the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall:

i.  Whether directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”), or

ii. Provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

(b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds have been received by the Company from any person or entity
including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall:

i.  Whether directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”), or

ii.  Provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries; or

G7, Parsn Paradise 38, Selvanagar Main Road Tel: +91 93817 21405
46 GN Chetty Road Ponnagar Extension e-mail: srinivasan.k@msjandnk.in
T Nagar Chennai 600017 Trichy 620001 Web: www.msjandnk.in 103



M.S. JAGANNATHAN &
N. KRISHNASWAMI

Chartered Accountants Srinivasan Krishnaswami
Managing Partner
(c) Based on the audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate

in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to
believe that the representations under sub-clause (iv)(a) and (iv)(b) contain
any material misstatement.

v. There is no dividend declared or paid during the year by the Company and
hence the requirement of compliance with Section 123 of the Act does not
arise.

h) With respect to the matter to be included in the Audit Report under Section
197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Company to its Directors during the current year is in
accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to
any Director is not in excess of the limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act. The
Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16)
of the Act which are required to be commented upon by us.

For M. S. Jagannathan & N. Krishnaswami
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 001208S

b,weﬁ

K. Srinivasan

Partner

Membership No. 021510
UDIN: 22021510ANNWTC5801

Chennai
20 July 2022
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report

Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements” of our report of even date to the Financial Statements of the Company for
the year ended 31 March 2022:

We state the following after considering the information and explanations given to us by the
Company and on the basis of examination of the records of the Company:

1. Inrespect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets:

1.1. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
guantitative details and situation of Property Plant and equipment. The Company has
also maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

1.2. The Property Plant and Equipment were physically verified during the year by the
Company in accordance with the phased programme of verification which, in our
opinion, provides for physical verification of all Plant, Property and Equipment at
reasonable intervals. No material discrepancies were noticed during such verification.

1.3. The title deeds of immovable properties disclosed in the Financial Statements are held
in the name of the Company (Other than the properties where the Company is a
lessee, and the lease arrangements are duly executed in favour of the Company).

1.4. The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of
use Assets) and/or intangibles during the year and accordingly the provisions of clause
3(i)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

1.5. There were no Proceedings initiated or pending against the Company for holding
benami property under Benami Transaction (Prohibition) Act,1988 (45 of 1988) and
rules made there under, and accordingly the provisions of clause 3(i)(e) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

2. Inventory and Working Capital:

2.1. The Management has conducted the physical verification of inventory at reasonable
intervals. The discrepancies noticed on verification between the physical stocks and
the book records were properly dealt with in the books of account and were not
material.

2.2. The Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore
rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of
current assets. The quarterly returns or statements filed by the Company with such
banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the books of accounts of the
Company.

3. The Company has not made investments in, provided any guarantee or security or
granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to
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companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the

provisions of clause 3(iii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

4. The Company has complied with the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Act, in
respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and security

5. The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public and hence the directives
issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other
relevant provisions of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2015
with regard to the deposits accepted from the public are not applicable.

6. The Company has maintained accounts and records which have been specified by the
Central Government under Section 148(1) of the Act.

7. Undisputed and Disputed Taxes and Duties:

7.1. The Company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Provident
Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs, Goods and Service
Tax, Cess and any other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities. No
undisputed amounts payable in respect of the above were in arrears as at 31 March
2022 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

7.2. There were no disputed statutory dues that have not been deposited with appropriate
authorities.

8. There have been no such transactions which were not previously recorded in the books
of account but have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments by the Company, under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

9. Defaultin respect of repayment of Loans or interest during the year

9.1. The Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to financial institutions, banks,
government, debenture holders or any other lender.

9.2. The Company has not been declared as a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or any other lender.

9.3. The company has not obtained term loans during the year and accordingly the
provisions of clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

9.4. Funds raised on short term basis by the Company were not utilised for long term
purposes.

9.5. The Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to
meet the obligations of subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures and accordingly the
provisions of clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

9.6. The Company has not raised any loan during the year on the pledge of securities held
in the subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures and accordingly the provisions of
clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

10. Funds Raised:

10.1. The Company has not raised money by way of initial public offer or further public

offer during the year. The Company has not raised term loans from Banks or
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Financial Institutions during the year. The Company has not issued any debentures

during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

10.2. The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

11. Fraud and Whistle Blower System:

11.1. We report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company by its Officers or
employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

11.2. No report under sub-section (12) of Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the
auditors in respect of the Company, in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government during the
year and up to date of this report.

11.3. The Company’s management has not received any whistle blower complaints during
the year.

12. The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company

13. All transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of
the Act and the details have been disclosed in the Financial Statements as required by
the applicable Accounting Standards.

14. The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of
its business. We considered the reports of the internal auditors.

15. The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its Directors or
persons connected with them. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(xv) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

16. Registration

16.1. The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934 and accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(xvi)(a) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

16.2. The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities and accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

16.3. The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations
made by the Reserve Bank of India and accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(xvi)(c)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

16.4. The Group does not have any CIC as part of it and accordingly, the provisions of
clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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17. The Company has not incurred Cash during the current financial year. The Company has

incurred a Cash loss of Rs. 47.08 Lakhs during the immediately preceding financial year.

18. There was no resignation of statutory auditors of the Company during the year, hence
the clause 3(xviii) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

19. On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the
Financial Statements, we are of the opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on the
date of the audit report that the Company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at
the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from
the balance sheet date. Variations in ratios over 25% on comparison with previous year
has also been disclosed in the notes accompanying Financial Statements.

20. The Company is not required to constitute a Corporate Social Responsibility committee
and accordingly the provisions of clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable to the
company.

21. The Company has no requirement to prepare Consolidated Financial Statements. Hence
the clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

For M. S. Jagannathan & N. Krishnaswami
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 001208S

b,@'\(—\/‘\/‘\t‘e/“—f

K. Srinivasan

Partner

Membership No. 021510
UDIN: 22021510ANNWTC5801

Chennai
20 July 2022
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“Annexure B” to the Independent Auditor’s Report

(Referred in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

Opinion

We have audited the Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting of Sri Harini Textiles
Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the Financial
Statements of the Company for the year ended on 31 March 2022.

In our opinion, and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate Internal Financial Controls
system over financial reporting and such Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting
were operating effectively as at 31 March 2022, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting (“Guidance Note”) issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(“1CAI").

Management’s Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and
maintaining Internal Financial Controls based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI. These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate Internal Financial Controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibilities

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's Internal Financial Controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note and the SAs, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under Section
143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and,
both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the ICAI. Those
SAs and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate Internal
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Financial Controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such

controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the Internal Financial Controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for audit opinion on the Company’s Internal Financial Controls system over
financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's Internal Financial Control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that

a. Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

b. Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of Financial Statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of Management
and Directors of the company; and

c. Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could
have a material effect on the Financial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
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reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree

of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For M. S. Jagannathan & N. Krishnaswami
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 001208S

b . WQ"‘T
K. Srinivasan

Partner

Membership No. 021510
UDIN: 22021510ANNWTC5801

Chennai
20 July 2022
G7, Parsn Paradise 38, Selvanagar Main Road Tel: +91 93817 21405
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SRI HARINI TEXTILES LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH 2022

Note
No
ASSETS
(1) Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equiptments 6
Intangible Assets 6
Financial Assets
Other Financial Assets 7
Deferred Tax Assets 8
(2) Current Assets
Inventories 9
Financial Assets
Trade Receivable 10
Cash and Cash Equivalents 11
Other Current Assets 12
Other Financial Assets 13
TOTAL ASSETS
Equity & Liabilities
(1) Equity
Equity Share Capital 14
Other Equity 15
Total Equity
(2) Liabilities
Non Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 16
Provisions 17
Deferred Income 18
(3) Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 19
Trade payables 20

i) Total Outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises

i) Total Outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterorises and small enterprises

Other Financial Liabilities
Provisions

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

For M.S.Jagannathan & N.Krishnaswami
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 001208S

b . Wch
K.SRINIVASAN

Partner

Membership No.021510

UDIN : 22021510ANNWTC5801
Chennai

20th July, 2022

21
22

AS AT
31-03-2022
Rs.in Lakhs

1,321.44
0.27

85.23

411.65 1,818.59

688.10

541.03
3.22
393.05
79.06 1,704.46

3,523.05

300.00
(1,890.21)
(1,590.21)

950.00
0.83

17.41 968.24

848.62

7.93

437.26
2,819.00
32.21
4,145.02

3,523.05

AS AT
31-03-2021
Rs.in Lakhs

1,575.30
0.31

64.41

366.11 2,006.13

878.71

349.39
3.00
396.40
44.48 1,671.98

3,678.11

300.00
(1,781.00)
(1,481.00)

950.00
0.08

18.86 968.94

1,017.34

17.89

199.77
2,932.81
22.36
4,190.17

3,678.11
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SRI HARINI TEXTILES LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2022
Note

Particulars
INCOME

I Revenue from operations
II  Finance Income

IIT  Other Income

IV Total Income (I+II+III)

V  EXPENSES

Cost of materials consumed

Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods and

Work-in-progress

Employee benefit expenses

Finance costs

Depreciation & Amortization Expenses
Other Expenses

Total Expenses

Loss before tax (IV-V)

VII Tax expense

VI

Deferred Tax
VIII Loss for the year (VI-VII)

IX Other Comprehensive Income

Item that will not be reclassified subsequently

(i) to Profit and Loss:
Acutuarial Gain / (Loss) on defined benefit
obligation (net)
Income Tax relating to the above
Other Comprehensive Income / (Loss) for
the year, net of tax

X  Total Comprehensive Income for the year

XI  Earnings per Equity Share of Rs.10 each
(Basic & Diluted), (In Rupees)

For M.S.Jagannathan & N.Krishnaswami
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 001208S

b . Wcﬁ
K.SRINIVASAN

Partner

Membership No.021510

UDIN : 22021510ANNWTC5801
Chennai

20th July, 2022

No.

23
24
25

26

27
28
29
30
31

For the Year ended
31-03-2022

Amount Rs. In Lakhs
5,621.27

6.57

1.71

5,629.55

4,020.87

29.45
261.56
154.15
430.69
892.58

5,789.30
(159.75)

(47.00)
(112.75)

5.00
1.46

3.54

(109.21)

(3.64)

For the Year ended
31-03-2021

Amount Rs. In Lakhs
3,307.24

2.61

1.58

3,311.43

2,357.53

162.48
212.04
170.01
189.13
523.63

3,614.82

(303.39)

(67.18)
(236.21)

(1.91)
(0.56)

(1.35)

(237.56)

(7.92)
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2022

A. Equity Share Capital Rs.in Lakhs
1) For the year ended 31-03-2022 Amount
Balance as at 01-04-2021 300.00
Changes in Equity share capital during the period
Balance as at 31-03-2022 300.00
2) For the period ended 31-03-2021
Balance as at 01-04-2020 300.00
Changes in Equity share capital during the year 2020-21
Balance as at 31-03-2021 300.00

B. Other Equity

1) For the year ended 31-03-2022 Rs. In Lakhs
Reserves and Surplus | Items of OCI
Re-
3 . measurements | Total Other
Particulars Capital General of Defined Equity
Reserve Reserve -
Benefit
Obliaation
Other Equity as at 01st April 2021 9.86 (1,790.86) (1,781.00)
Financial year 2021-22
Add: Profit/(Loss) for the year (112.75) (112.75)
Add: Other Comprehensive Income 3.54 3.54
Total Comprehensive Income (112.75) 3.54 (109.21)
Add: Transfer from OCI 3.54 (3.54)
Less: Transfer to General Reserve - -
Add: Transfer from Retained Earnings -
Balance as at 31st March 2022 9.86 (1,900.07) (1,890.21)
2) For the year ended 31-03-2021
Reserves and Surplus | Items of OCI
Re-
A - measurements | Total Other
Particulars Capital General of Defined Equity
Reserve Reserve -
Benefit
Obliaation
Other Equity as at 01st April 2020 9.86 (1,553.30) (1,543.44)
Financial year 2020-21
Add: Profit/(Loss) for the year (236.21) (236.21)
Add: Other Comprehensive Income (1.35) (1.35)
Total Comprehensive Income (236.21) (1.35) (237.56)
Add: Transfer from OCI (1.35) 1.35 -
Less: Transfer to General Reserve - -
Add: Transfer from Retained Earnings -
Balance as at 31st March 2021 9.86 (1,790.86) - (1,781.00)
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SRI HARINI TEXTILES LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31ST MARCH 2022

Rs in Lakhs

31-Mar-2022 31-Mar-2021

A . Cash flow from Operating activities

Net Profit before tax and prior period and extraordinary items (159.75) (303.39)

Adjustments for :
Depreciation & Amortization 430.69 189.13
Interest paid 154.15 170.01
Interest Received (4.41) (2.61)
Loss on Sale of Assets 0.07

Operating Profit before Working capital Changes 420.75 53.14
Gratuity recognised in Other Comprehensive Income 5.00 (1.91)
Government Grants (1.45) (1.45)
Trade Receivables (191.64) 121.37
Loans and Advances (56.24) (54.15)
Inventories 190.61 (363.30)
Trade payables & Current Liabilities 124.32 410.75

Cash generated from Operations 491.35 164.45
Income tax Paid / (Refund) 4.19 (1.20)

Net Cash from Operating activities A 495.54 163.25

B. Cash Flow from Investing activities :

Purchase of fixed assets (177.11) (0.53)
Sale of assets 0.26 0.14
Interest received 4.41 2.61
Net Cash from /(used) in Investing activities B (172.44) 2.22

C. Cash Flow from Financing activities :

Increase / (Decrease) in working capital borrowings (168.72) 0.92
Interest Paid (154.15) (170.01)
Net cash used in financing activities C (322.87) (169.09)
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents D= (A+B+C) 0.22 (3.62)
Opening balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents E 3.00 6.62
Closing balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents D+E 3.22 3.00
Notes:

i) The above statement of Cash Flow has been prepared under Indirect Method' as set out in the Ind As 7 on Statement of Cash Flow
i) Bank Borrowings including Cash credits are considered as Financial activities.
iii) For the purpose of Statement of Cash Flows, Cash and Cash Equivalents comprise the following:

31-03-2022 31-03-2021

Cash and Cash Equivalents 3.22 3.00

For M.S.Jagannathan & N.Krishnaswami
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 001208S

b . U\(\/‘V—\FG/“(
K.SRINIVASAN

Partner

Membership No. 021510

UDIN : 22021510ANNWTC5801
Chennai

20th July, 2022
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SRI HARINI TEXTILES LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Corporate Information

Sri Harini Textiles Limited is a Public Limited Company domiciled and
headquartered in India and incorporated under the provisions of
Companies Act. The Registered office of the Company is located at Sri
Bhavanam, 102 P.S.K.Nagar, Rajapalayam - 626 108, Tamil Nadu, India.

The Company is principally engaged in manufacture of Yarn.

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31-03-2022
were approved and adopted by Board of Directors of the Company in their
meeting dated 20-07-2022.

2. Statement of Ind AS Compliance
The Financial Statements are prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules 2015, as amended from time to time, and presentation
requirements of Division II of Ind AS compliant Schedule III to the
Companies Act, 2013.

3. Basis of Preparation of Separate Financial Statements

(i) The significant accounting policies used in preparing the financial
statements are set out in Note No.4

(i)  The Company has considered its operating cycle as 12 months for
the purpose of Current or Non-current classification of assets and
liabilities.

(iii)  An asset is classified as current when it is expected to be realised or
intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle or
held primarily for the purpose of trading or expected to be realised
within 12 months after the reporting period or cash or cash
equivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used to
settle a liability 12 months after the reporting period. All other
assets are classified as non-current.

(iv) A liability is classified as current when it is expected to be settled in
normal operating cycle or held primarily for the purpose of trading
or due for settlement within 12 months after the reporting period or
there is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability
for at least 12 months after the reporting period. All other liabilities
are classified as non-current. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
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NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(v) The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is
the company’s functional currency, rounded to the nearest Lakhs
with two decimals. The amount below the round off horm adopted
by the Company is denoted as Rs.0.00 Lakhs.

4. Basis of Measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on accrual basis under
historical cost convention except for certain financial instruments (refer
note 5P - Accounting Policy for Financial Instruments) which are
measured at fair value.

5. Significant Accounting Policies
A. Inventories
0] Raw-materials, Stores & Spares, Fuel, packing materials etc., are

(i)

(iii)

valued at cost, computed on a moving weighted average basis
including the cost incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition after providing for obsolescence and
other losses or net realisable value whichever is lower. However,
these items are considered to be realisable at cost, if the finished
products, in which they will be used, are expected to be sold at or
above cost.

Process stock is valued at weighted average cost including the cost
of conversion with systematic allocation of production overhead
based on normal capacity of production facilities but excluding
borrowing cost, or net realisable value whichever is lower. Factory
administration overheads to the extent attributable to bring the
inventories to their present location and condition are also included
in the valuation of process stock.

Finished goods are valued at cost or net realisable value whichever
is lower. Cost includes cost of conversion with systematic allocation
of production overheads based on normal capacity of production
facilities and other costs but excluding borrowing cost incurred in
bringing the inventory to their present location and condition.
Finished goods include stock-in-trade also which comprises cost of
purchase and other cost incurred in bringing the inventories to the
present location and condition. Cost is determined on a moving
average basis.
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Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

B. Statement of Cash Flow

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Cash flows are presented using indirect method, whereby profit /
(loss) before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of
non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash
receipts or payments.

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks.
Cash equivalents are short-term balances with original maturity of 3
months or less, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into cash, which are subject to insignificant risk of
changes in value.

Bank borrowings are generally considered to be financing activities.
However, where bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand
form an integral part of a management, bank overdrafts are
included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the
purpose of Cash flow statement.

C. Income Taxes

(i)

(i)

(i)

Current tax is the amount of tax payable on the taxable income for
the year as determined in accordance with the applicable tax rates,
the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and other applicable tax
laws including the relevant transfer pricing regulations prescribed
thereunder, read with applicable judicial precedents or
interpretations, wherever relevant.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset when the Company has
legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and
intends to settle the asset and the liability on a net basis.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws,
which gives future economic benefits in the form of adjustment to
future tax liability, is recognised as an asset to the extent there is
convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal Income tax
and it is highly probable that future economic benefits associated
with it will flow to the Company during the specified period. The
Company reviews the “MAT Credit Entitlement” at each Balance
Sheet date and writes down the carrying amount of the same to the
extent there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that the
Company will pay normal Income tax during the specified period.
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(iv) Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet approach on
temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting at the
reporting date.

(v) Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the year where the asset is realised or
the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

(vi) Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if such items relate to
taxes on income levied by same governing tax laws and the
Company has legally enforceable right for such set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities.

(vii) Both current tax and deferred tax relating to items recognised
outside the Profit or Loss is recognised either in “Other
Comprehensive Income” or directly in “"Equity” as the case may be.

Property, plant and equipment (PPE)

PPEs are stated at cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses if any, except freehold land which is
carried at cost. The cost comprises of purchase price, import duties, non-
refundable purchase taxes (net of tax credits wherever applicable),
borrowing cost if capitalisation criteria are met and directly attributable
cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use.

Subsequent expenditures are recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably.

iii) Spares which meet the definition of PPE are capitalised from the date

when it is available for use. Other expenses on fixed assets, including
day-to-day repair and maintenance expenditure and cost of replacing
parts that does not meet the capitalisation criteria are charged to the
Statement of Profit and Loss for the period during which such expenses
are incurred.

iv) The Company identifies the significant parts of plant and equipment

separately which are required to be replaced at intervals. Such parts are
depreciated separately based on their specific useful lives. The cost of
replacement of significant parts are capitalised and the carrying amount
of replaced parts are de-recognised.
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v) The cost of major inspection / overhauling is recognised in the carrying
amount of the item of PPE as a replacement if the recognition criteria are
satisfied. Any remaining carrying amount of the cost of the previous
inspection/overhauling (as distinct from physical parts) is de-recognised.

vi) The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of PPE
after its use, if materially significant, is included in the cost of the
respective asset when the recognition criteria are met.

vii) Capital Expenditure on tangible assets for research and development is
classified as PPE and is depreciated based on the estimated useful life.
Other expenditure incurred for research and development are expensed
under the respective heads of accounts in the year in which it is incurred.

viii) The Company follows the useful lives of the significant parts of certain
class of PPE on the straight-line basis.

ix) During the year, the company has re-assessed the useful life of the
assets considering the nature of the asset, the estimated usage of the
asset, the operating conditions of the Asset, past history of replacement,
anticipated technological changes, manufacturers warranties and
maintenance support etc. based on technical advice as detailed below,
that are different from the useful lives prescribed under Part C of
Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013:

Useful life of such component
Type of Plant and Machinery ranging from
Existing Revised

Building 3 to 60 years 3 to 60 years
Textile Machines / Equipment 10 to 25 years 7 to 25 years
HFO / DG Set 12 to 25 years 7 to 15 years
Furniture and Fixtures 3 to 10 years 3 to 10 years
Electrical Machineries 3 to 25 years 3 to 15 years
Motor cars given to employees as 6 to 8 years 6 to 8 years
per company'’s scheme

x) PPE acquired in full or part exchange for another asset are recorded at the
fair market value or the net book value of the asset given up, adjusted
for any balancing cash transaction. Fair market value is determined
either for the assets acquired or asset given up, whichever is more
clearly evident.

xi) PPEs are eliminated from the financial statements on disposal or when no
further benefit is expected from its use and disposal. Gains or losses
arising from disposal, measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of such assets, are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Amount received towards
PPE that are impaired and derecognized in the financial statements, are
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NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss, when the recognition criteria
are met.

xii)Depreciation is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an
asset over its useful life on a straight-line method. The depreciable
amount for assets is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for
cost, less 5% being its residual value, except for process control systems
whose residual value is considered as Nil.

xiii) Depreciation for PPE on additions is calculated on pro-rata basis from the
date of such additions. For deletion/disposals, the depreciation is calculated
on pro-rata basis up to the date on which such assets have been
discarded/sold.

xiv) The residual values, useful lives, and methods of depreciation of
property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

E. Capital Work in Progress

i) Capital work in progress includes cost of property, plant and equipment
under installation, under development including related expenses and
attributable interest as at the reporting date.

F. Leases

(i) The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is
based on the substance of the arrangement at the inception date
whether fulfilment of arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific
asset and the arrangement conveys a right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

(i) The lease arrangements where the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an asset substantially vests with the Lessor are recognised
as operating lease. Operating lease receipts and payments are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on straight line basis over
the lease terms. The Company do not have any finance leases.

G. Revenue Recognition
(i) Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be

reliably measured.

(i) Revenue from Operations

121



SRI HARINI TEXTILES LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(iii)

a) Sale of products
Revenue is recognised at the fair value of consideration
received or receivable upon transfer of significant risks and
rewards of ownership of goods which generally coincides with
the delivery of goods. It comprises of invoice value of goods,
after deducting discounts, volume rebates and applicable taxes
on sale.

b) Scrap Sales
Scrap sales is recognized when the Company transfers control
of the product to customers.

Other Income

a) Interest income is recognised using the Effective Interest Rate
(EIR) method. EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected
life of the financial instrument or a shorter period where
appropriate, the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or
to the amortised cost of a financial liability.

b) Scrap sales is recognised at the fair value of consideration
received or receivable upon transfer of significant risk and
rewards. It comprises of invoice value of goods including excise
duty and after deducting applicable taxes on sale.

c) Government grants are recognised at fair value when there is
reasonable assurance that the Company will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and the grants will be received.

H. Employee Benefits

(V)

(ii)

(iii)

Short-term employee benefits viz., Salaries and Wages are
recognized as an expense at the undiscounted amount in the
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year in which the related
service is rendered.

Defined Contribution Plan viz., Contributions to Provident Fund is
recognized as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss for
the year in which the employees have rendered services.

The Company contributes monthly to Employees’ Provident Fund &
Employees’ Pension Fund administered by the Employees’ Provident
Fund Organisation, Government of India, at 12% of employees’
basic salary. The Company has no further obligations.
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(iv)

(v)

(vi)

The Company has its own Defined Benefit Plan viz., and approval is
awaited. It is in the form of lump sum payments to vested
employees on resignation, retirement, death while in employment
or on termination of employment, for an amount equivalent to
15 days’ basic salary for each completed year of service. Vesting
occurs upon completion of five years of continuous service. The
Company makes annual contributions to “Sri Harini Textiles Limited
Employees’ Gratuity Fund” administered by trustees and managed
by LIC of India, based on the Actuarial Valuation by an independent
external actuary as at the Balance Sheet date using Projected Unit
Credit method.

The Company provides for expenses towards compensated
absences provided to its employees. The expense is recognhized at
the present value of the amount payable determined based on an
independent external actuarial valuation as at the Balance Sheet
date, using Projected Unit Credit method.

Re-measurement of net defined benefit asset / liability comprising
of actuarial gains or losses arising from experience adjustments and
changes in actuarial assumptions are charged / credited to
Other Comprehensive Income’ in the period in which they arise and
immediately transferred to retained earnings. Other costs are
accounted in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

I. Government Grants

(1)

(i)

(i)

Government grants are recognised at fair value on accrual basis
where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received, and all the attached conditions are complied with.

In case of revenue related grant, the income is recognised on a
systematic basis over the period for which it is intended to
compensate an expense and is disclosed under “Other operating
revenue” or netted off against corresponding expenses wherever
appropriate. Receivables of such grants are shown under
Other Financial Assets”. Export benefits are accounted for in the
year of exports based on eligibility and when there is no uncertainty
in receiving the same. Receivables of such benefits are shown
under “Other Financial Assets”.

Government grants recoverable relating to the purchase of
property, plant and equipment are included in non-current liabilities
as deferred grant income and are credited to the statement of profit
and loss on a systematic basis over the expected lives of the
related assets.
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(iv)

(i)
(i)

As per the amendment in Ind-AS 20 w.e.f. 01.04.2018,
Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and
equipment the company has opted as deduction from the carrying
value of such specific assets.

Foreign currency transactions

The Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is
also the Company’s functional currency.

All transaction in Foreign Currency is accounted at the exchange
rates prevailing at the time of transaction. The difference in
exchange rates arising on the settlement of monetary items are
recognised as income or expenses in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

K. Borrowing Costs

(i)

(i)

Borrowing cost include interest computed using Effective Interest
Rate method, amortisation of ancillary costs incurred and exchange
differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent
they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost.

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction, production of a qualifying asset is capitalised as part
of the cost of that asset which takes substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use. The Company determines the
amount of borrowing cost eligible for capitalisation by applying
capitalisation rate to the expenditure incurred on such cost. The
capitalisation rate is determined based on the weighted average
rate of borrowing cost applicable to the borrowings of the Company
which are outstanding during the period, other than borrowings
made specifically towards purchase of the qualifying asset. The
amount of borrowing cost that the Company capitalises during the
period does not exceed the amount of borrowing cost incurred
during that period. All other borrowings cost is expensed in the
period in which they occur.

L. Earnings per Share

(1)

Earnings per share is calculated by dividing the Net profit / (Loss)
attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average

124



SRI HARINI TEXTILES LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(i)

(iii)

number of equity shares including un-allotted bonus shares
outstanding during the year.

Where an item of income or expense which is otherwise required to
be recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss is debited or
credited to Equity, the amount in respect thereof is suitably
adjusted in Net profit / (Loss) for the purpose of computing
Earnings per share.

The Company do not have any potential equity shares.

M. Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

(1)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

The carrying values of assets include property, plant and
equipment, investment properties, cash generating units and
intangible assets are reviewed for impairment at each Balance
Sheet date, if there is any indication of impairment based on
internal and external factors

Non-financial assets are treated as impaired when the carrying
amount of such asset exceeds its recoverable value. After
recognition of impairment loss, the depreciation /amortisation for
the said assets is provided for remaining useful life based on the
revised carrying amount, less its residual value if any, on straight
line basis.

An impairment loss is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss
in the year in which an asset is identified as impaired.

An impairment loss is reversed when there is an indication that the
impairment loss may no longer exist or may have decreased.

N. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

(i)

(ii)

Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in
measurement are recognised when there is a present obligation as
a result of past events, and it is probable that there will be an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits in respect of
which a reliable estimate can be made.

Provisions are discounted if the effect of the time value of money is
material, using pre-tax rates that reflects the risks specific to the
liability. When discounting is used, an increase in the provisions due
to the passage of time is recognised as finance cost. These
provisions are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to
reflect the current best estimates.
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(i)

(iv)

Insurance claims are accounted on the basis of claims admitted or
expected to be admitted and to the extent that the amount
recoverable can be measured reliably and it is reasonable to expect
ultimate collection. Any subsequent change in the recoverability is
provided for. Contingent Assets are not recognised.

Contingent liability is a possible obligation that may arise from past
events and its existence will be confirmed only by occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Company or it is not probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and the same are not recognised but
disclosed in the financial statements.

0. Intangible Assets

(V)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

The costs of computer software acquired, and its subsequent
improvements are capitalised. Internally generated software is not
capitalized, and the expenditure is recognized in the Statement of
Profit and Loss in the year in which the expenditure is incurred.

Intangible Assets are amortised over their estimated useful life on
straight line method. The estimated useful lives of intangible assets
are assessed by the internal technical team:

Nature of Intangible Assets Estimated useful life

Computer Software 6 years

The intangible assets that are under development phase are carried
at cost including related expenses and attributable interest and are
recognised as Intangible assets under development.

The residual values, useful lives, and methods of depreciation of
intangible asset are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate.

P. Operating Segments

The Company has no separate reportable segments.
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Q. Financial Instruments

(V)

(i)

(i)

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial
asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of
another entity.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset, and the net amount is
presented in the Balance sheet when and only when the Company
has a legal right to offset the recognised amounts and intends
either to settle on a net basis or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

The Company initially determines the classification of financial
assets and liabilities. After initial recognition, no re-classification is
made for financial assets which are categorised as equity
instruments at FVTOCI and financial assets / liabilities that are
specifically designated as FVTPL. However, other financial assets
are re-classifiable when there is a change in the business model of
the Company. When the Company reclassifies the financial assets,
such reclassifications are done prospectively from the first day of
the immediately next reporting period. The Company does not
restate any previously recognised gains, losses including
impairment gains or losses or interest.

R. Financial Assets

(1)

(ii)

Financial assets comprise of investments in equity, trade
receivables, cash and cash equivalents and other financial assets.

Depending on the business model (i.e) nature of transactions for
managing those financial assets and its contractual cash flow
characteristics, the financial assets are initially measured at fair
value and subsequently measured and classified at:

a) Amortised cost; or
b) Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI); or
C) Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Amortised cost represents carrying amount on initial recognition at fair
value plus or minus transaction cost.

(iii)

The Company has evaluated the facts and circumstances on date of
transition to Ind AS for the purpose of classification and
measurement of financial assets. Accordingly, financial assets are
measured at FVTPL except for those financial assets whose
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(iv)

(v)

contractual terms give rise to cash flows on specified dates that
represents solely payments of principal and interest thereon, are
measured as detailed below depending on the business model:

Classification Business Model

Amortised cost | The objective of the Company is to hold and
collect the contractual cash flows till maturity.
In other words, the Company do not intend to
sell the instrument before its contractual
maturity to realise its fair value changes.

FVTOCI The objective of the Company is to collect its
contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets.

Investment in equity of associates is carried at cost (i.e) previous
GAAP carrying amount as the date of transition to Ind AS.
The Company has exercised an irrevocable option at time of initial
recognition to measure the changes in fair value of other equity
investments at FVTOCI. Accordingly, the Company classifies its
financial assets for measurement as below:

Classification Name of Financial Assets

Amortised cost | Trade receivables, Loans and advances to
employees and related parties, deposits, IPA
receivable, interest receivable, unbilled revenue
and other advances recoverable in cash or kind.

FVTOCI Equity investments in companies other than
Associates as an option exercised at the time of
initial recognition.

Financial assets are derecognised (i.e) removed from the financial
statements, when its contractual rights to the cash flows expire or
upon transfer of the said assets. The Company also derecognises
when it has an obligation to adjust the cash flows arising from the
financial asset with third party and either upon transfer of:

a. significant risk and rewards of the financial asset, or
b. control of the financial asset

However, the Company continue to recognise the transferred
financial asset and its associated liability to the extent of its
continuing involvement, which are measured on the basis of
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(vi)

(vii)

retainment of its rights and obligations of financial asset. The
Company has applied the de-recognition requirements
prospectively.

Upon derecognition of its financial asset or part thereof, the
difference between the carrying amount measured at the date of
recognition and the consideration received including any new asset
obtained less any new liability assumed shall be recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

For impairment purposes, significant financial assets are tested on
individual basis at each reporting date. Other financial assets are
assessed collectively in groups that share similar credit risk
characteristics. Accordingly, the impairment testing is done
retrospectively on the following basis:

Name of Financial

asset Impairment testing methodology

Trade receivables Expected Credit Loss model (ECL) is applied.
The ECL over lifetime of the assets are
estimated by using a provision matrix which
is based on historical loss rates reflecting
current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions which are grouped on
the basis of similar credit characteristics
such as nature of industry, customer
segment, past due status and other factors
that are relevant to estimate the expected
cash loss from these assets.

Other Financial | When the credit risk has not increased
assets significantly, 12-month ECL is wused to
provide for impairment loss. When there is
significant change in credit risk since initial
recognition, the impairment is measured
based on probability of default over the
lifetime. If, in a subsequent period, credit
quality of the instrument improves such that
there is no longer a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, then the
entity reverts to recognising impairment loss
allowance based on 12-month ECL.
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S.

(i)

Financial Liabilities

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(v)

Financial liabilities comprise of Borrowings from Banks, Debentures,
Soft loan / Interest free loan from Government, Trade payables,
Derivative financial instruments, financial guarantee obligation and
other financial liabilities.

The Company measures its financial liabilities as below:

Measurement basis Name of Financial liabilities

Amortised cost Borrowings, Debentures, Soft
Loan/Interest free loan from Government,
Trade payables, Interest  accrued,
Unclaimed / Disputed dividends, Security
deposits and other financial liabilities not
for trading.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the company are those
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make
a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument. Transaction cost of financial guaranteed contracts that
are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee are
recognised initially as a liability at fair value. Subsequently, the
liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance
determined as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the
amount recognised less cumulative amortization.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when and only when it is
extinguished (i.e) when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged or cancelled or expired.

Upon de-recognition of its financial liabilities or part thereof, the
difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that
has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the
consideration paid including any non-cash assets transferred or
liabilities assumed is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Fair value measurement

(V)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date.
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(i)

(i)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured / disclosed using
the assumptions that the market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that the market participants
act in the economic best interest.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured are
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within fair
value hierarchy based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole. The fair value hierarchy is
described as below:

Level 1: Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities

Level 2: Valuation technigues for which the lowest level inputs that
are significant to the fair value measurement are directly
or indirectly observable.

Level 3: Valuation technigues for which the lowest level inputs that
are significant to the fair value measurement are
unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the Balance sheet on
a recurring basis, the company determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing
categorisation at the end of each reporting period (i.e) based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
as a whole.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the company has
determined the classes of assets and liabilities based on the nature,
characteristics and risks of the assets or liabilities and the level of
the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

The basis for fair value determination for measurement and / or
disclosure purposes is detailed below:

Trade and other receivables

The fair value is estimated as the present value of the future cash
flows, discounted at the market rate of interest at the reporting
date. However, the fair value generally approximates the carrying
amount due to the short-term nature of such assets.
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6. Significant Estimates and Judgements

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Actual results
could vary from these estimates. The estimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision effects only that period or in the period of the revision or
future periods if the revision affects both current and future years.

Accordingly, the management has applied the following estimates /
assumptions / judgements in preparation and presentation of financial
statements:

(i) Property, Plant and Equipment, Intangible Assets and
Investment Properties

The residual values and estimated useful life of PPEs, Intangible
Assets and Investment Properties are assessed by technical team
duly reviewed by the management at each reporting date.
Wherever the management believes that the assigned useful life
and residual value are appropriate, such recommendations are
accepted and adopted for computation of depreciation/amortisation.
Also, management judgement is exercised for classifying the asset
as investment properties or vice versa.

(i) Current Taxes

Calculations of income taxes for the current period are done based
on applicable tax laws and management’s judgement by evaluating
positions taken in tax returns and interpretations of relevant
provisions of law and applicable judicial precedents.

(iii) Deferred Tax Asset (Including MAT Credit Entitlement)

Significant management judgement is exercised by reviewing the
deferred tax assets at each reporting date to determine the amount
of deferred tax assets that can be retained / recognised, based
upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits
together with future tax planning strategies.
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(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

Impairment of Trade receivables

The impairment for financial assets is done based on assumptions
about risk of default and expected loss rates. The assumptions,
selection of inputs for calculation of impairment are based on
management judgement considering the past history, market
conditions and forward-looking estimates at the end of each
reporting date.

Impairment of Non-financial assets (PPE/Intangible
Assets/Investment Properties)

The impairment of non-financial assets is determined based on
estimation of recoverable amount of such assets. The assumptions
used in computing the recoverable amount are based on
management judgement considering the timing of future cash
flows, discount rates and the risks specific to the asset.

Defined Benefit Plans and Other long-term benefits

The cost of the defined benefit plan and other long-term
benefits, and the present value of such obligation are
determined by the independent actuarial valuer. An actuarial
valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ
from actual developments in future. Management believes
that the assumptions used by the actuary in determination of
the discount rate, future salary increases, mortality rates and
attrition rates are reasonable. Due to the complexities
involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, this
obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions.
All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities could
not be measured based on quoted prices in active markets,
management uses valuation techniques including the Discounted
Cash Flow (DCF) model, to determine its fair value The inputs to
these models are taken from observable markets where possible,
but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is exercised in
establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of
inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility.
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NOTE NO.6
Fixed Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment

Particulars

Land

Buildings

Plant and machinery

Plant and machinery- Lease Hold
Electrical machinery

Furniture & Office Equipments
Vehicles

Total - Tangible Assets

Intangible Assets
Computer Software

Total - Intangible Assets

Other Disclosures

Year

2021-22
2020-21
2021-22
2020-21
2021-22
2020-21
2021-22
2020-21
2021-22
2020-21
2021-22
2020-21
2021-22
2020-21
2021-22
2020-21

2021-22
2020-21

Cost as at
01-04-2021

122.20
122.20
633.68
633.68
2219.57
2219.33

110.60
309.30
309.30
10.82
10.82
1.42
1.42
3296.99
3407.35

4.68
4.68

4.68

Gross block

Additions
during
year

177.12
0.53

Sold /
withdrawn
during the

narind

6.37
110.89

Cost as at
31-03-2022

122.20
122.20
633.68
633.68
2393.56
2219.57

0.00
306.06
309.30
10.82
10.82
1.42
1.42
3467.74
3296.99

4.68
4.68

4.68

a) All the Fixed Assets have been hypothecated / pledged as security for borrowings (refer note 19).

b) Change in estimate

Up to
01-04-2021

258.07
238.64
1172.58
1098.06

18.33
280.82
278.47

9.93
9.71
0.29
0.13
1721.69
1643.34

4.37
4.33

4.37

Depreciation
Withdrawn

For the year

19.41
19.43
406.36
74.66

92.27
4.53
2.35
0.18
0.22
0.16
0.16
430.64
189.09

Up to

Amount Rs.in Lakh

Net block
As At

As At

31-03-2022 | 31-03-2022 | 31-03-2021

110.60
6.03

6.03
110.74

277.48
258.07
1578.94
1172.58

279.32
280.82

10.11
9.93

0.45
0.29

2146.30
1721.69

4.42
4.37

4.42

122.20
122.20
356.20
375.61
814.62
1046.99

26.74
28.48
0.71
0.89
0.97
1.13
1321.44
1575.30

122.20
122.20
375.61
395.04
1046.99
1121.27
92.27
28.48
30.83
0.89
1.11
1.13
1.29
1575.30
1764.01

During the year, the Company has revised its estimate of useful life in respect of certain items of Property, Plant and Equipment. The change in useful life of certain items of Property, Plant and
Equipment has resuted in a higher depreciation for the year by Rs.326.94 Lakhs. The above change in estimate of useful life, which was made based on technical evaluation made by registered
valuer, will result in more reliable and relevant presentation of the above referred items of Property, Plant and Equipment in the Financial Statements.

c) All the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the Company.

d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Asset since the Company has adopted cost model as its accounting policy to an entire class of Property, Plant
and Equipment in accordance with IndAS 16 and Ind AS 38.
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Particulars

Note No.7

Others Financial Assets (Non Current)
Security Deposits with Electricity Board / Others

Note No.8
Deferred Tax Assets (net)
Deferred Tax Liability

Tax effect on difference between book depreciation
and depreciation under the Income Tax Act, 1961

Deferred Tax Asset

Tax effect on unabsorbed depreciation
Tax effect on carried over business loss

Tax effect on expenses charged

Net Deferred Tax (Liability)/Asset

Note No.9
Inventories
Finished goods

Raw Materials - Cotton & Cotton waste

Stores and spares
Process Stock

Note No.10
Trade Receivables

Unsecured and considered good
Trade Receivables Less than 6 Months

Additional Disclosures

a) Trade receivables are non-interest bearing.
b) Trade receivables are neither due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly
with any other person, nor any trade or other receivables are due from firms or private companies respectively in

which any director is a partner, a director or a member.

As at
31st March 2022

85.23

85.23

(189.59)

517.11
78.15
5.98 601.24

411.65

51.27
544.07
42.92
49.84
688.10

541.03
541.03

Amount Rs.In Lakhs

As at
31st March 2021

517.11
137.02
1.88

c) The total carrying amount of trade receivables has been pledged as security for borrowings.
Refer Note No.37 for information about risk profile of Trade Receivables

d) Additional regulatory information as required under Companies Act 2013 / Indian Accounting Standards
Trade Receivables Ageing Schedule

64.41

64.41

(289.90)

656.01

366.11

89.25
703.52
44.63
41.31
878.71

349.39
349.39

Particulars

(i) Undisputed Trade
receivables — considered good

Outstanding for the following periods from the due date of payment as at

Not Due

483.44

Less than
6 months

57.59

31/03/2022

6 months

to 1-2years2-3 yearJ > 3 years

1 year

Total

541.03

(ii) Undisputed Trade
Receivables — which have
significant increase in credit risk

(i) Undisputed Trade
Receivables - credit impaired

(iv) Disputed Trade
Receivables-considered good

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables
— which have significant
increase in credit risk

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables
— credit impaired

Total

483.44

57.59

541.03 |
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Amount Rs.In Lakhs

Particulars

Outstanding for the following periods from the due date of payment as at

Not Due

Less than
6 months

6 months

to

31/03/2021

1 -2 years

2-3 yearJ > 3 years

1 year

Total

(i) Undisputed Trade
receivables — considered good

(ii) Undisputed Trade
Receivables — which have -
significant increase in credit risk

(iii) Undisputed Trade
Receivables - credit impaired

324.49

24.90

349.39

(iv) Disputed Trade
Receivables-considered good

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables
- which have significant -
increase in credit risk

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables
— credit impaired
Total 324.49

24.90

349.39

Note No.11
Cash and Bank balances
Cash on hand

Balance with bank
In Current Account

Note No.12

Other Financial Assets
Government Grants Receivable
Security Deposit

Accrued Income

Tax Assets - Other Current Assets

Note No.13

Other Current Assets

Unsecured, considered good

Advance to Suppliers / Others

Advance Income-Tax & TDS and Refund Due
Prepaid Expenses

Other Current Assets

Note No.14
Equity Share Capital

Authorised
50,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each
(PY 50,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each)

Issued, Subscribed and fully paid-up
30,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each

a. Reconciliation of the number of shares
outstanding

Number of shares at the beginning

Number of Shares at the end

As at 31-03-2022

0.34

2.88
3.22

6.63
11.68
216.75
157.99
393.05

33.27
6.42
14.39
24.98
79.06

500.00

300.00

300.00

30,00,000

30,00,000

As at 31-03-2021

0.24

6.63
11.50
217.13
161.14
396.40

2.06
2.23
10.74
29.45
44.48

500.00

300.00

300.00

30,00,000
30,00,000
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NOTES TO ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2022 Amount Rs.In Lakhs
b.Details of Shareholders holding more than 5 percent in the Company

Particulars As at 31-03-2022 As at 31-03-2021
No. of No. of
Shares % of holding Shares % of holding
The Ramaraju Surgical cotton Mills Ltd., 14,90,000 49.67%| 14,90,000 49.67%
Smt.R.Nalina Ramalakshmi 9,14,000 30.47% 9,14,000 30.47%
Shri N.R.K.Ramkumar Raja 4,00,000 13.33% 4,00,000 13.33%
c. Shareholders holding of Promoters as at 31-03-2022
No.of % Change during the
SI.No Particulars Shares % of Total Shares period
1. P.R.Venketrama Raja 20,000 0.67% -
2. R.Sudarsanam 22,000 0.73% -
3. R.Nalina Ramalakshmi 9,14,000 30.47% -
4. N.R.K.Ramkumar Raja 4,00,000 13.33% -
5. Saradha Deepa 4,000 0.13% -
6. The Ramaraju Surgical Cotton Mills Ltd 14,90,000 49.67% -
7. Sri Yannarkay Servicers Ltd 1,00,000 3.33% -
d. Shareholders holding of Promoters as at 31-03-2022
No.of % Change during the
SI.No Particulars Shares % of Total Shares period
1. P.R.Venketrama Raja 20,000 0.67% -
2. R.Sudarsanam 22,000 0.73% -
3. R.Nalina Ramalakshmi 9,14,000 30.47% -
4. N.R.K.Ramkumar Raja 4,00,000 13.33% -
5. Saradha Deepa 4,000 0.13% -
6. The Ramaraju Surgical Cotton Mills Ltd 14,90,000 49.67% -
7. Sri Yannarkay Servicers Ltd 1,00,000 3.33% -
Note No.15
Other Equity
Capital Reserve 9.86 9.86
General Reserve (1900.07) (1790.86)
(1890.21) (1781.00)
Note No.16
Borrowings
Loan from Related parties 950.00 950.00
950.00 950.00
Note No.17
Provisions
Provision for Employee benefits 0.83 0.08
0.83 0.08
Note No.18
Deferred Income
Deferred Income Government Grants 17.41 18.86
17.41 18.86
Note No.19
Current Borrowing
Secured
848.62 1017.34
848.62 1017.34

* Loan Repayable on Demand from Banks are secured by first charge on the current assets of the Company and
second charge on the fixed assets of the Company and further backed by Corporate Guarantee of Ramco Industries
Ltd 137



NOTES TO ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2022

Note No.20
Trade Payables

i) Total Outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises

i) Total Outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small

enternrises

Additional Disclosures

7.93
437.26

445.19

a) Disclosures as required under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

Amount Rs.In Lakhs

17.89
199.77

217.66

The categorization of supplier as MSME registered under The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,
2006, has been determined based on the information available with the company as at the reporting date.The
disclosures as per the requirement of the Act are furnished as below:

Particulars

a. (i) The principal amount remaining unpaid to any
supplier at the end of the financial year included in

Trade payables
(ii) The interest due on the above

b. The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms

of section 16 of the Act

c. The amount of the payment made to the supplier
beyond the appointed day during the financial year

d. The amount of interest accrued and remaining

unpaid at the end of financial year

e. The amount of interest due and payable for the

period of delay in making payment but without
adding the interest specified under this Act

b) Trade Payables ageing schedule
As at 31/03/2022

Particulars

As at 31-03-2022

7.93

As at 31-03-2021

17.89

Outstanding for the following periods from the due date of payment

Not Due <1Year 1-2 yearé 2 - 3 years| > 3 years Total
(i) MSME 7.93 - - - - 7.93
(ii) Others 60.38 376.88 437.26
(i) Disputed dues - MSME -
(iv) Disputed dues - Others -
(v) Unbilled dues -
Total 68.31 376.88 - - - 445.19 |

As at 31/03/2021

Particulars

Outstanding for the following periods from the due date of payment

Not Due < 1Year 1-2 yeard 2 - 3 years | > 3 years Total
(i) MSME 17.89 17.89
(ii) Others 129.79 68.45 0.30 1.15 0.08 199.77
(ii) Disputed dues - MSME -
(iv) Disputed dues - Others -
(v) Unbilled dues -
Total 147.68 68.45 0.30 1.15 0.08 217.66 |
Note No.21
Other Financial Liabilities
Liabilites for Other Finance 2819.00 2932.81
2819.00 2932.81
Note No.22
Provisions
Provision for Employee Benefits 32.21 22.36
32.21 22.36
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NOTES TO ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2022
Particulars

31st March 2022

Note No.23
Revenue from Operation

Particulars

Sale of Products
Yarn 5548.28
Waste Cotton 69.24

Export Incentive

Note No.24

Finance Income

Interest received
Exchange Fluctuation Gain

Note No.25

Other Income

Industrial Promotion Assistance
Miscellaneous Income

Note No.26

Cost of Materials consumed

Rawmaterials consumed
Cotton & Cotton Waste

Note No.27

Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods and
Work-in-progress

Opening stock

Finished Goods 89.25
Work-in-Progress 41.31
Less:

Closing Stock

Finished Goods 51.27
Work-in-Progress 49.84

Net (Increase)/Decrease in inventories

Note No.28

Employee Benefits

Salaries and wages

Contribution to Provident and Other Funds
Staff and labour welfare

Note No.29
Finance Cost
Interest Expenses

Note No.30

Depreciation & Amortization
Depreciation of Plant & Equipments
Amortization of Intagible Assets

5617.52

3.75
5621.27

4.41
2.16
6.57

.26
.71

o

4020.87
4020.87

130.56

101.11

29.45

214.09
24.62
22.85

261.56

154.15
154.15

430.64
0.05
430.69

Amount Rs.In Lakhs
As at

31st March 2021

3260.03
47.21
3307.24

3307.24

2.61

2357.53
2357.53

262.96
30.08 293.04

89.25
41.31 130.56

162.48

169.58
21.05
21.41

212.04

170.01
170.01

189.09
0.04
189.13
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NOTES TO ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2022

Particulars

Note No.31
Other Expenses

Manufacturing Expenses
Power and Fuel

Packing Materials

Repairs to buildings

Repairs to Plant and Machinery
Repairs - General

Establishment Expenses
Rates and Taxes

Postage and Telephone
Printing and stationery
Travelling expenses
Vehicle maintenance
Insurance

Audit and legal

Rent Paid

Miscellaneous Expenses
Corporate Social Responsibility
Loss on sale of Assets

Selling expenses
Sales commission
Export expenses
Other Selling expenses

Note No.32

Auditors Remuneration
Audit Fees

Tax Audit Fees

As at
31st March 2022

522.56
90.99
0.16
46.75
65.71

5.19
1.18
1.15
0.27
5.40
12.89
1.99
13.94
9.75
1.00
0.07

62.37
5.90
45.31

726.17

52.83

113.58

892.58

0.25
0.10
0.35

As at

321.39
53.17
0.20
35.11
24.34

5.77
0.52
0.76
0.21
3.84
14.07
1.71

3.67

31.13

27.74
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31st March 2021

434.21

30.55

58.87

523.63
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[Annexure 5B

THE RAMARAJU SURGICAL COTTON MILLS LIMITED
Regd. Office: P.A.C.Ramsamy Raja Salal, Post Box Mo.2, Rajapalayam - 626 117, Tamilnadu

. CIM: LIF111TN1939PLCO02302
i Telephane Mo, 04563 - 235904
T E-mail: recm@rameotex.com; Website: www.ramarajusurgical.com
ETATEMENT OF AUDITED STANDALONE FINANCIAL RESULTS FOR THE QUARTER AND YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH 20212 |
(&=, In Lakhs)
STANDALONE
- Cuiarter Ended — ear Erded
“n: Particulars 31=03-2022 A1-12-2021 | 31-03-2021 | 31-03-20232 A1-03-2021
[ Auadied) (Um=pudited] | (Audited] [Auditad} [ Audited)
1 Income
&, Bevenue from Operations
Sake af Products 0,633 9,633 0,844 27,379 98,2492
Other Operzting Ineame 72 51 25 225 132
b. Gtfar Income 40 44 3,134 193 3227
Totsl Income 9,735 9,728 15003) 3797 31851
2 Expenses
A. Cast af Materals Consumed 5,155 5510 4075 21,489 12,974
b. Purchases of Stock-in-trade = 20 20 S05 180
C. Chainge in Invenlories of
Fliibhed G, Wk i rossss 361 | 1,843 {1,000} 3042
d. Employee Benelil Experses BO0S S 455541 3,522 2,547
e, Power & Fuel 711 716 77 2,198 2,028
f. Fingnoe Cost 510 A4l Sik 1,925 &,.000
. Depreclation and Amaortisation B 2,548 376 4835 077 1,753
h, QOthar Expandituna 1,085 1,037 1,089 4,185 31im
Total Expenses 11,575 9,356 9,435 36,907 28,162
Profit ¢ [Loas) from ordinary
3 | arthities bafos Tax {12} (1,840) 3rz 3.564 BOD 3489
L] Tax Expangas
- Current Tax - Under MAT {340) 65 612 136 612
= MAT Credit Entidement 776 (EE} {612) 288 (E12)
- Daferred Tax (614 142 220 47 208
5 tgfj]ﬁ""‘ GRS TG Parieo {1,662) 230 3,344 408 3,281
Diher Cosmprehansive Income
& r-FH “Fct“] e (&3] = [26) (83] {26}
CEDrEnen COTFIE
? o e i {1,751) 230 3,318 319 3,255
= UR ELRRLY Sdre LR L]
B | (Face value of a Share of Rs L0y- 385 395 305 395 305
) Other Equity = - = 10,657 in3s7
Calriniily Fe SikdlE Ui puw, LU=
10 | sach (in &5} =
Basic (42) 6 BS 10 B3
DHuted (423 & BS 10 E3
W
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SEGMUNT WISE HEVENLUE, REEULTS AND CAPITAL EMPLOYED

[ R, in Lakhs) |
H1ANDALONE
[Justter Exdad Year Ended
Pareplary "%; 17 2=2001 Fi=03-20Fk 31-03-2023F A1-03-303L
[&udited} | Cim-Aodbed] | (Aocibsd) [ Audited) Lhudted]

1. Begmaent Rrvomus

{Hel Sefes f Operating Income)

=] Tediles 2773 B0 LT E 3440 5515
b} Burgicel B, LE3 1,005 1,040 4,003 3521
e} Wind Hills ol 104 [ BE7 848
10,054 2,580 10,05 s o] ]
Lese: Inber Sagment Rewanue b T35 236 1.7%6 1
Total Intome From Gparakiees (Net) B,EEE 80 B, 8L ¥ 6O 8434

2. Sugment Results
Frefis/|Loss] Bafore Foance Cost B Tax

al Taxrlas ji,4d0) Bl 1,051 1772 2,004
i) Surgical 206 173 i) 539 7453
c} Ward Mills 15 ] 3 547 4E7
) Lnallpsased Remns _[oa) 1% 2Bl {10.3] 2,433

11,.336) ] 4,035 2,815 L

Ligs: Fnance Cost - Unalocable Exponbturs 510 4 Sii 1,023 4250 |
Aralit { [Lass) Bele |ox |1,840] 37 3,554 BED 3,400

%, Capitad Ermployod
[Segment ssurets - Segment Linblibies)

) Taitlics 6,020 LT 34 6,00 3,520
il Surgical (T3] 1o 1,351 Aoz 1,961
] Wind Mis 1,243 b 1,54 1,243 1.A26
d} Unallocited /Eu il Rama LT 4,547 3915 2,987 3,945
Taial 11,088 12,80t 10,752 11,053 10,753
M-

17 The abewe simdplens auliled rescks mers reviesed by the Asd® Commiites and spproved by the Doand of Direciors at
igir respactive Meglings held an I5-05-2023.
23 During the yesr, the carpany has subsoribed to the rghts (sue of its Assaciste compeny, Rajapaayem Hills Limied and
pecwired 22,533 shasms, Tha coimpany has alen acnuired 3405 equity shars of A5 subsidiary company, Medras Chipbeard
Limitne {MCEL) &nd Cha shécehplding i MCEL a6 an 31/03/2022 srards 2t 7501 %.

3% As per Seciion 115E6A in the [noome Tax bel, 1961, the groop has an irrevocablo cation of ghilling toa Jower tay rate md
sirwitanacysly fango cartain (e Ingenbreos, deductions and acoamedated MAT credit. The Comoany has not exencied (fes)
pptian: for the Snancizl year 2021-22 in view of the benefiis svaiahle undsr e exisling T fedame,

4} ImAew ol msurgence of Covid -19 pcroes the counkry, The Govermmant of Taomilaadu hag impased Leckdnsn during May-
11, A5 per GO (M) Mo 3BE dabed 22-05-2021 sseed by the Geverement of Taminadu, the Company's aperations hag
been stopped from 24-05-3021 (o 30-05-2021. Thereafter the operabions were restored w.edf 31-05-2021.

5]  The Campany has followed egdity methed for acosenting the mvestments mage in dAssooabes. Accorcheoghy e Camipany
haz precared the Comsclidated Fnancial Statements for the year erded 31-03-2023 7 31-03-200 4, which inclsdes the
resuts of e Compary G iL: Sasociales,

5] Other Comprebensive income comprise af gain / oz on recognition gnd maasyrenent of far vabue oF equity iovestment
held im Pated f unlsted sstity except in assocate Company orsd raressyreren gain f loes on define Denefit obSgation For
respertie raporting perinds,

71 Chapge im estimata
During the year, the Company has revised jts estimate of usefid life in respect of cerisen ibems of graperty, plant ang
EniEpment, Masd $e Campany ueed Fie ssdler gstimete, the depreciatisn for the e would hgve Bsn lower Dy
Rz 265427 Lakhs with 8 corsequential wmpact on the eamying vwabue ol the propsity, plant and sguipment,

In the oonon of The management, the above thange in estimate of usehal o which was made bosed on technical
evillsation made by registered waliser will resulk in mere relisble and relevant pressntaticn of e above refirred Dems of

property, plant and equipmesk in the financial stetements,

By  The PFrevious period figures hane besn pe-proupsd f re-steted wherever necessany Lo conlorm Lo costen yoar classidigakion
in cormpliance of amendments (6 Sehsdule - 111 b Conpanies A, 20135, potifded an 34-03-3028,

koo i

" LR VERKETRAMA RAIA
CHAERMAN
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Rs. in Lakhs)
AS AT AS AT
Particulars 31-02-2022 | 31-03-2031
Aiselited Aiacdibed
ASSETS
(1} Mon-Current Assets
Froperty, Plant & Eguipmant 20,140 22,385
Capltal Work-in-progress 1,296 116
Investment Property [ &
Intangible Azssts 2 3
Inwvestments in Subsidiaries B Assoclates 2,875 2,608
Financial Assets
Other Investments 12 14
Other Finamcial Assets 473 407
Ocher Mon-Current Assets 1,742 553
Sub Total [ A ) 26,646 26,087
{2) Current Assets
Inventaries 9,646 b
Fimandal Assets
Trade Receivables 5,840 7,592
Cash and Cash Eguivalents T42 233
Bank Balance other than Cash and Cash Equivalents [+ %] 7
Other Financial Assets 151 1,417
Current Tax Assets 226
Qther Current Assets 1,639 1,047
Sub Total ( B ) 18,346 15,772
TOTAL ASSETS (A+B) 44,992 41,859 |
EQUITY AMD LIABILITIES
(1) Equity
Equity Share Capital 305 J95
Other Equiky 10,657 10,357
Total Equity ( A ) 11,052 10,752
(2) Linbilities
{A) Mon-Current Liabilities
Fimandial Liabdlities
Borrowings 11,488 12452
Other Financial Liabilities
Provisions 76 63
Deferred Tax Liahilities (MNet) Gig 272
Deferred Govemment Grants - 40
Sub Total (B ) 12,182 12,827
(B]) Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilitles
Borrowings * 17,555 14,891
Trade Payables
(i) Total Outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small &4 &
enterpreises
(i) Totzl Outstamding dues of creditors other than micro 1112
enterprises and small enterprises F.
Other Financial Lizbilitics B67T
Cher Current Liabilities 1,630
Provisions S5i0
Currant Tax Liakilibas -
Sub Total [ C ) 21, 758
44 94973
4,502

j/ 4
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STATEMENT OF CASHFLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3157 MARCH 3023

[R5 in Lakha)|
2021-22| 2020-21
A . Cash flows from Operating Activities
Profit Bafare Tax E90 3 4EDQ
Adjustments far recondie Prafit /{Loss) Sefore Tax to Mat Cash
Flaws:
Depraciaticn & AMmartisation 4,077 1,753
Finance Cast 1,925 2,200
Intergst Recovad {188} kr
Dividend Receivad (1) (107
Loss(Prafith on Sele af Investmerts - (2,9559)
lLoss/(Profit) on Sale of Assets 402 [
Gratuity and Soeemment Granks - {3
Provigion for Doubiul & Bad Debis 16 G
Operating Frofit before Working copital Changes ¥, 141 4,255
Maovements in Warking Cagital;
Trade Recervehlsa 1,737 (2,021}
Loans and Advances {17} [Egﬁjl
Inventarias (4,170} 2,840
Trade Fayables B Currant liabilides TBE air
Cesh generated from Opermtions 4,679 4,489
incoma tax Paid (et} {326) f573y)
Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities a 4,453 34917
B. Cash Flows from Investing Activities | _
Purchase of Fised Assets Met of Capitel Subsdies [Induding Capital (3,781} (243
veIrk - o ress |
Inwesoment in Shares (FE8]) (1,511}
Bale of Investmankt - 2,962
Procesds from Sefe af Property, Blant & Equipmants 367 13
Interesl Reosived 168 92
Dividend Receiend 1 107
Het Cash Flows from Investing Activities B {3,613} 1,415
L. Cash Flows from Financing Activities !
Proceeds from Long Term Bormowings 3,705 AT
Repayment of Deposits - Related Parties (737 {535)
Repayrment of Long Term Loan (4,044) (3,112)
Procesds [ (Repayment) of Shoel Term Borrowings (Med) 2,775 (2.927)
Payment of Bividend (2a) 20y
Firance Cogt (1,935) (2,200)
MNet Cash Flows used in Financing Activities c [246) {5,271}
Met Incroase in Cash and Cash Equivalent D={A+B+L) 594 G5
Cipuning balance of Cash and Cosh Equivalents E 240 175
Closing balance of Cash and Cash Eguivalents D+E a34 240

Motes;

on S@tEment of Cash Flow,

{#) Bank Borrowings including Cash Cregits are considerad as Finarcing Activities

(1) The ahove Statoment of Cash How has bean prepared under Indirect Mathod® as &t aut in the Ind AS 7

(8i) For the purpese of Statement of Cosh FAow, Cash and Cash Equivedents compnse the following

PARTICULARS 21.03.2022| 21.08.2021
_.-_-".l:‘.-lhlumi Cash Equivalents T2
P _‘1H-||_e1x Balances othar than Cash ard Cash Equivalents a2
i, AN 834




THE RAMARAIU SURGICAL COTTOM MILLS LIMITED
Ragd, Offices P.AC.Ramzamy Rajo Salzi, Post Box Mo.l, Bafapalavam - G215 117, Tamilnadu
CIN: L17111TN1939PLCODZ23032
Telephone No, 04563 - 335904
Website: www.ramarajusurgical.com

E-mail: rscmiiramecobex.com;
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STATEMENT OF AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL RESULTS FOR THE QUARTER AND YEAR EMDED 315T MARCH 2023
CONSOLIDATED
51 arter Ended Tear Ended
Hu: Particulars F1-03-2022 | 31-12-2021 |31-93-2021 | 31-03-2022 | 31-03-2021
{Audited] | (Un-oudited) | (Audited] | (Audited] | [Audited)
1 Ravenua
A. Aevenue from Operatiens
Sale of Products 9,623 4,633 9,844 a7.379 28,292
Other Dperating Income 72 =1 15 225 L3l
. Qther Income = 28 i4h 3,020 105 3,141
Tatal Revenue 9723 9,725 12,915 37,799 31 565
2 Expenses
a, Cost of Matedals Consamed 5,138 5,510 4,075 21,491 12,574
B, Purchases of Steck-in-rade Zh 20§ 505 180
& Change in Inventories of Finished
zoods, Work in prgress and Stack-in- 361 27 1E43 {1000) 3,042
trada,
d. Employee Benefit Expenses 788 L] 694 3,530 2,850
e, Power & Fuel 703 rig Far 2168 2,028
f. Finance Cost 510 448 511 1535 2,200
Iﬂ.ﬁf:ﬂﬂﬂun Bred AumrHErLS aen 2,949 178 485 4,083 1,753
h. Other Expanditure 1,166 1,441 1,111 4,287 2,155
. Total Expenses 11,615 8371 §,470 317,019 18,182
3 #:a:lt fram ardinary activities before {1,893 258 2447 780 3,373
(2-7)
= Tax Expanses
- Current Tax - Undder MaT (341} 65 612 1386 612
= MAT Cradit Enttlement Fard (B5] (812} 290 (612
- Deferred Tax (615} 142 218 44 206
5 l'?,t':"".r; j?;‘_:’:,] ek sy aciities {1,708} 16 3,231 301 3,167
Share of Mat Profit After Tex [PAT)
G | of Asspoiates accounted for uging the 153 b ik 258 1,273 1,080
sty rethod
7 | Mat Profit for b period (546) [1,558) 133 3,468 1,574 4,227
Sharehaldars of the Company (1,541) 335 L 1,603 4,230
Non Controlling Interest {14} (] | {3} [Zey {3}
& til;er Comprehansive Income (met af = i (26) s (26)
Share of OC] of Associabes accaunted for
" using the eguity method (s) (1} (6] 3 i3l
10 I:;lt;:_ga;nmmhm-:wc Ineame after bax (1,560) 337 1,457 1,571 4,195
Chareholders of the Company {1,546} 334 3,460 1,600 4,193
Man Cantreling Tnterest (14) {2 (33 {29} i3]
Faid-up Equity Share Capital
hit {Face value of a Share of Rs 10/- each) s 208 395 Ss 93
12 Griher Bquity = . 27,571 26,094
& Eaming Per Share of R4, 10/ aach (in
13
Re}
Basic {39 E BE
Driluiked {39 B BB
P AT
P T e
SN A
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SECMENT WISE REVERUE, RESULTS AND CAPITAL EMPLOYED

{ Res, bn Lakhs]
CONSOLIDATED
Ciusrter Snded 'l"EIr Erdad
Pariukicy 3 =ZOXE AL=12-20021 IL=03F2031 31-03-202F “31-03-2021
[ § [ ed | LRuiLEd] [Audited) AUBLED)
L. Segmmnl Bavarse
(et Sales | Operikieg Dndienial
] Textils 5,772 AR E,o60 34,440 AT
b) Ssrgical 1,183 1,068 1,040 a,013 50
b Wind Wills a4 b LT 95 BaT 2432
1@,054 5,003 10,098 30,340 FET==]
Less: Inter Seqment Revense 352 7o 22 1,728 1,464
Motal Incene Fiom Dperatiens {Het) 3,585 8 581 Z.858 7604 X
1. Begmmenk Results
Frodi [Lesss) Befere Finagnos Cost & Thx
4] Tediles 11,460]) T 1,041 L¥Ta ENEL
) Suorglend I06 13d 137 L1 Ta3
| Wringd Mally 15 i ] 47 A&7
) Unnincate I (143] [} 2,739 [218) 3,337
TLAE2] BO7 3,060 3,708 557
L= Meance Coaf - Unalo Lopensiture 10— I 511 1,925 2,200
||=mﬁt.l {loss) Belore Tan 5 (L ';E HEEL] ELCT] i3n
1. Cupital Employed
|Segment Assabs - Segmec Liakitie)
o} Testles &, z0 TIT 3520 8,020 1,520
b} Sisgdcal 2o 1,507 1,361 B0l LML
] Wi Ml 1,38% 1,138 1,526 1,243 1,524
5} Unsitponted {broepignal lherms 70,423 L 25,460 20,423 20,450
Tafad 2457 3013 FER TS 3m.487 FERTH
13 The abores wnsadted conselidated Anancipl results for the Guarter and pear ended J1-00-2022 were revbimad By the Budit Ciovindbioe and
ry The Cansolidzted Financiol resuks tave heen orepared in accordonce with Ind AS 180 rend with Ind &8 28 wheh inclide the stantdalone
3] Koy Siandaloe Drsane ial o b Bs. 1n Li_ﬁ
Traarier ended Year Ended | | vear ended
Particplers 31-03-2032 A1=T 2=2071 n 1 pe B e i FL-03-202E
Thudand] TU-Auiaed | |ﬁm [Risdred) | [
Teral levanus e 8,773 13,008 =7,7a97 X1 ASE
PrefE =73 250 JAE¥
i alter lax ‘Wﬂl AL
The etz sboan Fraecdsl reuils of ihs Compare se sodbbl gha Smac § wmbadis wewris musl in snd ibe © ' wrnk A i

4} Dwring the year, the company has subscribed e te ights e of is fssocate company, Ragapalayam Mils IJn'uI:ﬂ:I mrd ll:q!.ﬂ'uﬂ 23,535
shares.The company has aleo acquired 249% equfy shares of Rs subsidlary company, Macras Chipboard Umitsd (MEBLp and Lhey
dherghalding in MCEL ason 31/03,2023 storsdts ol 75, 019,

5] &5 per Section L150aA in the Incorse Tex Ack, 1961, Khe group Bas an revecoble aplivn of shiltng 103 keer [ax maby and savmiitanenushy|
fome cEMa ax Incentives, dedod ons end sourulahed FBAT credi, The Congeny es not exsncised this option for e financisl pear 2021-
32 novaw of the bensfits avafladle under tho esisting @y regimes.

| In Vi of rESUPGEnCE of Covd -9 Bcross che country, the Soversmest of Temlinade hes imposed Leckdomn during May-21, As g GO [F5)
Mo RE daead 33-05-3031 (isued by the Gonrament of Tamilkads, the Covsan's eparatioe has been Sopped from 24-05-7021 to 30-05%
2027, Thersaier s cpera 0ns wearne redbieed ol 31=05%3031,

| Chamge i estimesbe
During the year, the Compary has revised ks ctimate of meful 1Fe in resped ol certain ibsres ol property, plent and sgugsneiil. Had s
Compayy used the sarlier eatimabe, the deprecistan far the year would bave been lovier By PadG04. 22 Lekhd with a consegueniial impacs

an the carrging walue of The propercy, plant and egspment.
En e spimion ef (e manssensent, e afove change b astbmabe of usefl Be which was made Based 2n technical evaluabon mede by

registened vatuer will result in micee reliabile and relevant presentation of the aboee neferned ikeas of property, plant 2nd eguipment in the
Ninanchal suspemenis,

1 The Nigures fior the guarter ended 31-03-2022 aad 21-02-7371 are the Ealancing Popres betwpen zicdited resuls in respect of full Geancal
veir and pofikshad year fo dafe upbe the third guarter of the relevant linancal year.

@4 The Pravicus perisd Rgures have beeron-grocsed { ri-olabed whorever nocescany (o confeem to curment wear clasgfication In corplance of
pmendments o Schedule = F11 e Conpanies Act, FAEA nenified on 24033011,

THE masy LmEicAL COTTON HlLL LIMIYEEY
A ﬁ A
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Consalidated
A AT BS AT
FPartieulars 31=-03=2022 31-03-2021
{Awdited) { Audited)
BSS5ETS
{1) Mon-Current Assets
Property, Plant & Equipmeat 22,1432 24,470
Capltal Work=im=grograss 2498 122
Invesbment Propesty [ i
Intangikle Assets 2 2
Caadweill &0 &9
Investrments in Assodates i8,2486 16849
Financial Aszets
Other Investments 1z i4
Other Finangial Assets 325 405
Other BMon=Current Asgsis 1,742 LG3
Sub Total { A ) 45,0432 42,4580
{2) Current Assets
Inwentaries .646 531
Findancial Assels
Trade Recelvablas 5 &40 7,605
Cash and Cash Eguivalenks B4E amt
Eguivalents 93 11
Other Financial Asseis 162 1,418
Currenk Tax Asseis 226
Other Current Assets 2500 1,054
Sub Total [ B ) 192,312 15,981
TOTAL ASSETE (A+B) 84,2549 58471
EQUITY AND LLIABILITIES
(1) Equity
Exuity Share capital 395 395
Gther Equity 27,571 26,094
Mon Contralling Interest 521 774
Total Equity { A ) 28,487 27,267
(2} Limbilities
(A} Non=Current Liakbilities
Finencial Liakilibies
Barrawings 13,190 12,452
Provisions 16 63
Deferred Tax Liabilities {Net) 6o4 350
Deferred Government Grants - 40
Sub Tatal { 8 ) 13,960 1.2,905
(B} Current Liabilities
Financial Linhilibes
Borrpwings 17,584 14,591
Trade Pavables =
(1] Totel Qutstanding dues of mioro
enterprises and small enterpreisas B4 55
(i1} Total Dutstanding dues of creditors
other than micro enterprizes and small 1,229 1,379
Other Financigl LabEties s70 1,108
Other Current Liabilities 1,626 465
Prowvisions 514 159
Current Tax Liakilib=s - 34
Sub Total{ €] 21,807 18,2449
o T‘;ITI'E'TI'\' AND LTABILITIES [(A+B+C) B4,354 58,471
g %) Ind t matuities of Lorg term Bovamings 4.5 3,891




—{4)-
COMSOLTDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

|R&. InLakhs})
31-03-2022] 31-03-2021

A . Cash flows from Operating Activities

Frofit Before Tax 781 3,373
Adjustments to reconcile Proft Bafors Tax to Met Cash Flows:
Dapracigtion B Amartisation 4.08% 1,753
Finanoe Cosks 1,925 I, 300
Inberasl Beceived {1GE) 191}
Loes/{Frofith on Sale of Investments - [2,255)
Lasaf{Profich on Sals of Asgats 482 (21
Grataity and Government Grants 2o
Bad C=bt= 11
Proveghon for Doubtiul Debts 11 &
Operating Frofit before Werking capital Changes T138 4,250
Maovements in Werking Capital:
Tradez Receivables 1,743 [LDHJI
Liads and SAdvanoes (1.521}) (335}
Imeentories {4,135} 2,841
Trade Paysbles & Current liabilties aar 18
Cagh gangrated from Qparatong 4,099 &
Incoarne Bax Paid / (Refund Becsived) IE} !5?2“
Met Cash Flows from Operating Activities A 3,875 3,920
2. Cash Flows from Investimg Activikies :
Purchase of Ficed Assats net of subsidies ]
(Including Capitsl wark-in-progress ) {4, 9ED) {3485
Irwesiment in Subsidiaries / Associotes (3o} [1,224)
Sale of Investment - 2982
Proceads fmm Sale of Property, Blant & Equipments 367 17
Interest Recelved 1638 g1
Dividand Racaived 1 106
Met Cash Fliows from Investing Activities B f4,814) 1.80%
C. Cash Flows from Financing Activities ¢
Proceeds from Lorng Term Borrowinga 5,437 5,523
Repaymant of Deposits - Related Parties [FOB) {535
Bepaymant af Long Tarm Losns {40447 13.113)
Procesds [/ (Repayment) of Short Term Borrowings {Net) 2,987 (4,527
Aoquisition of Non Controlling Interast {241) {236)
Payment of Dividend {20} {20}
Finarcs Costs [1,925) (2,200)
Met Cash Flows wsed im Financing Activities c 1488 {5,509
Het Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalent D=(A+B+4+C) 547 216
QOpening balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents E 391 75
Closing balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents O+E a8 01

{1} The above Statermsnk af Cach Flow has bean prepaced under 'Indirect Method' as st out in the Ind AS 7

(i} Bank Borvawings ncluding Cash Credits are consldered s Financing Activities
i;g Far the purpose of Statament of Cash Flow, Cash and Cash Equivalents comprise the fellowin

PARTICULARS 31-03-2022] 30092070 |
Cash &nd Cash Equivalents n4% 133
Bank Balances ather than Cash and Cash Equivalents a3 7

934 240 |




THE RAMARAJU SURGICAL COTTON MILLS LIMITED
Regd. Office: P.A.C.Ramsamy Raja Salai;, Post Box No. 2, Rajapalayam - 626 117, Tamilnadu
1 CIM: LITLI1ITNISISPLCOOZI0Z
Telephone No, 04563 - 235904
E-mail: rsem@rameotex.com; Website: www ramarajusurgical.com
EXTRACT OF ALDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL RESULTS FOR THE QUARTER AND YEAR ENDED 315T

MARCH 2022
i(ls in Lakhs)
- Quarier Ended YearEnded |
i Particulaes | 31-03-2022 | 31-12-3021 | 11-03-2021 | 31-03-2022 | 31-03-2021
| {Audited) | (Un-audited] | (Un-audited) | {Aodited) | (Un-audited)
Income fram Operakiong 9,723 9,728 12,915 37,799 31,565
2 ;E: Profit  (Loss) for the period before {1,892) 358 3,449 730 3,373
3 |Met Profit / (Lost) for the peniod after tax {1,708} 2l 3,431 301 3167
Prafit for the vear attributable to:;
Sharaholdars of the Compary {1,541} 335 3,492 1,603 4,230
Kon contralling Interest (14) (2] (31| (29} (3)
4 [Toksl Comprebensive [ncome for the
period altsr ey [Cmprising Net Profit |/
560 AT 1,57 i,
(Loss) for the period aiter tas and Other i ) =4 b i e
Casmprehensive Tnoome after tax)
Total Comprehensivg [nooms sttributabbs
ki
Eharaholders of the Company {1,548) 324 3,480 1,600 4,199
Man controliing Tntersst {14) (2) (L5 (29) (2
5 |Paid-ug Equity Share Capitsl 38g 385 355 385 195
6 |DOther Equity 27,571 26,084
7 INet Worth 27,966 26,489
& |Earning Per Share of Ks. 10,- each,
(KoL Anneatized) {in R5.)
Basic {59) B BE g1 107
Dilutad [EES B BE 41 107
[eoies:

1) The abave 5 an extracs of the detailed formab of Fnancial Resulis hled with Stock Exchange under HRegulation
3% of the SEBI {Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 The full formal of the audded
Criarter and Year ended finanoal results are avadlable on the Company's website at wes.ramarajusurgical .com and an
the webgite of the Stock Exchange whera the shares of the company |15 listad at weesr.mised, in.

2} The above Consididated ausdted financial reswits for the guaras and year ended 31-03=-2022 were reviewsd by the sudlt

Committee and thers sfter approwed by the Board of Directors af thelr respective Meetings held on 25-05-2022,
3] Key Standelane Finsnoiel Infsemation; (Rsin Lakhs)

5| Quartar Enced YeEar Bnded
I'l'ﬂ;. Particulars 31-03-2022 | 31-12-2031 | 31-03-2021 | 31-03-2022 | 31-03-2021
{Aedited) | (Un-sudited) {Audited] { Audived) {Audited)
1 |Imcarme from Operaticons 5,738 o728 13,003 37,797 I1,BEL
2 :: Prafit # {Lass) for the perod before (1,840) A7y » 584 890 1,489
3 |Met Profit / (Loss) for the period afler tax {1,662) 230 3,344 408 3,201

4] The Previous pariod fgures hava been re-grouped ¢ re-stated wherever necessary bo conform to current yeas
classiication in complance of amendments in Schedwle - [11 to Companies Act, 2013, notified an 24-03-2021.,

Rajapalayam
2F-05-2022F

For THE RAMARAIU SURGICAL COTTOM MILLS LTD,

//% ”r‘.:{../é‘ f’/f/ o

P.RVENKETRAMA RATA

CHATRMAN
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m N.A.Jayaraman & Co.
Charered Accountants

Independent Auditor's Report on the Quarterly and Year to Date
Standalone Audited Financial Results of the Company Pursuant to the
Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended.

To

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE RAMARAJU SURGICAL COTTON
MILLS LIMITED

Report on the audit of the Standalone Financial Results

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone quarterly financial results of
THE RAMARAIU SURGICAL COTTON MILLS LIMITED (the "Company”)
for the guarter ended March 31, 2022 and the year to date results for the
period from April 01, 2021 to March 31, 2022, attached herewith, being
submitted by the Company pursuant to the requirement of Regulation 33 of
the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015, as amended (the "Listing Regulations™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations glven to us these standalone financial results:

I. are presented in accordance with the requirements of the Regulation
33 of the Listing Regulations in this regard; and

I, gives a true and fair view in conformity with the applicable accounting
standards and other accounting principles generally accepted in India
of the net profit and other comprehensive loss and other financial
information of the Company for the quarter ended March 31, 2022 as
well as the year to date results for the period from April 01, 2021 to
March 31, 2022.

-
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Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs)
specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013("the Act™). Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the “duditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Results”™ section of
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code
of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together
with the ethical reguirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereaunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics, We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our apinion.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note No.4 to the Standalone financial results, which
describes the uncertainties and the impact of the COVID 19 pandemic an the
Company's operations and finandal results as assessed by the Management
of the Company. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Management’'s Responsibilities for the Standalone Financial Results

These guarterly financial resuits as well as the year to date standalone
financial results have been prepared on the basis of standalone annual
financial statements. The Board of Directors of the Company are responsible
for the preparaticn and presentation of the Statement that gives a true and
fair view of the net profit and other comprehensive loss of the Company and
other financial information in accordance with the applicable accounting
standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules
issued thereunder and other accounting principles generally accepted in India
and in compliance with Regulation 33 of the Listing Regulations. This
responsibility alse includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the
design, implementation and maintenance of adeguate internal Ffinancial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and

o
| e
Lo

§,Cadar Wood, 11.4th Main Road. Raja Annamalaipuram, Chennai - 600 023.
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presentation of the standalone financial results that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, the Board of Directors are
responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either
intends to liquidate the Company or lo cease operations, or has no realistic
aiternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s
financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial
Results

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
standalone financial results as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect
a material misstatement when It exlsts. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these standalone financial results.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
dis0;

+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
standaione financial results, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the gverride of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i} of the Act, we are also

9. Cedar Waod, 11.4th Main Road, Rala Annamalaipuram, Chennai - 600 D28.
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responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has
adequate internal financial controls with reference to  financial
statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls,

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasanableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the Board of Directors.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
cbtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt an the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern, If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in cur auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the financial results or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company Lo cease
to continue as a going concern,

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
standalone financial results, including the disclosures, and whether the
financial results represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

« Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the standalone
financial results of the company to express an opinion on the
standalone financial results

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, Including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relaticnships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safequards.

[ I
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The Statement includes the results for the guarter ended March 31, 2022
being the balancing figures between the audited figures in respect of the full
financial vear ended March 31, 2022 and the published unaudited year to
date figures up to the third quarter of the current financial year which were
subject to limited review by us as required under the Listing Regulations.

For N.A, JAYARAMAN & CO.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 0013105

sy

R.PALANIAPPAN _
Partner : | |
Membership Number: 205112
UDIN: 22205112AINWRUS1 18

Rajapalayam
25 May 2022
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Independent Auditor’s Report on the Quarterly and Year to Date
Audited Consolidated Financial Results of the Company Pursuant to
the Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amendead

To

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE RAMARAJU SURGICAL COTTON
MILLS LIMITED

Report on the audit of the Consolidated Financial Results

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Statement of Consolidated Financial
Results of THE RAMARAJU SURGICAL COTTON MILLS LIMITED
{"Halding Company”] and its subsidiary (the Holding Company and its
subsidiary together referred to as "the Group") and its associates for the
guarter ended March 31, 2022 and for the period from April 01, 2021 to
March 31, 2022 {"“the Statement™), being submitted by the Holding Company
pursuant to the requirement of Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended ("Listing
Regulatiocns™},

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, and based on the consideration of the reports of
the other auditcrs on separate audited financial statements / financial
information of subsidiary and associates, the Statement:

a. includes the results of the following entities:

Name of the entity Relationship |
'Madras Chipboard Limited N Subsidiary |
| The Rameco Cements Limited - o Associate
| Ramico Industries Limited Associate
Ramco Systems Limited Associate
Rajapalayam Mills Limited Associate
Sri Vishnu Shankar Mill Limited | Associate
Shri Harini Madia Limited Associate !
Sri Harini Texti_FE-s_I:ir_n_it'gc_! Associate A

§,Cedar Wood, 11,4th Main Road. Raja Annamalaipuram, Chennai - 600 028.
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b. is presented in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 33 of the
Listing Reqgulations, as amended: and

c. gives a true and fair view, in conformity with the applicable accounting
standards, and cther accounting principles generally accepted in India, of
consolidated total comprehensive income {comprising of net profit and other
comprehensive income) and other financial information of the Group for the
guarter ended March 31, 2022 and for the period from April 01, 2021 to
March 31, 2022.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted cur audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs)
as specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act). Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Results section of
our report, We are independent of the Group and Its associates in accordance
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
and the Rules there under, and we have fulfiled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and other auditors
in terms of their reports referred to in “"Other Matter” paragraph below, is
sufficient and appropriate te provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note No. 6 to the consolidated financial results, which
describes the uncertainties and the impact of the COVID 19 pandemic on the
Company's operations and financial results as assessed by the Management
of the Company. Our opinion Is not modified in respect of this matter.

Management’s Responsibilities for the Consolidated Financial Results

These Statements have been prepared on the basis of the consolidated
annual financial statements.

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation
and presentation of these consclidated financial results that give a true and

fair view of the net profit and other comprehensive income and other

8,Cedar Wood, 11,4th Main Road, Raja Annamalzipuram, Chennal - 600 D28,
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financial infermation of the Group including its associates in accordance with
the applicable accounting standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act
read with relevant rules issued there under and ather accounting principles
generally accepted in India and in compliance with Regulation 33 of the
Listing Regulations. The respective Board of Directors of the Companies
included in the Group and of its associates are respansibhle for maintenance
of adeguate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding of the assets of the Group and associates and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriste accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasgnable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant
to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial results that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of
the consolidated financial results by the Directors of the Holding Company,
as aforesaid.

In preparing the consclidated financial statement, the respective Board of
Cirectors of the Companies included in the Group and its associates are
responsible for assessing the ability of the Group and of its associates to
tontinue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
respective Board of Directors either intends to liguidate the Group or to cease
ocperations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the Companies included in the Group
and of Its associates are also responsible for overseeing the financial
reporting process of the Group and of its associates.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Results

Gur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial results as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due te fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements cah
anse from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or |n the -
£
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aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial results.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial results, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
Invalve collusion, forgery, Intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate In the
circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(1) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has
adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls,

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the Board of Directors.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events ar
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ahility of the Group
and its associates to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
results or, if such disclesures are inadeguate, to modify our opinion.
Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditer’s report, However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group and its associates to cease to continue as a going-

concern. S
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= FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consalidated financial results, including the disclosures, and whether
the consolidated financial results represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

« Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
results/financial Information of the Group and its associates to express
an opinion on the conselidated financial results. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial
information of the entities included in the consclidated financial results
aof which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities
included in the consolidated financial results, which have been audited
by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by
them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding
Company and such other entities included in the consoclidated financial
results of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

We also performed procedures in accordance with the circular issued by the
SEBI under Regulation 33(8) of the Listing Regulations, as amended, to the
extent applicable,

Other Matter

1. We did not audit the financial statements of one subsidiary company
included in the consclidated financial results, whose financial
statements before consclidation adjustments reflect total assets of Rs.

8,Cedar Wood, 11,4th Main Road, Raja Annamalaipuram, Chennai - 600 028.
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N.A.Jayaraman & Co.

Chartered Accountants

2,191.18 Lakhs as at 31st March 2022, Total revenues of Rs, Nil Lakhs
and Rs, 2.55 Lakhs and total net loss after tax of Rs. Nil and Rs. 35.27
Lakhs and total comprehensive loss of Rs. Nil and Rs. 35.27 Lakhs for
the guarter ended 31% March 2022 and for the period from 01% April
2021 to 31% March 2022 respectively and net cash outfiows of Rs,
49.93 Lakhs for the year ended 31® March 2022. These financial
statements as per Ind AS and other financial information have been
audited by another Independent gauditor whose report has been
furnished to us, and our opinion on the year to date results, to the
extent they have been derived from such audited financial statements
is based solely on the report of such other auditors,

. The consolidated financial results also include the Group's share of net

profit after tax of Rs. 153 Lakhs and Rs. 1,273 Lakhs and total
comprehensive income of Rs. 148 Lakhs and Rs. 1,270 Lakhs for the
quarter ended 31* March 2022 and for the pericd from 01% April 2021
to 31 March 2022 respectively as considered in the consolidated
audited financial results in respect of Seven Associates. Out of this, the
financial results / financial information of one associate has been
audited by us as joint auditor and six asscciates have been audited by
an Independent Auditor, whose reports have heen furnished to us by
the management and our report on the consclidated financial results in
so far as it relates to the amounts that have been derived from such
audited financial results is solely based on the reports of the other
auditors.

Cur opinion on the Statement is not maodified in respect of the above matters
with respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other
auditors and the Financial Results/financial information certified by the Board
of Directors,

8,Cedar Wood, 11,4th Main Road, Raja Annamalaipuram, Chennai - 600 028.
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N.A.Jayaraman & Co.
Chartered Accountants

The Statement includes the results for the quarter ended March 31, 2022
being the balancing figures between the audited figures in respect of the Tull
financial year ended March 31, 2022 and the published unaudited year-to-
date figuras up to the end of the third quarter of the current financial year,
which were subjected to a limited review by us, as required under the Listing
Regulations.

For MN.A. JAYARAMAN & CO.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 0013105

i
.ﬂ".i’.--ﬁ

R.PALANIAPPAN i
Partner '
Membership Number: 205112

UDIN: 222051128J0UEI2865

Rajapalayam
25th May 2022
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SRI HARINI TEXTILES LIMITED

Factory Address © Survey No. 47, 48 & 49, Thirumalagiri Village, Jaggaishpet Mandal,
Krishna Diat 521 178, Andhra Pradesh, Indla

el

Regd. Office : Sr Bhavanam, 102, P5.K. Nagar, RAJAPALAYAM - 626 108, Tamil Madu, INDIA.

REFORT ADOFTED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF SRI HARINI TEXTILES LIMITED
ATITS MEETING HELD ON SEPFTEMBER 27, 2021 EXPLAINING THE EFFECT OF SCHEME
OF AMALGAMATION BETWEEN SRI HARINI TEXTILES LIMITED AND THE RAMARAJU
SURGICAL COTTON MILLS LIMITED ON EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS, UNSECURED
CREDITORS, SECURED CREDITORS, KEY MANAGERIAL PFERSONNEL, FROMOTERS,
NON PROMOTERS SHAREHOLDERS.

1. Background

The proposed Scheme of Amalgamation of Sri Harinl Textiles Limited *SHTL") with The
Ramaraju Surgical Conan Mills Limied (“TRSCML") {“the Scheme™ was approved by the
Board vide resolution dated September 27, 2021,

Provisions of Sections 232(2)(¢) of the Companies Act, 2013 requires the Directors to adopt a
repart explaining the effect of amalgamation on equity shareholders, key managerial personnel
(KMPs), promaoters dnd mon-promioters shansholders of (e Applicant Companies lying oul in
particulnr the share exchange ratin and the same i3 required o be circulated 1o the equity
sharcholders,

This Fepor of the Roard is :|rrnrr|ingly heing: minde n prirsianee o the reruimement of Bertinm
23X c) of the Companies Act, 2013,

The Board of Deirectors took nowe of the following:

i, Tl Seherme or Aomnlgoestion doly iitialed by the Director ol the Conpeny Tor the puerposg
of identitication;

b, Valoaion Report dated Soptember 27, 2021 issued by Miz, Den Valuation (OPC) Private
Limited, Independent Registered Valuer (*Registered Valuer™) describing the methodology
adopted by him in ariving &t and recommending 1he Share Exchange Ratio (*Valuation
Report™);

c. Fairness ODpinion dated September 27, 2021 issued by Viveo Financial Services Private
Limited, Category 1 Merchant Banker providing the Faimess Crpinion on the Share Exchange
Ratig recommended by the Registered Valuer (“Fairness Opinion™),

d. The Cerificate issued by the Siatutory Auditors of the Company i.e., M. 5. Jagannathan &
M. Krshnaswami, Chartered Accountanis, confinming thar the accouniing {reatment
contained in the draft Schema is in compliance with Accounting Standards as notified under
Section |33 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Pales framed thereundar and other
generally accepted accounting principles;

e, Acdited financial statements of the Transferor Company and the Transferec Company for the
preceding three financial years; and

O .

Fh - DBGG4 - 283833, 283977  E-mail | apunit@ramcotex. com
CIN | LMT111TH2005PLCOS7807 *  GITIN . 3TAAJCSSE19D1ZT
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Factory Address ;| Survey No. 47, 48 & 48 Thirumalagir Villagse, Jaggsiahpel Mandal,
Krizhna Diet 521 178, Andhra Pradech, India,

Regd. Office : 3ri Bhavanam, 102, P.S K. Nagar, RAJAPALAYAM - 828 108, Temil Nadu, INDIA.

2. Effect of the Scheme op shareholders, Key managerial personnel, pramoters and nosb-promoters
shareholder

1L

2.4.

Subjeet 1o provisions of Clause 10,113 of the Scheme and upon the Scheme coming into effect
TRSCML shndl issue and aliot 34 (Thirty Four) fully peid-up squity shares of Rs, 10/- ¢ach in
respect of 1,000 (One Thousand) fully paid up equity shares of Rs. |00- each held by
shareholders in SHTL.

Pursuant to the Schems, the promoters as well 2 non-promoters shareholders of SHTT. will get

© allotment of equity shares of TRSCML in e ratip mentioned hereinbefore and cxcep as
above, there is no other effect of the Scheme on the promoters and non-promoters sharehaolders
of SHTL.

Under the Scheme, no compromize 8 proposed with any creditoes of SHTL and the liability of
any creditors 18 nefther being reduced nor being extinguished. Pursuant to the Scheme, all the
debt owned by SHTL shall become debis of TRSCML on the same temmns and condstions
{including existing encumbrances, chargss, morigages eic, over asseis or properties of SHTL)
as were applizble to SHTL and therefore, the Scheme has no efect on the creditors ol SHTL.

The fights of the employees of SHTL are in no way affectad by the Scheme. Uipon the Scheme
becoming effective, all saft, workmen and employees of the SHTL, whao are in service on the
dare immediawely preceding the Effective Date shall become staff, workmen and emplovess af
the TRSCML. without any break or interriuption in thelr services, on same terms and conditions
on which they are engaged as on [he Effective Date ana thus, the Scheme will have no adverse
affect on the employess of the SHTT

There 15 no effact of the Scheme on the Key Managerial Personne! andfor the Directors of the
SHTL,

3 Valuation of Share Exchange / Entitiement Ratio

-

3.1

dal

Blls. Den Vaolustion (OPCY Private Limiled, Independent Bepisters! Valuer has camied . out
valuation. 1 he valuation methodologies and approaches adoptad by the viluer are Asset Approach
(Adjusted Net Asset Value Method) and Market Approach {market price method and comparable
company markel multiple method), Discoumed Cash Flow Meihod.

Bused on the Valuation Repon, the Board of Dirsctors of SHTL has approved the Share Exchange
/ Enttlement Zatko as mentionad hereinbefnre in poin no, 2.1,

Fh . 08554 - 233933, 283877 E-mall : apunit@mmcotex com 163
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{ SRAI HARINI TEXTILES LIMITED )

Feclory Address @ Survey Mo, 47, 48 & 49, Thirumalagin Village, Jaggeiahpet Mandal,
Kriehna ket 5327 17E Andhra Pradasn, Indla.
Rege Offica © 8r Bhavanam, 102 P5.K Nagar, RAJAPALAYAM - 628 108 Tami Nadu, INDIA.

]

3.1 Waspecial valuation difficulties were reparted in the valuation.

By Order of the Board
For, Sri Harini Textiles Limited

L"“""q—'“\-ﬂ—h.n._'—-_.-:—-—h—"‘!"‘l
MK, Shrikantan Haja
Mhrector

NN BO3S0GT3

Pn . 08654 - 283933, ZB3977 E-mall ; apunitgiramoolax com
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THE RAMARAJU SURGICAL COTTON MILLS LIMITED

Manufacturers of Antiseptic Dressings

RETORT ADOFTED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE RAMARAJU SURGICAL
COTTON MILLS LIMITED AT ITS MEETING HELD ON SEFTEMBER 27, 1011
EXPLAINING TIE EFFECT OF SCHEME OF AMALGAMATION BETWEEN SRI HARINI
TEXTILES LIMITED AND THE RAMARAJU SURGICAL COTTON MILLS LIMITED ON
EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS, UNSECURED CREDITORS, SECURED CREDITORS, KEY
MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL, PROMOTERS, NON PROMOTERS SHARFHOLDERS.

1. Beckgrownd

|.I - "The proposed Scheme of Amalgamation of $ri Harinl Textles Limited ("SHTL") with The
Ramarau Surgical Cotton Mills Limited (“TRSCML™ (“the Scheme™) was spproved by the
Board vide resolution doied September 27, 2021

1.2, Provisions of Sections 232(2)(c) of the Companics Act 2013 requires the Directors 1o adopt a
repor explaining the effect of amalgamation on equity sharcholders, kev managenial personng
[KhdPel, provnosers and non-promaters sharchaldere ol tha ."I.['Il'llil-ilﬂl If-'r_\mpnmr,'j L ing out n
particular the share exchange ratio amd e sans s required Lo be eireulated to the equity
shaicluhdess

L3 Nas jepuit of the Board 15 accardingly being made n pursuance io e requirgment of Section
2320200c) of the Companwes Act, 2013

L4 The Board of Directors teok note of the following

a  Draft Scheme of Amalgamation dulv initisled by the Company Sccretary of the Company
for the pupose of identificalion.

b, Vahution Report dated Scptember 27, 2021 s by Mix Den Valusitivn {OPC) Private
Limited. Independent Hepistered  Valuer [(“Hegistered  Valier™) describing  the
melhodulogy adopted by himem aremg al and recommending the Share Fuchange Ratio
" Valuation Report”™).

. Fairness Opmon dated Sepiember 37, 2021 1ssued by Viveo Financial Services Private
Limited, Category | Merchanl Banker providing the Faimess Opuuen o the Shear
Exchange Ratio recommended by the Registered Valuer (*Fairness Opinion™,

i The Cerificate msued by the Statutory Auditors of the Company ie NA. Jayeraman &
Co., Chariered Accountants, canfirming that the aceounting treatment contained in the drafi
Scheme is m complisnee with Accounting Standards as notified under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules framed thersunder ond other gencrally accepted
secountmyg principles.

= Audied Financnl ststements of the Trassferor Company and the Transferce Company for
the preceding three financial years:

& surgiCcorn

P.O. Box : 2, 118, 120, P.A.C. Ramasamy Rajs Salai, Rajapalayam, Virudbunagar Districr - 628117
Ph @ (0197-48E3-235004 E-mail ¢ rsemilrameotex. com, reom@benlin  YWib: WL T M Al BuUrglc el com
CIN : L1T7T1TT1ITNIA39PLCOD2302 GETIN : S3AAACTAIOED I FX
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THE RAMARAJU SURGICAL COTTON MILLS LIMITED

Manufacturers of Antiseptic Dressings

£ Repori of the Audit Committes dated Seplembier 27, 202 1. recommending the scheme o
the Board for approval

g Report of the Conmmitiee of Independent Directors dated September 27, 2021,
recommending the scheme ta the Board for epproval.

2. Effect of the Scheme on sharcholders, Key managerinl personnel, promoters and non-promoter
sharcholder

2.1 Subject 1o provisions of Clause 1113 of the Scheme and upan te Sl vy nio
effect, TRSCML shall issue and atlot 34 (Thirty Four) fully paid-up equity shares of Rs (V-
zach m respect of 1,000 (One Thousand) fully paid up cquity shares of Bs. 10/ each held by
shareholders in SHTL,

12 The Promoters of the Transferee Company are also sharchelders of thie Transferor Company
and aceordingly, wall get allotment of farther equity shares of the Transferee Company in the
respective matio mentioned hereinbefore and excepl as above, there s no other offect of the
Scheme on the promeders and nen-promoter shareholders of the Transteree Company, The
merease In sharcholding of Promoders of the Transferee Company post Scheme will be
exempl from open offer requrement i terms of provisions of Regulation 10(1%d) of the
Securtties and Exchange Board Of Indin [Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Tnkeovers)
Repulations, 2011, as amended. a2 il is pursuant 10 2 scheme of amalgamation approved by
NCLT.

1.3, Under the Scheme, no compromise is proposed with any creditors of TRSCML and the
hability of any creditors is neither being reduced nor beine extinguished. Therefare, the
Scheme has no effect an the creditors of TRSCML.

44 The nights of the emplovees of Transferee Company are in 1o way affected by the Scheme,
Upon the Scheme beeoming effective, oll stofl, workmen and emplovess of the Transferor
Company, who are in service on the date mmedisicly preceding the Effective Date shall
become: stafl, workmen end employees of the Transferes Company, without any break or
mierruption in their services, on same terms and conditions on which they arc cogaged as oo
the Effective Date and thus, the Scheme will have no adverse effect oo the employees of the
Trunsleror Company,

b
i

Phere 15 no cfleel of the Scheme on the Key Managerial Personnel and/or the Directors of the
Teanslzree Compamy.

& SuUYglLCoIm

P.C. Bow : 2, 118, 120, P.A.C. Ramasamy Rajs Salai, Rajapalayam, Virudhunagar District - 828117,
Ph : (0191-4563-235904  E-mail : rsem@ramcotex com. rsem@bsnlin  Web: ww. ramarajusurgicsl.com
CIN : LT7111TN1839PLCO02302 GSTIN ; 33AAACT430BDTTN
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THE RAMARAJU SURGICAL COTTON MILLS LIMITED

Manufacturers of Antiseptic Dressings

3 Valuation of Share Exchange ! Entitlement Ratio

i1 M Den Valpation (OPC) Private Lumied, Independent Registered Valuer has carmed out
valugtion. The valuation methodologes and approaches adopied by the valuer are Asset
Approach (Adjusted Mel Assel Value Method) and Market Approach (market price method and
comparable company market multiple method), Discounted Cash Flow Method

3.1 Besed on the Valuation Repart, the Board of Directors of TRSCML bas approved the Share
Exchange / Entitlerment Eatw a5 menteoned hereinbefore in peintne, 2.1.

i1 Nospecial valuation difficulies wers reparted in the valualion.

By Order of the Baard
For. The Ramaraju Surgical Cotton Mills Limited
-

Walter Viasanth P.J
CompanylSecretary & Compliance Officer

gisurgicom

PO.Box : 2, 119, 120, P.AC, Remasamy Rajn Sala, Rajapaiayam, Virudhunagar Cistrict - 626117,

Ph : (C}91-4663-235004 E-mail : rscm@Brameotex.com, rsemi@bsnlin  Web: www.ramarajusurgical.com
CIM G LTTTTITHNIS30PLCO0Z302  GSTIN ; 33AAACT4306DIZN
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BEFORE THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL CHENNAI BENCH
C.A. (CAA) NO. 35 OF 2022

In the matter of Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
AND
In the matter of Scheme of Amalgamation of Sri Harini Textiles Limited with The Ramaraju Surgical Cotton Mills
Limited and their respective Shareholders and Creditors.

SRI HARINI TEXTILESLIMITED

(CIN: U17111TN2005PL C057807)

A Company incorporated under the

provisions of CompaniesAct, 1956

having its Registered Office at

Sri Bhavanam 102, P SK Nagar Rajapalayam,

Virudhunagar — 626108, Tamil Nadu, India ... Applicant Transferor Company

FORM OF PROXY

Name & Address of the Creditors/ Joint creditors:
(In BLOCK Letters)

E-mail Id: Registered Folio No.:
No. of Shares Held: DPID & Client ID:

I/ We, the undersigned, do hereby appoint-

1) Name Address:

Email id: Signature: or failing him/her
2) Name Address:

Email id: Signature: or failing him/her
3) Name: Address:

Email id: Signature:

as my Proxy to act for me at the meeting of the Equity Shareholders of the Applicant Transferor Company to be held at PAC
Ramasamy Raja Salai, Rajapalayam —626 117, Tamil Nadu, Indiaon Thursday, 8th day of September, 2022 at 9.00A.M. (I1ST);
for the purpose of considering, and if thought fit, approving, with or without modification(s), the said Scheme of Amalgamation
of Sri Harini Textiles Limited with The Ramaragju Surgical Cotton Mills Limited and their respective Shareholders and
Creditors (the “Scheme”), and at such Meeting and any adjournment/adjournments thereof, to vote, for me and in my name
veeeeneennnns (here, “if for” insert “FOR”, “if against”, insert “AGAINST” and in the latter case,
strike out the words below after “Scheme”) the said Scheme either with or without modification(s) as my proxy may approve.

Signed this day of , 2022
Affix
. . Rs. 1
Signature of the Creditor Revenue
Stamp
Signature of the Proxy 1) 2) 3)

Note: (1) The proxy must be deposited at the registered office of Applicant Transferor Company at Sri Bhavanam 102, P S K
Nagar Rajapalayam, Virudhunagar — 626 108, Tamil Nadu, India, at |east 48 (forty-eight) hours before the scheduled time of the
commencement of the said meeting. (2) All alterations made in the form of proxy should be initialed. (3) Please affix appropriate
revenue stamp before putting signature. (4) In case of multiple proxies, the proxy later in time shall be accepted. (5) Proxy need
not be an equity shareholder of Applicant Transferor Company.

For Office Use

Proxy No.: Date of Receipt:
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SRI HARINI TEXTILESLIMITED
CIN: U17111TN2005PL C057807
Registered Office: Sri Bhavanam 102, PS K Nagar Rgjapalayam, Virudhunagar — 626 108, Tamil Nadu, India
Phone: 08654-283933/283988; Email: apunit@ramcotex.com

ATTENDANCE SLIP

Please complete attendance slip and hand it over at the entrance of the Meeting Hall. Joint shareholders may obtain
additional slip on request.

Attendance by (Please tick appropriate box) Name:
[_] shareholder/ Joint Sharehol der
[ IProxy Address:

|:| Authorised Representative

Folio/ DP ID No.:

No. of Shares held:

I/ We hereby record my presence at the NCLT convened Equity Shareholders meeting of the Applicant Transferor Company,
held at PAC Ramasamy Raja Salai, Rgjapalayam — 626 117, Tamil Nadu, India, on Thursday, 8" day of September, 2022
at 9.00 A.M. (IST).

Signature of Shareholder(s)

Signature of Proxy holder(s)

Note:

1. Shareholders attending the meeting in person or by Proxy are requested to complete the attendance slip and hand it over at
the entrance of the meeting venue.

2. Shareholders who come to attend the Meeting are requested to bring their copy of the Scheme with them.

3. Shareholders who hold shares in dematerialized form are requested to bring their Client ID and DPID details for easy
identification of the attendance at the meeting
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Route Map to the Meeting Venue
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Land Mark: Near N.R.K. Petrol Bunk

Distance from Rajapalayam Old Bus Stand: 3.0 KMS; Distance from Rajapalayam Railway Station: 2.5 KMS
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